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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549
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O EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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12 months (or for such shorter period that thestegt was required to file such reports), anché) been subject to such filing requirements ferpést 90 days. Ye&  No
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrantskell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Brge Act). Yesd No &

The aggregate market value of the registrant'sigatihd non-voting common stock held by non-affigahs of June 29, 2014, the last business dayg oétiistrant's most
recently completed second fiscal quarter, was aqumiately $349.4 million , based on the closing galeefor shares of the registrant's common stock astegpdy the NASDAC
Global Select Market on such date. This discloswdudes shares of common stock held by execuffieers, directors and stockholders whose individianership exceeds 1(
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All references to “us,” “we,
Corporation, and its subsidiaries.

our,” the “Companydnd “Kratos” refer to Kratos Defense & Security Bains, Inc., a Delaware

FORWARD -LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K (this “Annual Refipcontains “forward-looking statements” relatintp our future financial
performance, the market for our services and oyaesion plans and opportunities. In some casesgcgaudentify forwarrlooking statemen
by terminology such as “may,” “will,” “should,” “expect,” “plan,” “anticipate,” “believe,” “estimate,” “predict,” “potential,” or
“continue,” the negative of such terms or other garable terminology. These forward-looking statetagaflect our current beliefs,
expectations and projections, are based on assomgtand are subject to known and unknown risksusneértainties that could cause our
actual results or achievements to differ materifiltym any future results or achievements expressed implied by our forward-looking
statements. Many of these factors are beyond aiityatis control or predict. As a result, you shduiot place undue reliance on forward-
looking statements. The most important risk ancettamties that could cause our actual results ohi@vements to differ materially from the
results or achievements expressed in or impliedusyforward{ooking statements, include, but are not limitedhtose specifically addressec
Item 1A"Risk Factors” in this Annual Report, as well aste discussed elsewhere in this Annual Report.eTloesard-looking statements
reflect our views and assumptions only as of thte dach forward-looking statements are made. Exagpéquired by law, we assume no
responsibility for updating any forward-looking seents, whether as a result of new informatioruyréuevents or otherwise.

” o ” o ” " w ”oou ”

PART I.
Iltem 1. Business
Overview

We are a specialized technology focused securijnless providing mission critical products, solns@nd services for domestic and
international customers, with our principal custosrigeing agencies of the U.S. Government. Our capabilities are sophisticated
engineering, manufacturing, technology developn®rgtem integration, and test and evaluation offgrifor national security platforms and
programs. Our principal products and solutionsral&@ed to Command, Control, Communications, ComgutCombat Systems, Intelligence,
Surveillance and Reconnaissance (“C5ISR”"). We ajtercustomers products, solutions, services apdréige to support their mission critical
needs by leveraging our skills across our coreioffeareas in C5ISR.

We design, engineer and manufacture specializetreléc products, components, subsystems and sgdtarmtelligence,
surveillance, and reconnaissance (ISR), electrattéck, electronic warfare, radar, and missileeaygplatforms; integrated product, software
and technology solutions for satellite communiaagigoroducts and solutions for unmanned systenesiysts and services related to
cybersecurity and cyberwarfare; products and smistior ballistic missile defense; weapons systeaisers; advanced network engineering
and information technology services; weapons systéatycle support and sustainment; military weapange operations and technical
services; and public safety, critical infrastruetsecurity and surveillance systems. We believestalle customer base, strong customer
relationships, intellectual property, broad arrdgantract vehicles, "designed in" positions omatggic national security platforms, large
technically oriented employee base possessingajrsd skills, specialized manufacturing faciliteesd equipment, extensive list of past
performance qualifications, and significant managetnand operational capabilities position us farcess.

We were incorporated in the state of New York oréeber 19, 1994 and began operations in March M@5.eincorporated in the
state of Delaware in 1998. We completed our exthefcommercial wireless industry, began buildingaional security focused business and
changed the Company's name to Kratos Defense &iBe8wlutions, Inc. in September 2007.
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Industry Update

In August 2011, Congress and the Administratiorcerththe Budget Control Act of 2011 (the “Budgen@ol Act”) in order to
permit an increase in the federal government'somong limit while reducing projected net governmepending over the next ten years. The
Budget Control Act required $900 billion in immetdiauts to discretionary spending for 2012-2024ldb established a bi-partisan
congressional Joint Select Committee on DeficitiRéidn (the “Joint Committee”), which was chargeithwecommending legislation that
would reduce net government spending by $1.2 t6 8illion over the next 10 years, in addition ke t$900 billion in immediate discretionary
spending reductions referenced above. The Jointndtiee was unable to identify the required reduttjdhereby triggering a provision of the
Budget Control Act called “sequestration,” whiclguées very substantial automatic spending cutg, lsgtween defense and non-defense
programs, that started in 2013 and continues ovémexyear period.

In January 2013, Congress enacted the AmericanayaxfRelief Act of 2012. It addressed a numbeswrfdode provisions and cert:
spending issues but left in place the sequestigrofah delaying its implementation to March 1, 20413d did not address other fiscal matters
such as the debt ceiling. Although debate on budgktctions continued through the first two mordh2013, no resolution was reached prior
to the March 1, 2013 sequester deadline. As atrebal President was required by law to issue deraranceling $85 billion in budgetary
resources across the U.S. Government for the releaof fiscal year (the period running from Octolet to September 30th, a “FY”) 2013.
The Office of Management and Budget (“*OMB?”) iniieport to Congress of March 1, 2013, entitlddMB Report to the Congress on the Ji
Committee Sequestratich¢alculated that, over the course of the FY 2Qh8,order required a 7.8 percent reduction in naemwet defense
discretionary funding and a 5.0 percent reductionan-exempt non-defense discretionary funding. Sdwiestration also required reductions
of 7.9 percent to non-exempt defense mandatoryranegs The sequestration report provided calculatafrithe amounts and percentages by
which various budgetary resources are requireétieuced, and a listing of the reductions requine@ach non-exempt budget account.
Federal agencies were directed to apply the samcemtage reduction to all programs, projects, aridies within a budget account, as
required by Section 256(k)(2) of Balanced Budget Bmergency Deficit Control Act, as amended (“BBEDY; and to operate in a manner
that is consistent with guidance provided by OMB/Aemorandum 133, Planning for Uncertainty with Respect to Fis¢ahr 2013 Budgeta
Resources and Memorandum 13-05, Agency Respotisibilor Implementation of Potential Joint Comnéttgequestration.

On April 10, 2013, the President delivered his psgzl 2014 budget to Congress. The President'si$idn FY 2014 defense budget
was slightly lower than final defense appropriasiéor FY 2013. While it largely reflected defengesding plans in the FY 2013 budget, it did
not reflect the reductions mandated by Part IhefBudget Control Act. On October 17, 2013, H.Ri®the ‘Continuing Appropriations Act
2014” was signed into law by the President, extegdne debt ceiling through February 7, 2014 antpterarily restoring funding for
government agencies. The legislation funded fedrgahcies through January 15, 2014, and at theOR'8 8nacted levels, which reflected the
first sequestration cuts that took effect in Maactl a discretionary funding level of $986 billithe amount available to the appropriators to
fund FY 2014 federal government programs.

On December 19, 2013, Congress passed the BipaBisdget Act of 2013 (the "Bipartisan Budget"). TBipartisan Budget is a two-
year plan that set spending for the Pentagon aret &deral agencies at $1.012 trillion for fis2@lL4. For FY 2015, overall spending v
increase only slightly to $1.014 trillion. The Biiaan Budget calls for extending part of the satgreinto 2022 and 2023 to get an additional
$23 billion in planned savings.

On February 15, 2014 legislation was signed thiaes the U.S. debt limit through approximately 8fa2015. In addition,
appropriators passed legislation that offset aifsagmt portion of the sequester cuts. This doardlate to a better outlook for the defense
industry than what was generally expected for 24 and 2015. However, we continue to expect lawelelayed awards on some of our
programs, with a related negative impact on ouemeres, earnings and cash flows.

In March 2014, the Pentagon submitted its FY 2008d&t Request of approximately $496 billion, whighs consistent with the
Bipartisan Budget Spending Authorization. Also imf¢h 2014, the Pentagon published the Quadrenei@ide Review ("QDR"). Both the
Pentagon’s FY 2015 Budget Request and the QDR ¢edwiportant insights for future national secufityding priorities and related
programs, which include cyber security and warfarenanned systems, satellite communications, reiggffense and electronic warfare.

In September 2014, the President signed a FY20b&ii@ing Resolution ("CR") that funded the govermtnarough December 11,
2014.
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On December 13, 2014, the Senate passed a $lidhtaimnibus appropriations bill, the “Consolidatetd Further Continuing
Appropriations Act, 2015. The legislation will fumdost of the government through FY 2015. The Cadat#d and Further Continuing
Appropriations Act, 2015 includes the Departmenbefense Appropriations Act of 2015, which provié&&4.2 billion in base and overseas
contingency operation funding, compared to $57[bilenacted in FY 2014 and $554.3 billion in thegtdent’s budget request. The base
budget appropriation was $496.1 billion, with $68ilion for Overseas Contingency Operations (O©@6the Department of Defense (DoD),
compared to $85.2 billion for DoD OCO enacted in Fx14. On February 2, 2015, Congress was sentpmged Fiscal Year (FY) 2016
Department of Defense budget request of $585.®ilh discretionary budget authority to fund bb#se budget programs and Overseas
Contingency Operations (OCO). The FY 2016 base biudig$534.3 billion includes an increase of $3@lkon over the FY 2015 enacted
budget of $496.1 billion. DoD’s FY 2016 OCO budgé&$50.9 billion is $13.3 billion - or about 21 pent - lower than the FY 2015 enacted
level of $64.2 billion, reflecting the end of thensbat mission and the continued draw down of foreesfghanistan. The combined request
represents an increase of $24.9 billion or aboutt fercent, reflecting the need to modernize theeféor the future and respond to emerging
security challenges.

The FY 2016 budget supports the 2014 Quadrennitdride Review (QDR) strategy, beginning with ite¢hpillars: protect the
homeland, build security globally, and project powed win decisively. The budget also reaffirmsfilie key priorities identified in the QDR.
These include the re-balance to the Asia-Pacifitore a strong commitment to security and stabifitizurope and the Middle East, a global
approach to countering violent extremists, key gtreents in technology, and strengthening alliacespartnerships around the world.

The FY 2016 budget proposes investments in the maxgion of key capability areas, including nucldaterrence, space, missile
defense, cyber security, and power protection. dudget also resubmits a number of critical refopmoposed in the FY 2015 budget, incluc
improvements to DoD business operations, forcetra modifications, streamlining our base infrasture, strengthening sexual assault
prevention and response programs, and providingdorice members and their families. The budgenhtamis a prudent balance among Joint
Force capacities, capabilities, and readinesscantinues to keep faith with service members aed families.

Unless a Fiscal 2016 Federal Budget is agreed thé¥president and the Congress, Sequestratiomsettth the beginning of Fede
Fiscal 2016, on October 1, 2015, and an approxifdase Defense Budget of $500 billion.

Current Reporting Segments

We historically operated in two reportable segmekitatos Government Solutions (“*KGS”) and Publide®a & Security (“PSS”). In
the fourth quarter of 2014, we expanded the nurabegportable segments to three as we separatdtiGBesegment into two reportable
segments: KGS and Unmanned Systems (“US”). Asudtreélse KGS reportable segment is comprised cdggregation of KratosGovernmen
Solutions operating segments, including our el@dtrproducts, satellite communications, modulateys and rocket support operating
segments. The Unmanned Systems reportable segoresists of our unmanned aerial system and unmagmoeshd system businesses
operating segment. The PSS reportable segmentiemachanged. This change in segment reportingpt@&son does not change any
consolidated totals. We made this segment repoctiagge because we believe that the new presemtailigrovide investors with greater
insight into our consolidated results and operatiagormance. Throughout this filing, all segmeribrmation for the years ended December
31, 2013 and 2012 has been recast to conform toeivesegment reporting presentation. We organizéosiness segments based primaril
the nature of the products, solutions and sendffesed. Transactions between segments are negpbiad accounted for under terms and
conditions similar to other government and comnadmmbntracts, and these intercompany transactignslaninated in consolidation. The
consolidated financial statements in this Annugb&eare presented in a manner consistent wittoparating structure. For additional
information regarding our reportable segmentsNsgte 14 of the Notes to Consolidated Financialéstents. From a customer and solutions
perspective, we view our business as an integrakede, leveraging skills and assets wherever plessib

Kratos Government Solutions Segment

The KGS segment provides C5ISR products, solutimaksservices primarily for strategic mission catinational security programs
and priorities. Our primary end customers in theX€egment are U.S. Government agencies, includm@eépartment of Defense ("DoD"),
classified agencies, intelligence agencies, civiigencies, other national security agencies anttlamd security related agencies. Certain
other customers in the KGS segment include forgimrernments, and to a lesser degree, commercitdroass, both domestic and foreign. ¢
C5ISR products, solutions, and services includddtiewing:
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Electronic Warfare/Attack and Intelligence, Recassance and Surveillancé/e design, engineer and manufacture a wide vaoiety
radio frequency (“RF”) and microwave componentfsyistems and systems for use in command and cayst@ms, flight instrumentation,
weapons sensors, radar, communication systemsraglgcwarfare, electronic attack and ISR systehs. products are integrated into many
the DoD's ground, air, and sea-based CSISR plasfokmy programs include the Trident Il D5 Missti)-18G Growler, P-8 Poseidon, E-2D
Hawkeye, RC-135 Rivet Joint, F-15 Eagle, Griped,6H-alcon, Eurofighter Typhoon, F-18 E/F Super legrAPR 39, AESA radar upgrades,
SEWIP, AMRAAM, Iron Dome, Sling of David, Arrow, Bak, Spyder and Firefinder Radar.

Satellite Command and Control, Satellite Commuiocet Support, Signal Monitoring, Interference Déimt, and GeolocationVe
provide integrated solutions for the satellite camications and reconnaissance markets. Our prodactsmpass satellite ground systems an(
infrastructure, including specialized equipment praprietary software for satellite command andtadnOur products and services are also
focused on assured command and control of satktike, including monitoring links between satallt base stations, and mobile assets su
unmanned vehicles; assuring quality of service;detdcting, locating and defending against interfee and cyber attacks. Our solutions are
also deployed in support of many next-generatiditany, national security related and civilian dbte systems including GPS (OCX),
environmental systems (GOES-R, NPP, NPOESS), gicatearning (SBIRS), communication systems (AEHFG® MUOS, TDRSS,

Iridium), confidential programs, micro satelliteograms and a majority of global commercial SATCOJjdtems.

Ballistic Missile Defense Test and Evaluatitie have expertise in the area of ballistic missit# and evaluation products and
services, primarily dedicated to AEGIS Ballisticddile Defense and Missile defense Agency (MDA) maiss This includes exclusive rights
the marketing of the Oriole Rocket System for NadiloSecurity related target products, solutionssargices, sounding rockets and suborbital
research. We possess both the intellectual propedysubject matter expertise in sensors modefidgsanulation associated with a wide range
of missile technologies. This area of our busirkEsaslops and produces cost effective ballistic heiskefense targets. These ballistic missile
targets or AEGIS Readiness Assessment Vehi¢leSRAV”) are a key test and evaluation componenttfer U.S. AEGIS based Ballistic
Missile Defense forces and MDA systems. We alseigetechnology, products, services and solutietesed to hypersonic vehicles, directed
energy weapons and the electromagnetic rail gun.

Cyber and ITWe provide a variety of cybersecurity productsyiohs and services to the DoD, intelligence comityand
commercial customers. We offer NeuralStand dopplerVUE® our proprietary software based network managememugts, via software
license and maintenance sales, which also seragkdform for incremental network-based serviceskwWe have extensive experience
building complex and secure networks for the U.8v&nment and possess in-depth experience withonketperations centers. We also scan
our customers' networks for cyber threats. Werarelved in a wide range of services, includingatiation, upgrade and maintenance of
command, control, computing, and surveillance systeor customers such as the Department of Homeaedrity (‘“DHS”), the U.S. State
Department and the Space and the Naval Warfare®@gsCenter.

Learning, Performance and Training Solutiofgur learning, performance and training solutionssist of a broad range of products
and service capabilities. We design, manufactudenaarket full-scale training simulators for fixedng aircraft (Harrier and Prowler), rotary-
wing aircraft (UH-60 Blackhawk, CH-47 Chinook, a@tH-53 Sea Stallion) and ground combat vehicles Mddams Main Battle Tank,
M2/M3 Bradley fighting vehicles and High MobilityrAllery Rocket Systems or HIMARS)), and Aircrewrttial Environmental Trainer
systems. We deliver training solutions and web-tathbr satellite-based interactive distance leayfiam customers in the DoD, other
government agencies, universities and commercigrozations. Our training solutions include sersjqaoduct development, and tools
addressing a wide range of related disciplinesitithide deep human performance and competencydmessls analysis. We specialize in
delivering full lifecycle manpower, personnel angining support for acquisition programs and a €@smain analysis program supporting
program systems integration requirements. Our iatiee design and development group delivers trgisislutions that span classroom, field,
e-learning, simulation, mobile and serious gamiaelivdry modalities as well as incorporating leagnimanagement services in our own
learning management platform or customer-basedisnil

Missile Range Operations and Technical Serviédsey area of differentiation for us is within tha@ssile, gun range and related
technical service areas. We have resources stdtemaany major range locations throughout the,nSluding the Naval Air Warfare Center
Pt. Mugu, the Hawaii Pacific Missile Range Faciliye White Sands Missile Range, New Mexico and\theal Service Warfare Center
Dahlgren Division. Our services include aerial &rgperations and maintenance, ballistic missifgeadefense system operations, surface an
undersea target operations and maintenance, msgsilems operations and maintenance, range s, opegations planning and support, test
and evaluation target launch operations, hazaroisrials management, supply and logistics sugpattmanufacturing.
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Weapon Systems Lifecycle Sustainment, SupportxedstonWe provide weapons systems lifecycle sustainmepipart, and
extension services for the DoD and foreign govems€el hese services focus on maintaining, testigrapairing certain weapons systems
such as the Chaparral, Avenger and HAWK missiléesys.

Manufacturing of Specialized Modular Systems, TattCombat Products, Shelters and Enclosures fd6@55ystems, Command anc
Control Modular Systems for UAVs, Modular Data @estand Critical Infrastructure Shelters, Weapogst8ms and Warfighter Related
SystemsWe provide tactical combat vehicle shelters for&®lsystems. We provide specialized modular systemdASs, weapons systems,
missile systems, radars, electromagnetic rail directed energy weapon systems and warfightereglgystems. Our specialized modular
products include lightweight, high-strength enclesufor widely recognized military programs andfglans such as the Patriot Missile
Defense system, Littoral Combat Ship and the DDGO1Destroyer. Our products and solutions are usadpport UAS platforms such as the
MQ 1C Gray Eagle, MQ-1C Sky Warrior, Gorgon St&€-8 Fire Scout, RQ-4B Broad Area Maritime Sunagilte and the Persistent Threat
Detection System ISR platform.Our modular dataeenand critical infrastructure shelters are useddémmercial applications as well as for
the protection of U.S employees stationed in caisagland embassies throughout the world. Many opmgducts include high altitude
electromagnetic pulse protection and other typedeasftromagnetic, electronic warfare and othergumtitns. Our product design approach
focuses on highly engineered enclosures and fasilihat have the flexibility to be modified to yemique customer specifications. We
routinely design, integrate and install other congras and systems into our standard products,asicbmmand, control and communication
systems infrastructure, racks and cabinets and pdisiibution and lighting.

Unmanned Systems Segment

In the US segment we design, engineer, manufadest,and operate composite unmanned aerial tdrgeé systems such as the
BQM-167A, BQM-167i, BQM-177A, BQM-177i, and BQNI78 or Firejet. We also supply UAS platforms wiémnsors, avionics and electro
components including electro-optical/infrared sesstaining systems and ground systems. We alsaufaeture and provide avionics systems
and ground flight control systems. We have manufact the air frame for the Miniature Air Launchedddy (MALD) unmanned aerial
system. We engineer, design, manufacture and @peoatmand, control and communications systemsuoremous unmanned ground and
seaborne platforms and systems. We are currentigyelopment of a high performance Unmanned Coweasal System (UCAS) utilizing
our existing UAS technology, aircraft and assets.

Public Safety & Security Segment (Critical Infrastcture Security)

Our PSS segment provides independent integrateudityesolutions for homeland security, public sgfetritical infrastructure, and
strategic assets for government, industrial andneemial customers. Our solutions include designémgiineering, installing, operating and
servicing physical security systems and technokotiat protect people, critical infrastructureatgic assets, and property and make facilitie:
more secure and efficient. We provide solutionstioh areas as the design, engineering and operdtammmand and control centers; the
design, engineering, deployment and integratioacagss control; building automation and controlnownications; digital and closed circuit
television security and surveillance; fire and Bifety; maintenance and services and product suppwices.

We provide solutions for customers in the criticditastructure, power generation, power transpuartlear energy, financial, IT,
healthcare, education, transportation and petroaata industries, as well as certain governmentraililary customers. For example, we
provide biometrics and other access control teauie$ to customers such as pipelines, electriéa$gmunicipal port authorities, power
plants, communication centers, large data cergerssrnment installations and other commercial @nigses. We have comprehensive
experience providing engineering and design seswat@ny phase of a project lifecycle, includingggam management, engineering design,
system engineering, operations and maintenancanggtated telecommunications.

Security Systems Integratide have broad experience integrating security sesvand solutions across a number of network and
communications platforms. In particular, PSS hasresive experience and has developed significastbmer relationships by providing best-
in-class systems integration services on a vaaeptatforms including digital (IP) surveillance@security, building automation systems and
controls, fire and life safety systems, accessrobanhd perimeter protection, and service and reasnice of the aforementioned systems.

Competitive Strengths

We believe we have robust intellectual propertpadalities, customer relationships, platform pasis and past performance
qualifications in our respective business areasuding a work force that is experienced with tlagious
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programs and platforms we support and the customeiserve. We believe the following key strengtissimguish us competitively:

Significant and highly specialized experientlrough existing customer engagements and the goment-focused acquisitions we
have performed on and completed over the pastaeyears, we have amassed significant and higldgiafized experience in areas directly
related to C5ISR, including cybersecurity, cybeffas, information assurance and situational awasmailitary range operations and
technical services; missile, rocket, and weapostesys test and evaluation; mission launch servioesieling and simulation; UAS and UGS
products and technology; advanced network engingemd IT services; and public safety, security sumyeillance systems integration. We
also produce products and provide solutions andcgr related to certain C5ISR platforms, unmarsystem platforms, weapons systems,
national security related assets and Warfightetesys. This collective experience, or past performeayualifications, is a requirement for the
majority of our contract vehicles and customer gegaents. Many of our approximately 3,600 employea& specialized national security
expertise. Many of the products that we produckides or contain our intellectual property. Manytloé program positions we have are on a
“sole source” basis. We believe these charactesiséipresent a significant competitive strengthosition us to win renewal or follow-on
business.

Specialized national security focus aligned witlssidn-critical national security prioritiesContinued concerns related to the threats
posed by certain foreign nations and terroristehlmused the U.S. Government to identify natioealidty as an area of functional and
spending priority. Budget pressures, particulaghated to DoD spending, have placed a premium weldeing and fielding relatively loweost
high-technology solutions to assist in nationausigg missions. Our primary capabilities and arebfocus, listed below, are strongly aligned
with the objectives of the U.S. Government:

. Unmanned syster

. Satellite communications and radio frequency deta
. Electronic warfare, attack, missile, and radareays

. Intelligence, surveillance and reconnaiss:

. Ballistic missile defen:

. Command, control and combat syst

. Cybersecurity and information assurs

Diverse base of key contracts with low concentratiany of our contracts are single-award and or solece in nature, where Kratos
is the only awardee by the customer. In many casgsability to obtain single award, sole sourcatcacts is due to our intellectual property,
past performance qualifications and relative exgrexe. Additionally, as a result of our businessettgyment focus on securing key contracts,
we are also a preferred contractor on numerous-yedt, government-wide acquisition contracts (“G@A&X) and multiple award contracts
("MACs"). Our preferred contractor status provideswith the opportunity to bid on billions of daaof business each year against a discrete
number of other pre-qualified companies. We hakighly diverse base of contracts with no contrapresenting more than 5% of 2014
revenue. Our fixed-price contracts, almost all biak are production contracts, represent approxin@®3% of our 2014 revenue. Our cost-
plus-fee contracts and time and materials contragiesent approximately 12% and 5% , respectialgur 2014 revenue. We believe our
diverse base of key contracts and low reliancenynome contract provides us with a stable, balameeenue stream.

In-depth understanding of customer missiMis. have a reputation for successfully providingsiais-critical products, solutions and
services to our customers. Our long-term relatigosstvith the U.S. Air Force, U.S. Army, and U.S.M\and other national security related
customers and agencies enable us to develop apih-dnderstanding of their missions and techmalirements. In addition, the majority of
our employees are located at our customer sitesgcatre manufacturing facilities or at criticalragtructure locations, all of which provides
valuable strategic insight into our customers' amganissions and future program requirements. Thiderstanding of our customers' missic
requirements and needs, in conjunction with thetetsic location of our employees, enables us teraéfichnical solutions tailored to our
customers' specific requirements and evolving missbjectives. In addition, once we are on-sitdaitustomer, we have historically been
successful in winning new and recompete business.

Significant cash flow visibility driven by stabladilog.As of December 28, 2014 , our total backlog (seek®a& below) was
approximately $1.1 billion , of which approximaté$62.0 million was funded backlog. The majorityooi sales are from orders issued undel
long-term contracts, typically three to five yearsluration. Our contract backlog provides vistgiinto stable future revenue and cash flow
over a diverse set of contracts.

Highly skilled employees and an experienced managetaamWe deliver our services through a skilled and primaechnically
oriented workforce of approximately 3,600 employé®sr senior managers have significant experience
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with U.S. Government agencies, the U.S. militargt BhS. Government contractors. Many of our empleyead National Security clearances.
Members of our management team have experiencerggdwsinesses both organically and through adiprisi. We believe that the
cumulative experience and differentiated experfseur personnel in our core focus areas, coupli#u eur sizable employee base, allow us to
qualify for and bid on larger projects in a primantracting role.

Our Strategy

Our strategy is to continue to grow our business lesding provider of highly differentiated teclogy, products, solutions and
services in our core areas of focus, as noted quslyi, by delivering comprehensive, leading techgglproducts, high-end engineering
services, technical solutions, product manufactyramd IT solutions to U.S. Government agencieslgwmproving our margin rates, overall
profitability and operating cash flows. To achiewg objective, we intend to primarily focus on imtel growth and to eliminate costs where
possible.

Internal Growth

We are focused on generating internal growth bytaliging on our current contract base and customlationships, expanding
product, solution and service offerings providedto existing technology, intellectual propertydgroduct, customers, and expanding our
overall customer and contract base.

Expand Technology Product, Solution and Servicer®ffs Provided to Existing customevge are focused on expanding the
technology products, solutions and services weigeoto our current customers by leveraging oumgtneelationships, technical capabilities
past performance record and by offering a widegeaof comprehensive technology rich products ahatisas as we make select investments
in specialized products and solutions we believelmgrowth areas for us. In regard to areas dfiglmation, our product and service offeril
include manufacturing of specialized defense ed@its products, integrated technology solutionsédellite communications and specialized
unmanned aerial targets, unmanned aerial systechsrananned ground systems. We believe our undeéiagof customer missions,
processes, needs and requirements, and our abilitgliver low cost, technology leading productd anlutions, position us well for success in
the current constrained budget environment.

Capitalize on Current Contract Basé/e are pursuing new program and contract opporéisnitnd awards as we build the business
with our expanding technology base, contract pbofand product, solution and service offeringse We also aggressively pursuing several
new National Security programs, including SEWIP,NGMDR, SABR, F-35, AESA upgrades, 3DELRR directebrgy systems, hypersonic
systems, electromagnetic rail gun systems, unmaoomdbat aerial systems, unmanned ground systemshaotics. We also are aggressively
pursuing task orders under existing contract vekith maximize our revenue and strengthen our mgsteelationships.We have developed
several internal tools that facilitate our abilitytrack, prioritize and win task orders under éheshicles. Combining these tools with our
technical expertise, our strong past performancerdeand our knowledge of our customers' needsldlpmsition us to win additional task
orders.

Expand Customer and Contract Ba®ée are also focused on expanding our customeribasareas with significant growth
opportunities by leveraging our technology captédi industry reputation, long-term customer iet&thips and diverse contract base. We
anticipate that this expansion will enable us hothursue additional higher value work and to ferttliversify our revenue base across the
Government and with international and commerciat@mers.

Improve Operating MargindVe believe that we have opportunities to increageoperating margins and improve profitability by
capitalizing on our corporate infrastructure inveshts and internally developed tools, improvingceghcies and reducing costs, and
concentrating our efforts on increasing the peagabf revenues generated from high value-addeiiamis.

Capitalize on Corporate Infrastructure Investmetstecent periods, we have made significant investsiin our senior management
and corporate infrastructure in anticipation otifetrevenue growth for cyber security threats,dased and changing regulations we are st
to, and the changing national security environm€hése investments included hiring senior execatwigh significant experience in the
national security industry, strengthening our in&controls over financial reporting and accoumsitaff in support of public company
reporting requirements, making significant investtseo enhance security for cyber attacks, andredipg our backlog and bid and proposal
pipeline. We will be allocating additional resowsde our pursuit of new, larger and highly techh@antract opportunities, leveraging our
increased scale and robust past performance aquagidins. We believe our management experience ampo@te infrastructure are more typi
of a company with a much larger revenue base thas @e therefore anticipate that, to the extentrevenue grows, we will be able to
leverage this infrastructure base and increaseperating margins.
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Strategic Acquisitions

We have acquired and integrated businesses thataueprimary strategic objectives of expanding oustomer relationships,
enhancing our current portfolio, increasing ourrallgpast performance qualifications and furthering strategic positioning on national
security priority programs. Our recent acquisitians described below.

Composite Engineering, Inc. (“CEi”): We acquiredi@iJuly 2012. CEi is a vertically integrated méamturer and developer of
unmanned aerial target systems and composite stesatised for national security programs. Its dsare designed to replicate some of the
most lethal aerial threats facing warfighters atnatsgic assets. CEi's customers include U.S. araigh governments. CEi is a part of the US
reportable segment.

Critical Infrastructure Business: We acquired &ical infrastructure security and public safetyteps integration business in
December 2011. The Critical Infrastructure Busirdssigns, engineers, deploys, manages and maisfa@cglty security systems at some of
the United States' most strategic asset and dritifrastructure locations. Additionally, these sgty systems are typically integrated into
command and control system infrastructure or conthtamters. Approximately 15% of the revenues ofGhical Infrastructure Business are
recurring in nature due to the operation, mainteaar sustainment of the security systems onceoglegl The critical infrastructure busines
part of the Company's PSS reportable segment.

See Note 3 of the Notes to Consolidated Finanda&ksents contained within this Annual Report fotler information regarding o
acquisitions.

Customers

A representative list of our customers in our K@8 &S segments during 2014 included the U.S. Aic&0U.S. Army, U.S. Navy,
U.S. Marines, Missile Defense Agency, the DHS, NASAreign Military Sales (“FMS”), the U.S. SoutheZommand, U.S. Intelligence
Community and certain classified customers. In 20bpresentative customers in the PSS segmentliediIMetropolitan Transportation
Authority of New York, Prince George’s County PabBchools, Children’s Hospital of Philadelphia, ila Colleges, University of New
Hampshire, City of Galveston, Texas Orthopedic htaggPort Authority of New York & New Jersey, Prmtial, New York University,
Fidelity, Scripps Clinic, PNC Bank, Halliburton, &, Chevron, Mellon Bank, Calpine Power Plants, GapgHealth, DuPont Fabros, BP
America, University of Houston, Meridian Health avémorial Hermann Hospital System.

Revenue from the U.S. Government (which includesSl-Mcludes revenue from contracts for which wetheeprime contractor as
well as those for which we are a subcontractorthadiltimate customer is the U.S. Government. Reeerirom U.S. Government agency
customers in aggregate accounted for approximétedy , 64% and 59% of total revenues in 2012 , 2Gi8® 2014 , respectively.

Backlog

As of December 29, 2013 and December 28, 2014 hacklog was approximately $1.1 billion in both ggeeaf which $541.0 million
was funded in 2013 and $662.0 million was fundeddh4 . Backlog is our estimate of the amount wénele we expect to realize over the
remaining life of awarded contracts and task ortleaswe have in hand as of the measurement dateto@l backlog consists of funded and
unfunded backlog. We define funded backlog as estthfuture revenue under government contractgashkdorders for which funding has
been appropriated by Congress and authorized foraditure by the applicable agency, plus our esérofthe future revenue we expect to
realize from our commercial contracts that are ufide orders. Our funded backlog does not incltlie full potential value of our contracts
because Congress often appropriates funds to loebysan agency for a particular program of a cantoa a yearly or quarterly basis even
though the contract may call for performance oveumber of years. As a result, contracts typicatly only partially funded at any point dur
their term, and all or some of the work to be perfed under the contracts may remain unfunded ualedsintil Congress makes subsequent
appropriation and the procuring agency allocateslifug to the contract.

Unfunded backlog reflects our estimate of futureereie under awarded government contracts and tdsksofor which either funding
has not yet been appropriated or expenditure hiagetdeen authorized. Our total backlog does not
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include estimates of revenue from government-wimgigsition contracts or General Services Admintsiraschedules beyond awarded or
funded task orders, but our unfunded backlog doesde estimates of revenue beyond awarded or €utadd orders for other types of
indefinite delivery, indefinite quantity contradiased on our experience under such contracts arldrscontracts. Unfunded backlog also
includes priced options, which consist of the aggte contract revenues expected to be earnedeasilaof a customer exercising an option
period that has been specifically defined in thginal contract award.

Contracts undertaken by us may extend beyond care fecordingly, portions are carried forward frome year to the next as part of
backlog. Because many factors affect the schedolipgojects, no assurance can be given as to wehamue will be realized on projects
included in our backlog. Although funded backlogresents only business that is considered to bg fire cannot guarantee that cancellations
or scope adjustments will not occur. The majoritjumded backlog represents contracts with termaswould entitle us to all or a portion of
our costs incurred and potential fees upon cartaaildy the customer.

Management believes that year-to-year comparisbhaaklog are not necessarily indicative of futteeenues. The actual timing of
receipt of revenues, if any, on projects includebdacklog could change because many factors dffectcheduling of projects. In addition,
cancellation or adjustments to contracts may odgacklog is typically subject to large variatiomserfi quarter to quarter as existing contracts
are renewed or new contracts are awarded. Additjoradl U.S. Government contracts included in Hagk whether or not funded, may be
terminated at the convenience of the U.S. Goveramen

Employees
As of December 28, 2014 , we had a work force praximately 3,600 full-time, part-time and on-cathployees.
Competition

Our market is competitive and includes the fullgamf companies in the U.S. defense industry aadntflormation, services and
security integration industries. Many of the coniparthat we compete against have significantlytgrfnancial, technical and marketing
resources and generate greater revenues than \@ohpetition in the KGS and US segments includedtiee, large U.S. Government
contractors such as Northrop Grumman, LockheediMaBeneral Dynamics, SAIC, Leidos, Engility, ITys$ems, Computer Sciences
Corporation, Raytheon, BAE Systems, L3, Orbital/ABo6eing, and CACI. While we view government coatoas as competitors, we often
team with these same companies in joint proposadls the delivery of our services for customersrfivo competitors include smaller and
mid-tier government contractors such as AeroVironthAPI Technologies, iRobot and Mercury Computgst&ms. Intense competition and
long operating cycles are both key characteristiaaur business within the defense industry. tasmmon in the defense industry for work on
major programs to be shared among a number of coiegad company competing to be a prime contraat@ubcontractor on an award may,
upon final award of the contract to another contpetbecome a subcontractor for the final primet@gtor. It is not unusual to compete for a
contract award with a peer company and simultardgqesform as a supplier to or be a customer of $ame competitor on other contracts, or
vice versa. The nature of major defense prograorsjucted under binding contracts, allows compathiasperform well to benefit from a ley
of program continuity not frequently found in othiedustries. Competition in the PSS segment indugiemens Building Technology, John:
Controls, Diebold, and Convergint Technologies, agothers.

We believe that the principal competitive factarour ability to win new business include past parfance qualifications, customer
relationships, domain and technology expertiselledtual property positions, the ability to remamntract vehicles, the ability to deliver
results within budget (time and cost), reputataxgountability, staffing flexibility, and projectanagement expertise, and our ability to deliver
cost effective products, solutions and servicesrieet our customers’ requirements. We believeability to compete also depends on a
number of additional factors, including the abilitfjour customers to perform the services themsedwel competitive pricing for similar
services. The current Federal Procurement envirahisalriven primarily by “low price, technicallyceeptable” contract award decisions.
Accordingly, innovation and the ability for a caattor to quickly deliver a low cost, technicallynepliant solution or product are critical in the
current competitive environment. In addition, cotitpe bid protests have become more prevalentenctivrent competitive environment,
resulting in further delay of contract procuremactivity.

In the U.S. defense industry, IT, and services etatkhe U.S. Government has stressed competitidmiiordability in connection
with its future procurement of products and serwidehis has lead to fewer sole source awards, Aasveore emphasis on cost
competitiveness. In addition, the DoD has annoumses@ral initiatives to improve efficiency, refoqusorities, modify contract terms, and
enhance DoD best practices including those uspdomure goods and services from defense contra@eesthe Industry Background sectio
Item 7 “Management's Discussion and Analysis ofRaial Condition and Results of Operations” andltitistry Update section in Item 1
"Business" contained within this Annual
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Report. These initiatives, when implemented, togettith planned reductions in defense spendingdeage likely to result in fewer new
opportunities for our industry as a whole with mdesnanding terms. A reduced opportunity set idyike intensify competition within the
industry as companies compete for a more limitédseew programs.

Research and Development

We believe that our future success depends upoalblity to continue to develop new products andises, and enhancements to and
applications for our existing products and servi€asr research and development expenses were 8illli@ , $21.4 million and $23.0

million , respectively, in 2012 , 2013, and 20késpectively. We intend to continue our focus @earch and development as a key strategy
for growth, which will focus on investments in tleoBelds that we believe will offer the greatespogunity for growth and profitability. Our
current primary internal research and developm#R&D") focus areas include unmanned systems, edeat warfare, satellite
communications and signal monitoring.

Intellectual Property

We believe that our continued success dependsga [aart on our proprietary technology, the inttllal skills of our employees and
the ability of our employees to continue to inn@vatd/e rely on a combination of patent, copyrigiidémark and trade secret laws, as well as
confidentiality agreements, to establish and ptatec proprietary rights.

As of December 28, 2014 , we held U.S. patentSargign patents. We do not consider our busineg® tmaterially dependent upon
any individual patent. We will continue to file apdrsue patent applications when and where ap@tepio attempt to protect our rights in our
proprietary technologies. We also encourage oul@mps to continue to invent and develop new teldyies so as to maintain our
competitiveness in the marketplace.

We own or have rights to use certain trademarksj@emarks and trade names that we use in congmuetith the operation of our
business. Certain of our trademarks have also teggstered in selected foreign countries.

Government Regulation

We are subject to various government regulatiorduding various U.S. Government regulations asrdractor and subcontractor to
the agencies of the U.S. Government. Among the sigsificant U.S. Government regulations affecting business are:

the Federal Acquisition Regulations and supplentemgtency regulations, which comprehensively reguilhé formation,
administration, and performance under governmentraots;

the Truth in Negotiations Act, which requires dartition and disclosure of all cost and pricingadisi connection with contract
negotiations;

the Cost Accounting Standards, which impose ac@ogiméquirements that govern our right to reimboreet under cost-based
government contracts;

the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, which prohikit$. companies from providing anything of valuatfreign official to help obtait
retain or direct business, or obtain any unfairaedages;

the False Claims Act and the False Statementswkith, respectively, impose penalties for paymemasie on the basis of false facts
provided to the government and impose penaltigheiasis of false statements, even if they doesatlt in a payment; and

laws, regulations and executive orders restrictirguse and dissemination of information classifa@chational security purposes and
the exportation of certain products and technieshd

We also need special security clearances to cantimuking on and advancing certain of our projedgth the U.S. Government.
Classified programs generally will require that @oenply with various Executive Orders, federal laamsl regulations and customer security
requirements that may include restrictions on havdevelop, store, protect and share informatiod,raay require our employees to obtain
government clearances.

The nature of the work we do for the federal goweznt may also limit the parties who may investrimequire us. Export laws may
keep us from providing potential foreign acquiretth a review of the technical data they would bguaring. In addition, there are special
requirements for foreign parties who wish to buyaoquire control or influence over companies thatiol technology or produce goods in the
security interests of the U.S. There may need ta teview under the Exon-Florio provisions of thef@hse Production Act. Finally, the
government may require a prospective foreign owmestablish intermediaries to actually run that pathe company that does classified
work, and establishing a subsidiary and its sepaypération may make such an acquisition less éippgda such potential acquirers.
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In addition, the export from the U.S. of certainoof products may require the issuance of a liceggbe U.S. Department of
Commerce under the Export Administration Act, agaded, and is implementing regulations as keptricef by the International Emergency
Economic Powers Act of 1977, as amended. Somergfragucts may require the issuance of a licensady).S. Department of State under
the Arms Export Control Act and its implementingu&tions, which licenses are generally hardebtaio and take longer to obtain than do
Export Administration Act licenses.

Our business may require compliance with statecalllaws designed to limit the uses of personat irdormation gathered online or
require online services to establish privacy pelci

Material Availability

We procure critical material and subsystems froh lbemestic and global supply partners. These gugpirces may be single
sources for certain components and the materiziged may have extended lead times. To supportontinuing customer needs, we have
taken steps to mitigate sourcing risks. This ineBidiorking closely with our suppliers to ensureifatmaterial and subsystem availability to
support our manufacturing plans. In some casediave elected to stock reserve material to enstuecfavailability.

Environmental

Our manufacturing operations are subject to magyirements under environmental laws. In the Ul& ,United States Environmer
Protection Agency and similar state agencies adti@nlaws that restrict the emission of pollutants the air, discharges of pollutants into
bodies of water and disposal of pollutants on ttoeigd. Violations of these laws can result in digant civil and criminal penalties and
incarceration. The failure to obtain a permit fertain activities may be a violation of environnanaw and subject the owner and operator to
civil and criminal sanctions. Most environmentaéagies also have the power to shut down an oparitibis operating in violation of
environmental law. U.S. laws also typically alloitizens to bring private enforcement actions in smituations. Outside the U.S., the
environmental laws and their enforcement vary aagt e more burdensome. We have management prografh@ocesses in place that are
intended to minimize the potential for violatiorfstlzese laws.

Other environmental laws, primarily in the U.S.deabs the contamination of land and groundwateraqdire the clean-up of such
contamination. These laws may apply not only tod¥vaer or operator of an on-going business, but ithe owner of land contaminated by ¢
prior owner or operator. In addition, if a parcetbntaminated by the release of a hazardous sestsuch as through its historic use as a
disposal site, any person or company that hasiboibdid to that contamination, whether or not it hdsgal interest in the land, may be subject
to a requirement to clean up the parcel.

Available Information

We file reports with the Securities and Exchangen@assion (“SEC”). We make available on our websitder “Investor
Relations/Financial Information/SEC Filings,” freecharge, our annual reports on Form 10-K, quigrteports on Form 10-Q, current reports
on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports asaooeasonably practicable after we electroniddélysuch materials with or furnish them
to the SEC. Our website addressvisw.kratosdefense.conYou may read and copy any materials we file whtth SEC at the SEC’s Public
Reference Room at 100 F Street, NE, Washington2@8219. You may obtain information on the operatibthe Public Reference Room by
calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330. The SEC alsataimis an Internet site that contains our repprtsgy and information statements, and
other information at www.sec.gov.

Iltem 1A. Risk Factors

You should carefully consider the following riskttas and all other information contained hereinveall as the information included
in this Annual Report and other reports and filimgade with the SEC in evaluating our business andpects. Risks and uncertainties, in
addition to those we describe below, that are mesently known to us or that we currently beliekeisnmaterial may also impair our busine
operations. If any of the following risks occurydusiness and financial results could be harmed #e price of our common stock could
decline. You should also refer to the other infainoracontained in this Annual Report, including @wnsolidated Financial Statements and
related notes.
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Risks Related to Our Business

The U.S. Government provides a significant portiohour revenue, and our business could be adversdfected by changes in the fiscal
policies of the U.S. Government and governmentalites.

In fiscal 2012 , 2013 and 2014 , we generated 66984 and 59% , respectively, of our total reverfua® contracts with the U.S.
Government (including all branches of the U.S. tauili), either as a prime contractor or a subcotdraiVe expect to continue to derive mos
our revenues from work performed under U.S. Govemaontracts. See the Industry Update sectioten IL “Business” contained in this
Annual Report for a discussion of the current buggeand funding constraints on U.S. Governmenhdjpgy and legislation enacted to reduce
the U.S. federal deficit. As a result, we have emeed and expect to continue to experience retacedelayed awards on some of our
programs, with a related negative impact to ouenexes, earnings and cash flows. Competitor bicepteialso have become more prevalent in
the current competitive environment resulting frdetreased government spending, which has led tteefucontract award delays. In addition,
any future changes to the fiscal policies of th8.lGovernment and foreign governmental entities dexyease overall government funding for
defense and homeland security, result in delagtserprocurement of our products and services diectoof funding, cause the U.S.
Government and government agencies to reducepgheihases under existing contracts, or cause thaxetrcise their rights to terminate
contracts at-will or to abstain from exercisingiops to renew contracts, any of which would havadwerse effect on our business, financial
condition, results of operations and/or cash flafvthe Congress and the President do not reaidtal fagreement for the federal 2016 budget,
sequestration returns on October, 2016, the impfaghich could adversely impact our business.

If we fail to establish and maintain important retinships with government agencies and prime comti@rs, our ability to successfull
maintain and develop new business may be advera#gcted.

Our reputation and relationship with the U.S. Gaweent, and in particular with the agencies of tl®xnd the U.S. intelligence
community, are key factors in maintaining and depilg new business opportunities. In addition, fteroact as a subcontractor or in
“teaming” arrangements in which we and other cantns bid together on particular contracts or paogs for the U.S. Government or
government agencies. We expect to continue to depemelationships with other prime contractorsdqguortion of our revenue for the
foreseeable future. Negative press reports regguabnflicts of interest, poor contract performaremployee misconduct, information security
breaches or other aspects of our business, regaroi@ccuracy, could harm our reputation. Adddibn as a subcontractor or team member,
we often lack control over fulfillment of a conttaand poor performance on the contract could sarpur reputation, even when we perform a
required. As a result, we may be unable to sucaelgshaintain our relationships with government iagjes or prime contractors, and any
failure to do so could adversely affect our abititynaintain our existing business and competeesstally for new business.

Many of our contracts contain performance obligatis that require innovative design capabilities, aexhnologically complex, requir
state-of-the-art manufacturing expertise, or are dependeipon factors not wholly within our control. Failre to meet these obligations
could adversely affect our profitability and futurprospects. Early termination of client contracts contract penalties could adversely affect
results of operations.

We design, develop, and manufacture technologiealiyanced and innovative products and serviceshadrie applied by our
customers in a variety of environments. Problentsdeiays in development or delivery as a resulssiies with respect to design, technology,
licensing and intellectual property rights, lakiogbility to achieve learning curve assumptionsnuofacturing materials or components could
prevent us from meeting requirements. Either wiercustomer may generally terminate a contraatfaterial uncured breach by the other. If
we breach a contract or fail to perform in accomawith contractual service levels, delivery schesluperformance specifications, or other
contractual requirements we could be terminatediéfault, and we may be required to refund moneyipusly paid to us by the customer or
to pay penalties or other damages. Even if we hat&reached, we may deal with various situatioosiftime to time that may result in the
amendment or termination of a contract. These stapsesult in significant current period charged/ar reductions in current or future
revenue. Other factors that may affect revenuepaofitability could be inaccurate cost estimatessign issues, unforeseen costs and expens
not covered by insurance or indemnification froma tlustomer, diversion of management focus in redipgrto unforeseen problems, and loss
of follow-on work.

If our subcontractors or suppliers fail to perforrtheir contractual obligations, our performance angputation as a contractor and ot
ability to obtain future business could suffer.

As a prime contractor, we often rely upon other panies as subcontractors to perform work we arigateld to perform for our
customers. As we secure more work under certaiuotontract vehicles, we expect to require aneiasing
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level of support from subcontractors that provideplementary and supplementary services to ourinffe. We are responsible for the work
performed by our subcontractors, even though inesoases we have limited involvement in that wdrknle or more of our subcontractors
fails to satisfactorily perform the agreed-uporvirss on a timely basis or violates U.S. Governnoentracting policies, laws or regulations,
our ability to perform our obligations as a prinentractor or meet our customers' expectations neagompromised. In extreme cases,
performance or other deficiencies on the part efsmbcontractors could result in a customer tertiigaour contract for default. A termination
for default could expose us to liability, includifigbility for the agency's costs of re-procuremewaiuld damage our reputation and could hurt
our ability to compete for future contracts.

We also are required to procure certain materiadsparts from supply sources approved by the Udve@ment. The inability of a
supplier to meet our needs or the appearance oftedait parts in our products could have a maltedaerse effect on our financial position,
results of operations or cash flows.

We face intense competition from many competitdratthave greater resources than we do, which corddult in price reductions, reduced
profitability or loss of market share

We operate in highly competitive markets and gdhyeemcounter intense competition to win contréoten many other firms,
including mid-tier federal contractors with speizatl capabilities and large defense and IT senpcegiders. Competition in our markets may
increase as a result of a number of factors, satheaentrance of new or larger competitors, inolgithose formed through alliances or
consolidation, or the reduction in the overall nembf government contracts. We may also face catigpefrom prime contractors for whom
we currently serve as subcontractors or teammatikgse prime contractors choose to offer custaseerices of the type that we are currently
providing. Recently, procurement awards have besedbon lowest price, technically acceptable praijgoin addition, we may face
competition from our subcontractors who, from titngime, seek to obtain prime contractor statusamtracts for which they currently serve
as a subcontractor to us.

Many of our competitors have greater financialhtécal, marketing and public relations resourcaggdr customer bases and greater
brand or name recognition than we do. These cotopetiould, among other things:

» divert sales from us by winning very largeale government contracts, a risk that is enhabgelde recent trend in
government procurement practices to bundle seriitedarger contracts and the recent trend of de/an a lowest price,
technically acceptable basis;

» divert sales from us by the award of governnoemtracts to our competitors who may be willindtd at substantially lower
prices;

» force us to charge lower prices

« adversely affect our relationships with curremstomers, including our ability to continue to wimmpetitively awarded
engagements in which we are the incumbent.

If we lose business to our competitors or are ftodower our prices, our revenue and our opegatiofits could decline.
Our business is dependent upon our ability to kgegre with the latest technological changes.

The market for our services is characterized bydrapange and technological improvements. Failamr@spond in a timely and cost
effective way to these technological developmerdsldresult in serious harm to our business andatipg results. We have derived, and we
expect to continue to derive, a substantial portibaur revenues from providing innovative engimegiservices and technical solutions thal
based upon today's leading technologies and thatarable of adapting to future technologies. Assalt, our success will depend, in part, on
our ability to develop and market service offeritigat respond in a timely manner to the technollgidvances of our customers, evolving
industry standards and changing customer prefesence

We believe that, in order to remain competitivéhia future, we will need to continue to invest gigant financial resources to
develop new offerings and technologies or to adaptodify our existing offerings and technologiegluding through internal research and
development, acquisitions and joint ventures oeoteaming arrangements. These expenditures coudd dur attention and resources from
other projects, and we cannot be sure that thgseneitures will ultimately lead to the timely despinent of new offerings and technologie:
identification of and expansion into new marketaelo the design complexity of our products, we fnatye future experience delays in
completing the development and introduction of mpeaducts. Any delays could result in increasedsostlevelopment or deflect resources
from other projects. In addition, there can be ssugance that the market for our offerings will @lep or continue to expand or that we will be
successful in

15




Table of Contents

newly identified markets as we currently anticipdtie failure of our technology to gain market gotaace could significantly reduce our
revenues and harm our business. Furthermore, wethe sure that our competitors will not develompeting technologies that gain market
acceptance in advance of our products.

Additionally, the possibility exists that our contipers might develop new technology or offeringattimight cause our existing
technology and offerings to become obsolete. Ifaildn our new product development efforts or pooducts or services fail to achieve ma
acceptance more rapidly than our competitors, bilityato procure new contracts could be negativatpacted, which could negatively impact
our results of operations and financial condition.

Loss of our GSA contracts or GWACs could impair caipility to attract new busines:

We are a prime contractor under several Genera&icsrAdministration ("GSA") contracts and Govermineide Acquisition
Contracts ("GWAC") vehicles. We believe that oduitighto provide services under these contracts$ edghtinue to be important to our business
because of the multiple opportunities for new eregagnts each contract provides. If we were to lesgosition as prime contractor on one or
more of these contracts, we could lose substamretv@nues and our operating results could suffeA G$tracts and other GWACSs typically
have a one or two-year initial term with multipletions exercisable at the government customertsation to extend the contract for one or
more years. We cannot be assured that our govetreustomers will continue to exercise the optiemaaining on our current contracts, nor
can we be assured that our future customers wellase options on any contracts we may receivharfuture.

Government contracts differ materially from standdcommercial contracts, involve competitive biddiagd may be subject to cancellation
or delay without penalty.

Government contracts frequently include provisitiveg are not standard in private commercial tratisas and are subject to laws and
regulations that give the U.S. Government rights memedies not typically found in commercial cootsaincluding provisions permitting the
U.S. Government to:

e terminate our existing contrac

» reduce potential future income from our existingtcacts

* modify some of the terms and conditions in our taxgscontracts

» suspend or permanently prohibit us from doing bessnwith the U.S. Government or with any specifieegnment agenc

* impose fines and penalti

» subject us to criminal prosecuti

» suspend work under existing multiple year cartg@nd related task orders if the necessary farelsot appropriated by
Congress;

» decline to exercise an option to extend an existindfiple year contract; a

« claim rights in technologies and systems inventiedeloped or produced by

In addition, government contracts are frequentlpi@ed only after formal competitive bidding proasssvhich have been and may
continue to be protracted and typically impose fmions that permit cancellation in the event thetessary funds are unavailable to the
government agency. Competitive procurements impabstantial costs and managerial time and effastdier to prepare bids and proposals
for contracts that may not be awarded to us. Inyntaises, unsuccessful bidders for government aziatese provided the opportunity to
formally protest certain contract awards throughous agencies, administrative and judicial chasinéle have experienced an increase in
competitor bid protests on contracts on which weawtke successful bidder due to the competitivérenment resulting from decreased
government spending. The protest process may sulashadelay a successful bidder's contract penfamce, result in cancellation of the
contract award entirely and distract managementm&i not be awarded contracts for which we bid, arfgbtantial delays or cancellation of
purchases may follow our successful bids as atreéslich protests.

Certain of our government contracts also contaimgdaizational conflict of interest” clauses thatilwblimit our ability to compete for
certain related follow-on contracts. For exampleewwe work on the design of a particular solutise,may be precluded from competing for
the contract to install that solution. While weiagely monitor our contracts to avoid these conéljate cannot guarantee that we will be able tc
avoid all organizational conflict of interest issue
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We may not receive the full amounts estimated unttex contracts in our backlog, which could reducerarevenue in future periods below
the levels anticipated and which makes backlog arcertain indicator of future operating results.

As of December 28, 2014 , our total backlog was@gmately $1.1 billion , of which $662.0 millionas funded. Funded backlog is
estimated future revenue under government conteactdask orders for which funding has been appatga by Congress and authorized for
expenditure by the applicable agency, plus oumegé of the future revenue we expect to realizenfooir commercial contracts that are under
firm orders. Although funded backlog representy dmisiness which is considered to be firm, cantielia or scope adjustments may still
occur. The remaining $437.0 million of our totatkkng as of December 28, 204unfunded. Unfunded backlog reflects our estinadtieiture
revenue under awarded government contracts anateeks for which either funding has not yet begprapriated or expenditure has not yet
been authorized. Unfunded backlog does not inchstienates of revenue from GWAC or GSA scheduleshéyawarded or funded task orc
but does include estimates of revenue beyond awand&inded task orders for other types of indédiielivery, indefinite quantity contracts.
The amount of unfunded backlog is not exact or gniged and is based upon, among other things, rearead's experience under such
contracts and similar contracts, the particulatamers, the type of work and budgetary expectati®us management may not accurately
assess these factors or estimate the revenue Wwealize from these contracts, and our fundedunidéd and total backlog may not reflect the
actual revenue ultimately received from these emtdr

Backlog is typically subject to large variationsrfr quarter to quarter and comparisons of backlog foeriod to period are not
necessarily indicative of future revenues. The @mi$ comprising our backlog may not result in actavenue in any particular period or at
and the actual revenue from such contracts magrdifbm our backlog estimates. The timing of reteffrevenues, if any, on projects incluc
in backlog could change because many factors dffiecscheduling of projects. Cancellation of owuatthents to contracts may occur.
Additionally, all U.S. Government contracts incldde backlog, whether or not funded, may be terteidat the convenience of the U.S.
Government. The failure to realize all amountsun loacklog could adversely affect our revenuesginds margins. As a result, our funded,
unfunded and total backlog as of any particulae eha&y not be an accurate indicator of our futuraiegs.

A preference for minorit-owned, small and small disadvantaged businessesddcompact our ability to be a prime contractor arertain
governmental procurement:

As a result of the Small Business AdministratioBEA") set-aside program, the federal government deyde to restrict certain
procurements only to bidders that qualify as miryeoiwned, small, or small disadvantaged businegsesa. result, we would not be eligible to
perform as a prime contractor on those programsragdneral would be restricted to no more than 49%e work as a subcontractor on thost
programs. An increase in the amount of procuremamder the SBA set-aside program may impact ouityatn bid on new procurements as a
prime contractor or restrict our ability to recortgpen incumbent work that is placed in the setegbgram.

U.S. Government in-sourcing could result in loss lofisiness opportunities and personnel.

The U.S. Government has continued to reduce theeptage of contracted services in favor of morerfagdemployees through an
initiative called “in-sourcing.” Over time, iseurcing could have an adverse effect on our bssjrimancial condition and results of operati
Specifically, as a result of in-sourcing govermingrocurements for services could be fewer andlsnia the future. In addition, work we
currently perform could be in-sourced by the fedgowernment and, as a result, our revenues cauleédtuced. Moreover, our employees
working on contracts could also be hired by thesgomnent. This loss of our employees would necassihe need to retain and train new
employees. Accordingly, the effect of in-sourcarghe continuation of in-sourcing at a fastentleapected rate, could have an adverse effec
on our business, financial condition, and resultsperations.

Our business could be negatively impacted by sdgutireats, including cybersecurity threats, andhet disruptions.

Many of the systems we develop, install and maintaiolve managing and protecting information irwes in intelligence, national
security and other sensitive or classified U.S. @oment functions. We face various security thréatduding cybersecurity threats, to gain
unauthorized access to this sensitive informatButh threats can come from external as well asnatsources. We also face threats to the
safety of our directors, officers, and employebgedts to the security of our facilities and infrasture; and threats from terrorist acts.
Although we utilize various procedures and conttolmonitor these threats and mitigate our exposuseich threats, there can be no assui
that these procedures and controls will be suffiicie preventing security threats from materialigitf any of these events were to materialize,
they could lead to the loss of sensitive informaticritical infrastructure, personnel or capal@btiessential to our operations and prevent us
from being eligible for further work on sensitiveadassified systems for U.S. Government custontargher, any losses we incur
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from such a security breach could exceed the pdilitiys under our errors and omissions and protlabtlity insurance. Any losses we incur,
any damage to our reputation or any limitation®oneligibility for additional work resulting frora security breach could materially reduce
our revenue and could have a material adverseteffeour business, financial condition and resoitgperations.

Cybersecurity attacks in particular are evolving arclude, but are not limited to, malicious softejsattempts to gain unauthorized
access to data, and other electronic security besathat could lead to disruptions in mission @aitsystems, unauthorized release of
confidential or otherwise protected information aodruption of data. We have experienced cyber#gcattacks and may experience them in
the future. These events could damage our repatatid lead to financial losses from remedial astidmss of business, loss of proprietary anc
trade secret information or potential liability.

If we experience systems or service failure, oupugation could be harmed and our customers coulg@s claims against us for damages
refunds.

We create, implement and maintain IT solutions #ratoften critical to our customers' operations. Wdve experienced, and may in
the future experience, some systems and servicedsj schedule or delivery delays and other problan connection with our work. If we
experience these problems, we may:

» lose revenue due to adverse customer rea

» berequired to provide additional services to aamsr at no charg

e cause customers to postpone, cancel or fail toreoatracts

* receive negative publicity, which could damage i@putation and adversely affect our ability tivaat or retain customers;
and

« suffer claims for substantial damag

We cannot ensure that provisions in our custometraots will be legally sufficient to protect usik are sued.

In addition, our errors and omissions and prodatility insurance coverage may not be adequatg,moacontinue to be available on
reasonable terms or in sufficient amounts to cover or more large claims, or the insurer may disctzoverage as to some types of future
claims. The successful assertion of any large ctajainst us could seriously harm our business. Evest successful, these claims could re
in significant legal and other costs, may be araigton to our management and may harm our reputati

Our products are complex and could have unknown &gt or errors, which may increase our costs, hasar reputation with customers,
give rise to costly litigation, or divert our resoees from other purpose.

Our products, including but not limited to unmannethicles, aerial targets, and ballistic missilgéds, are extremely complex and
must operate successfully with complex productsifather vendors. Despite testing, our products lcamained defects and errors and may i
the future contain defects, errors, or performaoblems when first introduced, when new versiansrancements are released, or even
these products have been used by our customeaspiriod of time. These problems could result ipemsive and time-consuming design
modifications or warranty charges, delays in thentuction of new products or enhancements, sicaunifi increases in our service and
maintenance costs, diversion of our personnel&ntitin from our product development efforts, expedao liability for damages, damaged
customer relationships, and harm to our reputatiogn,of which could materially harm our resultopgrations. In addition, increased
development and warranty costs could be substatihcould reduce our operating margins.

The existence of any defects, errors, or failunesur products or the misuse of our products caldd lead to lawsuits against us,
result in injury, death, or property damage, agghisicantly damage our reputation and support forgroducts in general.

Although we maintain insurance policies, we carprovide assurance that this insurance will be adtegio protect us from all
material judgments and expenses related to potéatiae claims or that these levels of insurandélve available in the future at economical
prices or at all. A successful liability claim cdukesult in substantial cost to us. Even if wefally insured as it relates to a claim, the claim
could nevertheless diminish our brand and divemagament’s attention and resources, which coulé havegative impact on our business,
financial condition, and results of operations.
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Our financial results may vary significantly from warter to quarter.

We expect our revenue and operating results tofrany quarter to quarter. Reductions in revenua jparticular quarter could lead to
lower profitability in that quarter because a reklly large amount of our expenses are fixed insthert-term. We may incur significant
operating expenses during the start-up and eatjestof large contracts and may not be able t@réze corresponding revenue in that same
guarter. We may also incur additional expenses vdoatracts are terminated or expire and are newed.

In addition, payments due to us from our customeayg be delayed due to billing cycles or as a refutilures of government
budgets to gain congressional and administratipmayal in a timely manner. The U.S. Governmensgsdi year ends September 30. If a fec
budget for the next federal fiscal year has nohkeggproved by that date in each year, our customayshave to suspend engagements that w
are working on until a budget has been approveg.ath suspensions may reduce our revenue in tinthfquarter of the federal fiscal yeau
the first quarter of the subsequent year. The Gdernment's fiscal year end can also trigger amed purchase requests from customers for
equipment and materials. Any increased purchaseests we receive as a result of the U.S. Goverrisnisttal year end would serve to
increase our third or fourth quarter revenue, hilltgenerally decrease profit margins for that dearas these activities generally are not as
profitable as our typical offerings.

Additional factors that may cause our financiabtsto fluctuate from quarter to quarter incluede addressed elsewhere in these
Risk Factors and the following factors, among ather

» the terms of customer contracts that affect théntinof revenue recognitio

» variability in demand for our services and solus

e commencement, completion or termination of consralciring any particular quart

« timing of shipments and product deliver

« timing of award or performance incentive fee natjce

» timing of significant bid and proposal co:

» the costs of remediating unknown defects, erropeoformance problems of our product offeril

» variable purchasing patterns under GSA Schedlileontracts, GWACSs, blanket purchase agreementsther indefinite
delivery/indefinite quantity contracts;

» restrictions on and delays related to the expodedénse articles and servic

» costs related to government inquir

» strategic decisions by us or our competitorshsas acquisitions, divestitures, spiffis and joint venture

» strategic investments or changes in business g¥f,

« changes in the extent to which we use subcontrs

+ seasonal fluctuations in our staff utilization &

» changes in our effective tax rate, includingraes in our judgment as to the necessity of theat@in allowance recorded
against our deferred tax assets; and

« the length of sales cycli

Significant fluctuations in our operating results & particular quarter could cause us to fallafidompliance with the financial
covenants related to our debt, which if not waivamlld restrict our access to capital and cauge take extreme measures to pay down our
debt under the credit agreement. In addition, flatbns in our financial results could cause oaclsprice to decline. See the risks and
uncertainties related to our ability to raise aiddial capital below ifWe may need additional capital to fund the growftour business, and
financing may not be available on favorable termsataall.”

Our margins and operating results may suffer if veaperience unfavorable changes in the proportionaufst-plus-fee or fixedprice
contracts in our total contract mix.

Although fixed-price contracts entail a greatek 1§ a reduced profit or financial loss on a cocticompared to other types of
contracts we enter into, fixed-price contractsagfly provide higher profit opportunities because may be able to benefit from cost savings
and operating efficiencies. In contrast, cost-ghescontracts are subject to statutory limits asfipmargins and generally are the least
profitable of our contract types. Our U.S. Governtmaistomers typically determine what type of cacitive enter into. Cost-plus-fee and
fixed-price contracts in our federal business anted for approximately 12% and 83% , respectivelygur federal business revenues for the
year endeDecember 28, 2014 . To the extent that we enternmire cost-plus-fee or less fixed-price contraciroportion to our total
contract mix in the future, our margins and operatiesults may suffer.
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Our cash flow and profitability could be reducedeikpenditures are incurred prior to the final reqstiof a contract.

We provide various professional services, spe@édljzroducts, and sometimes procure equipment atetiala on behalf of our
customers under various contractual arrangemerdam Eme to time, in order to ensure that we satisfr customers' delivery requirements
schedules, we may elect to initiate procuremeatlivance of receiving final authorization from tlevgrnment customer or a prime contractor
If our government or prime contractor customertgireements should change or if the government@iptime contractor should direct the
anticipated procurement to a contractor other tisar if the equipment or materials become obsaletequire modification before we are
under contract for the procurement, our investnretiie equipment or materials might be at risk & @annot efficiently resell them. This could
reduce anticipated earnings or result in a losgatieely affecting our cash flow and profitability.

We have incurred and may continue to incur goodwithpairment charges in our reporting entities, whicould harm our profitability.

As of December 28, 2014 , goodwill represented @yprately 52% of our total assets. In accordandh Rinancial Accounting
Standards Board (“FASB”) Accounting Standards Cumdifion (“ASC”) Topic 350 Intangibles-Goodwill ardther (“Topic 350”), we
periodically review the carrying values of our gadtito determine whether such carrying values excthe fair market value. If impairment
testing indicates that the carrying value of a répg unit exceeds its fair value, the goodwilltbé reporting unit is deemed impaired.
Accordingly, an impairment charge would be recogdifor that reporting unit in the period identified

The identification and measurement of impairmenbives the estimation of the fair value of repagtimits. Accounting for
impairment contains uncertainty because managemesit use judgment in determining appropriate assiongto be used in the measuren
of fair value. The estimates of fair value of repay units are based on the best information alkdlas of the date of the assessment,
incorporate management assumptions about expeadiee fcash flows and contemplate other valuatiohrtigues. Future cash flows can be
affected by changes in industry or market cond#jamong other things.

In 2012, as a result of our annual review, we réedra goodwill impairment charge of $82.0 milli@hated to our KGS segment to
reflect the declining market valuations and thenecoic uncertainty in the U.S. defense industry essalt of uncertainty in our business
environment due to the substantial fiscal and egoochallenges facing the U.S. Government. Givenclirrent market conditions and
continued economic uncertainty in the U.S. defendastry, including sequestration and issues suding the national debt ceiling, our future
revenues, profits and cash flows could be substintower than our current projections. Additiomahrket factors that could impact our
projections and our ability to successfully devet@pv products and platforms, for example our USrémpg unit forecasts include the
successful completion of certain performance dgdaten new unmanned systems platforms, and acceptdmew unmanned systems platfor
including from a political and government budgetstgndpoint. In addition, market-based inputs &dalculations in the impairment test, suck
as weighted average cost of capital, and marketiptad, could also be negatively impacted. Suctucirstances may result in the future
deterioration of the fair value of our reportingtarand an additional impairment of our goodwillidto continual changes in market and
general business conditions, we cannot predicthneand to what extent, our goodwill and long-tivetangible assets may be impaired in
future periods. Any resulting impairment loss colddm our profitability and financial condition.

Failure to properly manage projects may result idditional costs or claims.

Our engagements often involve large scale, higbiyex projects. The quality of our performancesanh projects depends in large
part upon our ability to manage the relationshifhwiur customers and to effectively manage thesgptaind deploy appropriate resources,
including third-party contractors and our own parsel, in a timely manner. Any defects or erroréadlure to meet customers' expectations
could result in claims for substantial damagesragais. Our contracts generally limit our liabilir damages that arise from negligent acts,
error, mistakes or omissions in rendering servioasur customers. However, we cannot be sure liegetcontractual provisions will protect us
from liability for damages in the event we are suadaddition, in certain instances, we guarantesgamers that we will complete a project k
scheduled date. If the project experiences a padoce problem, we may not be able to recover thiiadal costs we will incur, which could
exceed revenues realized from a project. Findllyei underestimate the resources or time we needrtplete a project with capped or fixed
fees, our operating results could be adverselctdte
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We use estimates when accounting for contracts, amg changes in such estimates could have an advef§ect on our profitability and ou
overall financial performance.

When agreeing to contractual terms, our managemakés assumptions and projections about futureitbomsl and events, many of
which extend over long periods. These projecti@sess the productivity and availability of labamplexity of the work to be performed, cost
and availability of materials, impact of delayedfpemance and timing of product deliveries. Cont@xcounting requires judgment relative to
assessing risks, estimating contract revenuesastd,and making assumptions for schedule anditadhssues. Due to the size and nature of
many of our contracts, the estimation of total rexes and costs at completion is complicated angsito many variables. For example,
assumptions are made regarding the length of tineemplete a contract since costs also includea#gdencreases in wages, prices for
materials and allocated fixed costs. Similarlyuaggtions are made regarding the future impact okfficiency initiatives and cost reduction
efforts. Incentives, awards or penalties relategeidormance on contracts are considered in estimetvenue and profit rates and are reco
when there is sufficient information to assesscipaited performance. Suppliers' assertions areasisessed and considered in estimating cos!
and profit rates.

Because of the significance of the judgment anichesion processes described above, it is posdilalernaterially different amounts
could be obtained if different assumptions wereduseif the underlying circumstances were to cha@jenges in underlying assumptions,
circumstances or estimates may have a materiatseleéfect upon the profitability of one or moretloé affected contracts, future period
financial reporting and performance. See the Giitheccounting Principles and Estimates sectiorteml 7 “Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggiems” contained within this Annual Report.

Our ability to utilize our net operating loss carfgrwards and certain other tax attributes may benited.

Federal and state income tax laws impose restngtim the utilization of net operating loss (“NOIaid tax credit carryforwards in
the event that an “ownership change” occurs foiptasposes, as defined by Section 382 of the Inté&teaenue Code of 1986, as amended
(“Section 382"). In general, an ownership changeuog when shareholders owning 5% or more of a ‘tmsporation” & corporation entitled
use NOL or other loss carryovers) have increaseid tlwnership of stock in such corporation by mibtv@n 50 percentage points during any 3
year period. The annual base Section 382 limitatiaralculated by multiplying the loss corporat®walue at the time of the ownership cha
by the greater of the long-term tax-exempt ratemeined by the Internal Revenue Service in the mohthe ownership change or the two
preceding months. This base limitation is subje@djustments, including an increase for built@ing recognized in the five year period after
the ownership change. In March 2010 , an “ownershgnge” occurred that will limit the utilizatiori NOL carryforwards. In July 2011 ,
another “ownership change” occurred. The March 20&08ership change limitation is more restrictiveprior years the company acquired
corporations with NOL carryforwards at the dateofuisition ("Acquired NOLs"). The Acquired NOLseasubject to separate limitations that
may further restrict the use of Acquired NOLs. A®sult, the Company's federal annual utilizatibiNGL carryforwards will be limited to at
least $27 million a year for the first five yeateseeding the March 2010 ownership change andstt $11.6 million for each year thereafter
subject to separate limitations for Acquired NOIfshe entire limitation amount is not utilized ényear, the excess can be carried forward an
utilized in future years. For the year ended Decam23, 2014 , there was no impact of such limitegion the income tax provision since the
amount of taxable income did not exceed the anima@htion amount. In addition, future equity offiegs or acquisitions that have equity as a
component of the purchase price could also cauae flownership change.” If and when any other “oishé changebccurs, utilization of th
NOL or other tax attributes may be further limitéd. discussed elsewhere, deferred tax assetsuglatithe NOL and credit carryforwards
offset by a full valuation allowance. In additiartilization of state tax loss carryforwards is degent upon sufficient taxable income
apportioned to the states.

Risks Related to Our Operations
We may need additional capital to fund the growthaur business, and financing may not be availalie favorable terms or at all.

We currently anticipate that our available capitelources, including our credit agreement and ¢ipgraash flow, will be sufficient t
meet our expected working capital and capital edjtere requirements for at least the next 12 marittesvever, these resources may not be
sufficient to fund the long-term growth of our busss. If we determine that it is necessary to rdghtional funds, either through an expansiol
or refinancing of our agreement or through pubtipiavate debt or equity financings, additionaldinting may not be available on terms
favorable to us, or at all. Disruptions in the ¢aland credit markets may continue indefinitelyragensify, which could adversely affect our
ability to access these markets. Limitations ontmrrowing base contained in our credit agreemeayt limit our access to capital, and we
could fall out of compliance with financial and ethcovenants contained in our credit agreementhwiificnot waived, would restrict our
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access to capital and could require us to pay dmwrexisting debt under the credit agreement. &udérs may not agree to extend additional
or continuing credit under our credit agreementaive restrictions on our access to capital. Ifweze to conduct a public or private offering
of securities, any new offering would be likelyditute our stockholders' equity ownership. If adegufunds are not available or are not
available on acceptable terms, we may not be alilgke advantage of available opportunities, dgvakw products or otherwise respond to
competitive pressures and our business, operagmgts or financial condition could be materialtivarsely affected.

Recent acquisitions and potential future acquisiti® could prove difficult to integrate, disrupt olrusiness, dilute stockholder value a
strain our resources

During 2011 and 2012, we acquired five companieshé future, we may acquire additional businefsatswe believe could
complement or expand our business or increaseustiomer base. Integrating the operations of acdliusinesses successfully or otherwise
realizing any of the anticipated benefits of aciioiss, including anticipated cost savings and aoddal revenue opportunities, involves a
number of potential challenges. The failure to nikese integration challenges could seriously haunfinancial condition and results of
operations. Realizing the benefits of acquisitidapends in part on the integration of operatiortsgersonnel. These integration activities are
complex and time-consuming, and we may encountexpected difficulties or incur unexpected costsluding:

» our inability to achieve the operating synergieicimated in the acquisitior

« diversion of management attention from ongoinghess concerns to integration mati

« difficulties in consolidating and rationalizing flatforms and administrative infrastructu

« complexities associated with managing the gaatycaseparation of the combined businesses anakdasng multiple
physical locations where management may determinedtidation is desirable;

« difficulties in integrating personnel from difft corporate cultures while maintaining focugpooviding consistent, high
quality customer service;

« difficulties or delays in transitioning U.S. Goverant contracts pursuant to federal acquisition legguns

» challenges in demonstrating to customers ofd&aind to customers of acquired businesses thatthesition will not result
in adverse changes in customer service standafussoress focus;

» possible cash flow interruption or loss of revensa result of change of ownership transitionatensitan

* inability to generate sufficient revenue to offaetjuisition cost

Acquired businesses may have liabilities or advepsrating issues that we fail to discover throdga diligence prior to the
acquisition. In particular, to the extent that pwevners of any acquired businesses or propeditdfto comply with or otherwise violated
applicable laws or regulations, or failed to fulfiieir contractual obligations to the U.S. Goveaminor other customers, we, as the successor
owner, may be financially responsible for thesdations and failures and may suffer reputationairhar otherwise be adversely affected.
Acquisitions also frequently result in the recogdof goodwill and other intangible assets thatsafigject to potential impairment in the future
that could harm our financial results. In additidrwe finance acquisitions by issuing convertidibt or equity securities, our existing
stockholders may be diluted, which could affectrieaket price of our stock. Acquisitions and/or thkated equity financings could also
impact our ability to utilize our NOL carryforwardas a result, if we fail to properly evaluate aisifions or investments, we may not achieve
the anticipated benefits of any such acquisitians, we may incur costs in excess of what we amtieipAcquisitions frequently involve
benefits related to integration of operations. Tdikeire to successfully integrate the operationstberwise to realize any of the anticipated
benefits of the acquisition could seriously harm @sults of operations.

If we are unable to manage our growth, our businemsd financial results could suffer

Sustaining our growth has placed significant dersammdour management, as well as on our adminigadperational and financial
resources. For us to continue to manage our gramghmust continue to improve our operational, fiiahand management information
systems and expand, motivate and manage our wogkféidditionally, our future financial results deypen part on our ability to profitably
manage our growth on a combined basis with thenlesses we have acquired and those we may acquive fature. If we are unable to
manage our growth while maintaining our qualitysefvice and profit margins, or if new systems thatimplement to assist in managing our
growth do not produce the expected benefits, oginess, prospects, financial condition or operatagylts could be adversely affected.

The loss of any member of our senior managementldampair our relationships with U.S. Government stomers and disrupt the
management of our business.

We believe that the success of our business andhlitly to operate profitably depends on the cmmtid contributions of the members
of our senior management. We rely on our senioragament to generate business and execute
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programs successfully. In addition, the relatiopskand reputation that many members of our sengmragement team have established and
maintain with U.S. Government personnel contriliateur ability to maintain strong customer relasbips and to identify new business
opportunities. The loss of any member of our semanagement could impair our ability to identifydasecure new contracts, to maintain gooc
customer relations and to otherwise manage ounbssi

If we fail to attract and retain skilled employe®@s employees with the necessary national securigacances, we might not be able
perform under our contracts or win new busines

The growth of our business and revenue dependsde Ipart upon our ability to attract and retaifficent numbers of highly
qualified individuals who have advanced IT andfogieeering skills. These employees are in greatashehand are likely to remain a limited
resource in the foreseeable future. In additiortage U.S. Government contracts require us, andesoihour employees, to maintain national
security clearances. Obtaining and maintainingonati security clearances for employees involvengthy process, and it is difficult to
identify, recruit and retain employees who alrehdid national security clearances. Further, somzuottontracts contain provisions requiring
us to staff an engagement with personnel thatulse®mer considers key to our successful performander the contract. In the event we are
unable to provide these key personnel or accepgaltistitutions, the customer may terminate theraohtAs a result, if we are unable to rec
and retain a sufficient number of qualified emplegewe may lose revenue and our ability to mairdaihgrow our business could be limited.

Moreover, in a tight labor market our direct lalsosts could increase or we may be required to entgaige numbers of subcontractor
personnel, which could cause our profit marginsutffer. Conversely, if we maintain or increase staffing levels in anticipation of one or
more projects and the projects are delayed, redoceziminated, we may underutilize the additigmeisonnel, which would increase our
general and administrative expenses, reduce oninggrand possibly harm our results of operations.

We are subject to the requirements of the Natiohadustrial Security Program Operating Manual for aufacility security clearance, which
is a prerequisite to our ability to perform on clsi§ied contracts for the U.S. government.

A facility security clearance is required for a quany to perform on classified contracts for the Daoidl certain other agencies of the
U.S. government. Security clearances are subjaeigaations and requirements including the Natiomdustrial Security Program Operating
Manual ("NISPOM"), which specifies the requiremeiutsthe protection of classified information reded or disclosed to industry in
connection with classified U.S. government consact

We require certain facility and personnel securigarances to perform our classified U.S. governmedated business. As such, we
must comply with the requirements of the NISPOM ang other applicable U.S. government industriasiéy regulations. If we were to
violate the terms and requirements of the NISPOMrgr other applicable U.S. government industrialisigy regulations (which apply to us
under the terms of classified contracts), any ofaeared facilities could lose its facility sedyrclearance. We cannot be certain that we wi
able to maintain our facility security clearandé$or some reason one or more of our facility sé@giclearances is invalidated or terminated,
we would not be able to continue to perform ongiféed contracts at that facility and would notdige to enter into new classified contracts,
which could adversely affect our revenues. Faitareomply with the NISPOM or other security requients may subject us to civil or
criminal penalties, loss of access to classifiédrination, loss of a U.S. government contract,@eptially debarment as a government
contractor.

We may be unable to realize any benefit from oustreduction and restructuring effort and our prdfbility may be hurt or our business
otherwise might be adversely affected

We have engaged in cost reduction and restructachigities in the past and may engage in othetr makiction restructuring activiti
in the future. These types of cost reduction asttueturing activities are complex. If we do notsessfully manage our current cost reduction
and restructuring activities, or any other cosurithn and restructuring activities that we mayetakthe future, any expected efficiencies and
benefits might be delayed or not realized, andogarations and business could be disrupted. Irtiaddthe costs associated with
implementing cost reduction and restructuring ati¢is might exceed expectations, which could reisustdditional future charges.

Our Board has hired an investment bank to assistparforming a formal review of the Company’s bus#ses, markets and competitive
positioning and to evaluate strategic alternativéisgluding the divestment of certain businesses.idheview may or may not result in tt
divestiture of one or more of our businesses. Weymagage in the divestiture of one or more of owrdiness units or product or service
offerings, which may have an adverse effect on dusiness, and there is no assurance that any diast we pursue will be completed on
favorable terms, on a timely basis, or at ¢
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Our business strategy involves assessing our assimdts and portfolio of product and service dffgs with a view of divesting business units
or product and service offerings where doing so oragte shareholder value, while remaining consigteour Stated Strategy Our Board of
Directors is currently working with an investmeratriking firm to assist it in formally reviewing obusinesses, markets and competitive
positioning and in evaluating strategic alternagjvacluding the potential divestment of certairoaf businesses. This may or may not result i
divestment of certain of our businesses. Any ditigsts may result in a dilutive impact to our figwgarnings, as well as significant write-offs,
including those related to goodwill and other imgidate assets, which could have an impact on owltsesf operations and financial condition.
Impacts may include, without limitation, a reductio our net operating losses to offset poten¢irhble gains resulting from the transaction
and/or as a result of tax structuring related potntial transaction. Divestitures could involhel@ional risks, including difficulties in the
separation of operations, services, products argbpael, the diversion of management’s attentiomfother business concerns, the disruptior
of our business and the potential loss of key eyg#s. We may not be successful in managing theamyoother significant risks that we
encounter in divesting a product or service ofigrifurther, even if we determine that it would béhe best interests of the Company and its
stockholders to divest one or more business uniggaxuct or service offerings, we cannot assuaéwre will be able to successfully complete
these transactions on favorable terms, on a tilnedjs, or at all.

Risks Related to Our International Operations
Revenues derived from our international businessuttbbe subject to global economic downturn and hahip.

Our international business represents 13.1% ofaiat revenue, which may be impacted by changésréign national priorities and
government budgets and may be further impacteddbageconomic conditions and fluctuations in fgrecurrency exchange rates.
Continued international economic uncertainty arttliotions in consumer spending may result in redastin our revenue. Additionally,
disruptions in international credit markets may enially limit consumer credit availability and rast credit availability of our customers. A
reduction in international sales of our solutioesulting from reductions in consumer spending aticaed disruption in the availability of
credit to retailers or consumers, could materiatig adversely affect our business, results of dp@saand financial condition.

Our international business exposes us to additionigks.

Our operations outside of the U.S. are subjectsisrthat are inherent in conducting business undefJ.S. laws, regulations a
customs, including those related to:

» foreign currency exchange rate fluctuationseptélly reducing the U.S. dollars we receive fales denominated in foreign
currency;

» the possibility that unfriendly nations or groumaittl boycott our solution

e political conditions in the markets in which we cgte

e potential increased costs associated with ovenepigix structure

* importexport contro

* more limited protection for intellectual properights in some countrie

» difficulties and costs associated with staffing amahaging foreign operatiol

* unexpected changes in regulatory requirem

» the difficulties of compliance with a wide varietf foreign laws and regulatiot

» longer accounts receivable cycles in certairifpr countries, whether due to cultural differeneaghange rate fluctuation or
other factors;

» technology transfer restrictions; ¢

» changes to our distribution netwol

These risks, individually or in the aggregate, ddudve an adverse effect on our results of opermtémd financial condition. For
example, we are subject to compliance with the adh§tates Foreign Corrupt Practices Act and siraitdirbribery laws, which generally
prohibit companies and their intermediaries fronkimg improper payments to foreign government offieifor the purpose of obtaining or
retaining business. While our employees and agestsequired to comply with these laws, we caneddire that our internal policies and
procedures will always protect us from violatioristese laws, despite our commitment to legal céangke and corporate ethics. The
occurrence or allegation of these types of riskg atversely affect our business, performance, preispvalue, financial condition, and res
of operations. In addition, our international cats may include industrial cooperation agreemesugiring specific in-country purchases,
investments, manufacturing agreements or othendiiahobligations, known as offset obligations, @mavide for penalties if
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we fail to meet such requirements. The impact es¢hfactors is difficult to predict, but one or mof them could adversely affect our
financial position, results of operations, or céstvs.

Violations of the International Traffic in Arms Relgtions ("ITAR") or other applicable trade complie regulations could result in
significant sanctions including fines, more oneroomipliance requirements and debarments from expiviteges or loss of authorizations
needed to conduct aspects of our internationahlessi A violation of ITAR or other applicable traggulations could materially adversely
affect our business, financial condition and ressaftoperations.

Risks Related to Our Outstanding Indebtedness
We have substantial indebtedness, which could adesr affect our cash flow, financial condition anolusiness.

As of December 28, 2014 , we had approximately $664lion of total indebtedness outstanding, whitiudes $5.8 million of
unamortized original issue discount and $0.1 millid capital lease obligations. As a result of thidebtedness, our interest payment
obligations are significant. The degree to whichase leveraged could have adverse effects on @inéss, including the following:

» it may limit our flexibility in planning for, or racting to, changes in our business and the in@sstmiwhich we operal

* it may require us to dedicate a substantialipomf our cash flow from operations to paymentanindebtedness, thereby
reducing the availability of our cash flow to fumerking capital, capital expenditures and otheregahcorporate purposes;

* it may restrict us from making strategic acquisis@r exploiting business opportunit

* it may place us at a competitive disadvantage coetpt@ our competitors that have less ¢

* it may limit our ability to borrow additional fung

e it may prevent us from raising the funds necgssarepurchase our outstanding Notes tendered tbthere is a change of
control, which would constitute a default under ithgenture governing such notes and under our tcagdeement; and

e it may decrease our ability to compete effectivalpperate successfully under adverse economiénalndtry condition:

Our high level of indebtedness increases the hakwe may default on our debt obligations. We im@ynable to generate sufficient
cash flow to pay the interest on our debt. If we amable to service our indebtedness, we will beebto adopt an alternative strategy that ma
include actions such as reducing capital expergbtireducing internal investments in research aveéldpment efforts, selling assets,
restructuring or refinancing our indebtedness eksgy additional equity capital. These alternastrategies may not be affected on satisfac
terms, if at all, and they may not yield sufficiéabhds to make required payments on our indebtednes

If, for any reason, we are unable to meet our debtice and repayment obligations, we would beeiiault under the terms of the
agreements governing our debt, which would allowaraditors at that time to declare certain outditagnindebtedness to be due and payable,
which would in turn trigger crosgacceleration or crosslefault rights between the relevant agreementaddtition, our lenders could compel
to apply all of our available cash to repay ourbaings or they could prevent us from making payta@m our indebtedness. If the amounts
outstanding under any of our indebtedness were tcbelerated, our assets may not be sufficierpay in full the money owed to the lenders
or to our other debt holders.

We and our subsidiaries may incur more debt, whitlay increase the risks associated with our subsreverage, including our ability to
service our indebtednes

The agreements governing our debt permit us, usmi®e circumstances, to incur certain additiona¢lmteldness or obligations. To 1
extent that we incur additional indebtedness oh @itber obligations, the risks associated withsubystantial leverage described above,
including our possible inability to service our tlelsould increase.

Changes in our credit ratings or macroeconomic catiohs may affect our liquidity, increasing borrowp costs and limiting our financing
options.

Macroeconomic conditions, such as increased vityatit disruption in the credit markets, could achady affect our ability to
refinance existing debt or obtain additional finiagcat terms satisfactory to us, thereby affectingresources to support operations or to func
new initiatives. In addition, if our credit ratingse lowered, borrowing costs for future long-term
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debt or short-term credit facilities may increasd aur financing options, including our accessh®unsecured credit market, could be limited
We may also be subject to restrictive covenantisvtloald reduce our flexibility.

A portion of our business is conducted through fége subsidiaries, and the failure to generate suiént cash flow from these subsidiarie
or otherwise repatriate or receive cash from thesdsidiaries, could result in our inability to reyaour indebtedness.

As of December 28, 2014 , approximately 9% of amsolidated assets, based on book value, andf®@¥r consolidated revenues:
the year ended December 28, 2014 , respectivelg iald by foreign subsidiaries, which do not gntra the Notes. Our ability to meet our
debt service obligations with cash from foreignsdiaries will depend upon the results of operatiohthese subsidiaries and may be subject
to legal, contractual or other restrictions anceotiusiness considerations. In addition, dividemdl iaterest payments to us from the foreign
subsidiaries may be subject to foreign withholdizxges, which would reduce the amount of funds weiwe from such foreign subsidiaries.
Dividends and other distributions from our foregpbsidiaries may also be subject to fluctuationsuimency exchange rates and legal and
restrictions on repatriation, which could furtheduce the amount of funds we receive from suchdorsubsidiaries.

In general, when an entity in a foreign jurisdiotiepatriates cash to the U.S., the amount of sash is treated as a dividend taxable
at current U.S. tax rates. Accordingly, upon thetrdbution of cash to us from our foreign subsiidisy we will be subject to U.S. income taxes.
Although foreign tax credits may be available tduee the amount of the additional tax liabilityesle credits may be limited and only offset
tax paid in the foreign jurisdiction, not the exzeé the U.S. tax rate over the foreign tax rateer€fore, to the extent that we must use cash
generated in foreign jurisdictions to make printipainterest payments on our debt, there may bestassociated with repatriating the cash tc
the U.S.

The agreements governing our debt impose significaperating and financial restrictions on us and osubsidiaries that may prevent us
and our subsidiaries from pursuing certain businespportunities and restrict our ability to operataur business.

The indenture and the credit and security agreegmrerning our credit agreement subject us, andsobsidiaries, to several financ
and other restrictive covenants, including limias on liens or indebtedness, payment of dividetndssactions with affiliates, and mergers,
sales or other dispositions of our assets.

Our credit agreement also requires us to complly sgecified financial ratios, including a borrowibgse availability and minimum
fixed charge coverage ratio. Many factors, inclgd@#vents beyond our control, may affect our abtlitgomply with these covenants and
financial ratios. We cannot be sure we will meatdebtrelated obligations or that lenders will waive daijure to meet those obligations. A
failure to meet those debt-related obligations doabult in an event of default under our otheeltddness and the acceleration of such
indebtedness.

The restrictions contained in the indenture anduncredit agreement could also limit the abilifyttee Company and its subsidiarie:
plan for or react to market conditions, meet capig®ds or otherwise restrict their activities asiness plans and adversely affect the ability tc
finance their operations, enter into acquisitiontocengage in other business activities that wbseldh their interest.

Risks Related to Our Intellectual Property
We may be unable to protect our intellectual properights.

We rely on a combination of patents, trademarkpyiights, trade secrets and nondisclosure agresn@ptrotect our proprietary
intellectual property. Our efforts to protect ontellectual property and proprietary rights may lbetsufficient. We cannot be sure that our
pending patent applications will result in the eisce of patents to us, that patents issued teaemdied by us in the past or in the future will not
be challenged or circumvented by competitors arttiese patents will remain valid or sufficientiyolhd to preclude our competitors from
introducing technologies similar to those covergabr patents and patent applications. In additbam,ability to enforce and protect our
intellectual property rights may be limited in @nt countries outside the U.S., which could maleagier for competitors to capture market
position in such countries by utilizing technolagtbat are similar to those developed or licensedsh Competitors also may harm our sale
designing products that mirror the capabilitie®of products or technology without infringing orr datellectual property rights. If we do not
obtain sufficient protection for our intellectuabperty, or if we are unable to effectively enfome intellectual property rights, our
competitiveness could be impaired, which would fimir growth and future revenue.
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Some of the technology that is developed by ugvelbped under contract for our DoD customers. Agiogly, such intellectual
property and rights to technology development avaenl by the U.S. Government.

We may be harmed by intellectual property infringent claims.

We may become subject to claims from our emplopedkird parties who assert that software and dibrens of intellectual property
that we use in delivering services and solutionsulocustomers infringe upon intellectual propeitgits of such employees or third parties.
Our employees develop some of the software and &thas of intellectual property that we use toypde our services and solutions to our
customers, but we also license technology fromroteadors. If our employees, vendors, or othedtparties assert claims that we or our
customers are infringing on their intellectual pedy rights, we could incur substantial costs tfedd those claims. If any such infringement
claims were ultimately successful, we could be meglto cease selling or using products or servicasincorporate the challenged software o
technology, obtain a license or additional licerfses) our employees, vendors, or other third partie redesign our products and services the
rely on the challenged software or technology.

Disclosure of trade secrets could cause harm to business

We attempt to protect our trade secrets by enténitagconfidentiality and intellectual property Egsment agreements with third
parties, our employees and consultants. Howevesgethgreements can be breached and, if they are,rttay not be an adequate remedy
available to us. In addition, others may indepetigletiscover our trade secrets and proprietaryrimftion, and in such cases we could not
assert any trade secret rights against such gamfgrcing a claim that a party illegally obtainewtds using our trade secret is difficult,
expensive and time consuming, and the outcomegredittable. If we are unable to protect our imtetihal property, our competitors could
market services or products similar to our servamas products, which could reduce demand for oferiolgs. Any litigation to enforce our
intellectual property rights, protect our tradersésor determine the validity and scope of thepetary rights of others could result in
substantial costs and diversion of resources, mothssurance of success.

Risks Related to Regulatory, Environmental and Legllssues
Our failure to comply with complex procurement lavesid regulations could cause us to lose businesd aabject us to a variety of penalti

We must comply with laws and regulations relatioghte formation, administration and performanc&@&. Government contracts,
which affect how we do business with our customgrispe contractors, subcontractors and vendorsramdimpose added costs on us. New
regulations or procurement requirements (includingexample regulations regarding counterfeit eodupt parts, supply chain diligence and
cyber security) or changes to current requiremenitd increase our costs and risk of non-complia@ee role as a contractor to agencies anc
departments of the U.S. Government results in eurdoroutinely subject to investigations and revdeelating to compliance with various la
and regulations, including those associated witfanizational conflicts of interest, procuremenegrity, bid integrity and claim presentation,
among others. These investigations may be condwgtedut our knowledge. Adverse findings in theseeistigations or reviews can lead to
criminal, civil or administrative proceedings, amd could face civil and criminal penalties and agistrative sanctions, including termination
of contracts, forfeiture of profits, suspensiorpaiyments, fines and suspension or debarment frang dosiness with U.S. Government
agencies. In addition, we could suffer serious htarmur reputation and competitive position if giidions of impropriety were made againsl
whether or not true. If our reputation or relatioipswith U.S. Government agencies were impairedf thre U.S. Government otherwise ceasec
doing business with us or significantly decreasedamount of business it does with us, our revamaeoperating profit would decline.

Our contracts and administrative processes and egs are subject to audits and cost adjustmentshigyd.S. Government, which could
reduce our revenue, disrupt our business or othegevadversely affect our results of operations.

U.S. Government agencies, including the Defensdr@cinAudit Agency (“DCAA”"), routinely audit and westigate government
contracts and government contractors' administrgirocesses and systems. These agencies revigerformance on contracts, pricing
practices, cost structure and compliance with apple laws, regulations and standards. They aldewethe adequacy of our compliance with
government standards for our accounting and manageofi internal control systems, including our: tohenvironment and overall
accounting system, general IT system, budget aamhplg system, purchasing system, material managesmne accounting system,
compensation system, labor system, indirect aneratinect costs system, billing system and estimgasiystem used for pricing on government
contracts. Both contractors and the U.S. Governmgancies conducting these audits and reviews ¢t@mwe under increased scrutiny. The
current audits and reviews have become more rigoamd the standards to which contractors are bedttgare being more strictly interpreted,
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increasing the likelihood of an audit or reviewuitiag in an adverse outcome. During the coursiésafurrent audits, the DCAA is closely
examining and questioning several of our estabiisirel disclosed practices that it had previoustlitad and accepted, increasing the
uncertainty as to the ultimate conclusion that direached.

A finding of significant control deficiencies in paystem audits or other reviews can result inel@ented billing rates to our U.S.
Government customers until the control deficienaiescorrected and our corrections are acceptékefgnse Contract Management Agency
("DCMA"). Government audits and reviews may conelildat our practices are not consistent with applelaws and regulations and resul
adjustments to contract costs and mandatory custaiends. Such adjustments can be applied retwedyt which could result in significant
customer refunds. Our receipt of adverse audiiriigslor the failure to obtain an “approved” deteration of our various accounting and
management internal control systems, includingobxanges to indirect cost and direct labor estingagiystems, from the responsible U.S.
Government agency could significantly and adveraéflgct our business, including our ability to loid new contracts and our competitive
position in the bidding process. A determinatiomoh-compliance with applicable contracting and procweentaws, regulations and standa
could also result in the U.S. Government imposiegaities and sanctions against us, including witlihg of payments, suspension of
payments and increased government scrutiny thdd ctalay or adversely affect our ability to invoiaed receive timely payment on contracts,
perform contracts or compete for contracts withwh®. Government.

We have submitted incurred cost claims through 20h2& actual indirect cost audits by the DCAA haeen completed for our
subsidiaries for fiscal 2006. Although we have rded contract revenues subsequent to fiscal 208&dbapon costs that we believe will be
approved upon final audit or review, we do not krtbe outcome of any ongoing or future audits orews and, if future adjustments exceed
our estimates, our profitability would be adversaffected.

Our employees or others acting on our behalf mayage in misconduct or other improper activities, iwh could cause us to lose contracts.

We are exposed to the risk that employee fraudh@ranisconduct from our employees or others aaimgur behalf could occur.
Misconduct by employees or others could includeritibnal failures to comply with U.S. Governmensgurement regulations, engaging in
unauthorized activities or falsifying time recorfifisconduct by our employees or others acting anbetalf could also involve the improper
use of our customers' sensitive or classified migtion, which could result in regulatory sancti@gginst us, serious harm to our reputation, a
loss of contracts and a reduction in revenues. bt always possible to deter misconduct, angbteeautions we take to prevent and detect th
activity may not be effective in controlling unknowr unmanaged risks or losses, which could caside iose contracts or cause a reductic
revenues. In addition, alleged or actual misconByamployees or others acting on our behalf coeddlt in investigations or prosecutions of
persons engaged in the subject activities, whiehdceesult in unanticipated consequences or exgessg management distraction for us
regardless of whether we are alleged to have aporesibility.

If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal controls, we may not be able to accurately repmur financial results or prevent fraud

Effective internal controls are necessary for ugrtvide reliable financial reports. If we cannotyide reliable financial reports, our
operating results could be misstated, our reputatiay be harmed and the trading price of our stockd be negatively affected. Our
management has concluded that there are no materéinesses in our internal controls over finangpbrting as of December 28, 2014 .
However, although we continue to devote substatitred and resources to the documentation and ¢esfiour controls, there can be no
assurance that our controls over financial proceasd reporting will be effective in the futuretbat material weaknesses or significant
deficiencies in our internal controls will not bsebvered in the future. Any failure to remediaty &uture material weaknesses or implement
required new or improved controls, or difficultiescountered in their implementation, could harmaperating results, cause us to fail to mee
our reporting obligations or result in material st&ements in our consolidated financial statemantgher public disclosures. Inferior internal
controls could also cause investors to lose confiden our reported financial information, whictutsbhave a negative effect on the trading
price of our stock.

We are subject to environmental laws and potengaposure to environmental liabilities. This may afft our ability to develop, sell or rent
our property or to borrow money where such propeigyequired to be used as collateral.

We use hazardous materials common to the industri@iich we operate. We are required to followefied, state and local
environmental laws and regulations regarding thelliag, storage and disposal of these materiatydting the Clean Air Act, the Clean Wa
Act, the Resource Conservation and Recovery AetQbmprehensive Environmental Response, Compensaiib Liability Act (“CERCLA),
and the Toxic Substances Control Act. We couldutest to fines,
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suspensions of production, alteration of our martufing processes or interruption or cessationunfaperations if we fail to comply with
present or future laws or regulations related &utbe, storage, handling, discharge or dispodalad, volatile or otherwise hazardous
chemicals used in our manufacturing processes.€Tiggailations could require us to acquire expensimeediation equipment or to incur
significant other expenses to comply with environtaéregulations. Our failure to control the handliuse, storage or disposal of, or
adequately restrict the discharge of, hazardoustanbes could subject us to liabilities and praduaatielays, which could cause us to miss out
customers' delivery schedules, thereby reducingalas for a given period. We may also have torpgulatory fines, penalties or other costs
(including remediation costs), which could matdyiatduce our profits and adversely affect ourfficial condition. Permits are required for
operations, and these permits are subject to rdnewedification and, in some cases, revocation.

In addition, under environmental laws, ordinancersegulations, a current or previous owner or ofgeraf property may be liable for
the costs of removal or remediation of some kirfdsetroleum products or other hazardous substamesnder, or in its property, adjacent or
nearby property, or offsite disposal locations hwiit regard to whether the owner or operator kngwracaused, the presence of the
contaminants, and regardless of whether the pesctiwat resulted in the contamination were legtiatime they occurred. We have incurred,
and may incur in the future, liabilities under CHRCand other environmental laws at our currentaynfer facilities, adjacent or nearby
properties or offsite disposal locations. The castociated with future cleanup activities thatmay be required to conduct or finance may be
material. The presence of, or failure to remedbatgerly, hazardous substances may adversely dffeetbility to sell or rent the property or to
borrow funds using the property as collateral. Aiddally, we may become subject to claims by timeadties based on damages, including
personal injury and property damage, and costdtiegdrom the disposal or release of hazardoustsuizes into the environment.

Regulations related t“conflict minerals” may cause us to incur additiona@xpenses and could limit the supply and incredlse cost of
certain metals used in manufacturing our products.

We are subject to regulations requiring disclosofespecified minerals, known as conflict mineraiet are necessary to the
functionality or production of products manufactligr contracted to be manufactured by public congsarhe rule requires companies to
perform due diligence, disclose and report whetinegrot such minerals originate from the DemocrRipublic of the Congo or an adjoining
country. The rule can affect sourcing at compaetifivices and availability in sufficient quantitiglscertain minerals used in the manufacture of
our products, including tantalum, tin, gold andgsten. The number of suppliers who provide confliee minerals is limited. In addition, the
are costs associated with complying with the dmate requirements, such as costs related to detieigithe source of certain minerals used in
our products, as well as costs of changes to ptedpocesses, or sources of supply as a consegjoésach verification activities. Since our
supply chain is complex, we are not always abkufticiently verify the origins of the relevant neirals used in our products through the due
diligence procedures we implemented, which may haunreputation. In addition, we may encounter lelmgles to satisfy those customers \
require that all of the components of our prodbetsertified as conflict-free, which could placeats competitive disadvantage if we are
unable to do so.

Litigation may distract us from operating our busass.

Litigation that may be brought by or against usldaause us to incur significant expenditures asttatt our management from the
operation of our business. Furthermore, there eamobassurance that we would prevail in such fitigeor resolve such litigation on terms
favorable to us, which may adversely affect ouaficial results and operations. See Note 15 of tited\to Consolidated Financial Statements
contained within this Annual Report on Form 10-K éofurther discussion of our legal proceedings.

Natural disasters or severe weather conditions abdlsrupt our business and result in loss of revenor higher expense:

Our business depends on maintaining operationsrdtoilities and being able to operate at our @ustr facilities and project
locations. A serious, prolonged interruption or dge due to power outage, telecommunications outagerist attack, earthquake, hurricane,
fire, flood or other natural disaster, or otheemtiption could have a material adverse effectuarbaisiness and financial results. While we
insure against certain business interruption risksh insurance may not adequately compensate asydosses incurred as a result of natural
or other disasters.
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Risks Related to Our Common Stock
Some of our contracts with the U.S. Government atassified, which may limit investor insight intogstions of our business

We derive a portion of our revenues from prograriik the U.S. Government that are subject to secweitrictions (classified
programs) that preclude the dissemination of infiram that is classified for national security ppsps. We are limited in our ability to provide
details about these classified programs, theisr@kany disputes or claims relating to such pnograAs a result, investors and others might
have less insight into our classified programs thanother businesses and, therefore, less atilitylly evaluate the risks related to our
classified business.

The market price of our common stock may be vokatil

The price of our stock has been in the past, aficcentinue to be, subject to fluctuations as ailtesf a number of factors, including:
our operating results fail to meet market or artalysxpectations; general fluctuations in the stoekket; actual or anticipated fluctuations in
our operating results based on reduced and/or eiélggvernment spending or the threat thereof;fhtadns in the stock prices of companie
our industry; changes in earnings estimated byrgaianalysts or our ability to meet those estesaand domestic and foreign economic
conditions. Such volatility has had a significafieet on the market prices of many companies' sgesifor reasons unrelated to their opera
performance and, in the past, has led to secudl#ss action litigation. Securities litigation ags us could result in substantial costs and a
diversion of our management's attention and regsusehich could have an adverse effect on our kasin

Your percentage of ownership in us may be dilutedfie future.

As with any publicly traded company, your percertag/nership in us may be diluted in the future beeanf equity issuances for acquisitions
capital market transactions or otherwise, includingity awards that we expect will be granted toditectors, officers and employees.

Certain provisions in our amended and restated dérate of incorporation and second amended andtaged bylaws, as amended, and of
Delaware law, may prevent or delay an acquisitidhooir company, which could decrease the tradingq&iof our common stocl

Our amended and restated certificate of incorpamathur second amended and restated bylaws, aslatheand Delaware law cont:
provisions that are intended to deter coerciveda&epractices and inadequate takeover bids byngakich practices or bids unacceptably
expensive to the raider and to encourage prosgeatiguirers to negotiate with our board of direstather than to attempt a hostile takeover.
These provisions include, among others:

. the inability of our stockholders to callgesial meeting;

» rules regarding how stockholders may present padp@s nominate directors for election at stockkolgeetings
. the right of our board to issue preferrectktwithout stockholder approval,

. a super-majority requirement to amend outifteate of incorporation or bylaws; and

the ability of our directors, and not stoclders, to fill vacancies on our board of directors.

Delaware law also imposes some restrictions on ensrand other business combinations between uargnkolder of 15% or more
our outstanding common stock.

We believe these provisions may help protect aelkstolders from coercive or otherwise unfair taleaactics by requiring potential
acquirers to negotiate with our board of direcnnd by providing our board of directors with mdmad to assess any acquisition proposal.
These provisions are not intended to make our cagnpamune from takeovers. In addition, althoughhedéieve these provisions collectively
provide for an opportunity to receive higher bigsrequiring potential acquirers to negotiate withr board, they would apply even if the offer
may be considered beneficial by some stockholdérsse provisions may also frustrate or preventadtgmpts by our stockholders to replace
or remove our current management
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team by making it more difficult for stockholdesreplace members of our board, which is respoasdyl appointing the members of our
management.

Iltem 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments
None.
Item 2. Properties

At December 28, 2014 , we owned or leased apprdrignad.1 million square feet of floor space at apgmately 86 separate
locations, primarily in the U.S., for manufacturjvgarehousing, research and development, admitiistrand various other uses. At
December 28, 2014 , we leased to third partiescqipately 163,251 square feet of our leased faslitand had vacant floor space of
approximately 149,471 square feet. We continualblate our current and future space capacitylatiom to current and projected future
staffing levels. We maintain our properties in goperating condition and believe that the prodectigpacity of our properties is adequate to
meet current contractual requirements and thosthéoforeseeable future.

We have major operations at the following locations

Kratos Government Solutions: Huntsville, AL; San Diego, CA; Colorado Sprin@g2Q; Orlando, FL; Woburn, MA; Baltimore and
Lanham, MD; Lancaster and Dallastown, PA; Charlestod Walterboro, SC; and Dahlgren, Alexandria@hdntilly, VA. Locations outside
the U.S. include France, Israel and the United Hong.

Unmanned SystemsSan Diego and Sacramento, CA; and Fort Walton Beéch
Public Safety and Security: Fullerton, CA; Newport, DE; Fairlawn, NJ and Howsg TX.
Corporate and other locations: San Diego, CA.

The following is a summary of our floor space atBmber 28, 2014 :

Square feet (in thousands) Owned Leased Total

Kratos Government Solutions 601 1,10(¢ 1,701
Unmanned Systems 20 18C 20C
Public Safety and Security — 162 162
Corporate (includes San Diego operations of KGSabéPSS segments) — 34 34

Total 621 1,47¢ 2,09:

See Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Finandak8ents contained within this Annual Report omi@0-K for information
regarding commitments under leases.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

See Note 15 of Notes to the Consolidated Finatatements contained within this Annual Report om#10-K for a further
discussion of our legal proceedings.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
None.

PART Il
Item 5. Market For Registrant's Common Equity, Related Sktolder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Seities

Market Information

Our common stock is listed on the NASDAQ GlobaleseMarket and is traded under the symbol “KTOS.”
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The following table sets forth the high and lowesgbrices for our common stock for the periodsdatdid, as reported by NASDAQ:

High Low

Year Ended December 28, 2014:

Fourth Quarter $ 7.0 $ 4.2¢
Third Quarter $ 7.9¢ $ 6.84
Second Quarter $ 9.0C $ 7.0z
First Quarter $ 8.3Z % 7.0C
Year Ended December 29, 2013:

Fourth Quarter $ 8.7/ % 6.4z
Third Quarter $ 9.07 $ 6.5C
Second Quarter $ 6.6 $ 4.7¢
First Quarter $ 51C $ 4.1¢€

Holders of Record

On March 6, 2015 , the closing sale price of ounegmn stock as reported by the NASDAQ Global Seléatket was $5.69 per share.
On March 6, 2015 , there wef@2 shareholders of record of our common stock.

Dividend Policy

We have not declared any cash dividends since hagaapublic company. We currently intend to retainy future earnings to
finance the growth and development of the busiaess therefore, do not anticipate paying any caglehds in the foreseeable future. In
addition, our ability to pay dividends is restrittey both the indenture entered into in conneatigh the issuance of our 7.00% Senior Sec
Notes due 2019 and our amended credit and seagnigement, each as discussed in the section di“Liquidity and Capital Resources” in
Item 7 “Management's Discussion and Analysis ofiRaial Condition and Results of Operations” andeN®bf the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements contained within this Annuap&t. Any future determination to pay cash diviiewill be at the discretion of our board
of directors and will be dependent upon our fufimancial condition, results of operations and talpiequirements, general business condi
and other relevant factors as determined by ourcboidirectors.
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Performance Graph

The following performance graph and related infotimia shall not be deemed “soliciting material” oo be “filed” with the SEC, nor
shall such information be incorporated by refereimte any future filing under the Securities Actl&B3, as amended (the “Securities Act,
the Exchange Act of 1934 as amended (the “Exchawng®, except to the extent that we specifically incorpeiitiby reference into such filin

The following performance graph presents a compari the five year cumulative stockholder retumomir common stock against
the cumulative total return of a broad equity maikdex, the Russell 2000 Stock Index, and an itiglusdex, including a peer group
composed of AAR Corp., AeroVironment, Inc., Americacience & Engineeringnc., APl Technologie€orp.,Comtech Telecommunicatio
Corp., iRobotCorporation, and Mercury Systemdnc.,for the period commencing December 28, 2009 anthgridecember 28, 2014. The
performance graph assumes an initial investmeL.00 in our common stock and in each of the Ru2€€0 Stock Index and the peer groups
and further assumes that all dividends were retedesnd all returns are market-cap weighted. Thmiical information set forth below is not
necessarily indicative of future stock price perfance.

COMPARISON OF 5 YEAR CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

Among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc, the Russell 2000 Index,
and a Peer Group

$250

$100

%0 - I I I I I I
12/09 1210 1211 12112 1213 12114

—H— HKratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc =& Russell 2000

= O = Peer Group

*$100 invested on 12/31/09 in stock or index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December 31.

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities; Use of Reeds from Registered Securities
None.
Purchases of Equity Securities by the Issuer and Afiated Purchasers

None.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data
The following selected consolidated financial dgttauld be read in conjunction with our Consoliddtathncial Statements and

related notes thereto and with ltem 7 “Managemd&issussion and Analysis of Financial Condition &webults of Operations” contained
within this Annual Report. Our historical resulte aot necessarily indicative of operating resudtbe expected in the future.

Amounts in millions except per share amounts

December 26, December 25, December 30, December 29, December 28,
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:
Revenues $ 408t % 713.¢  $ 969.. $ 950.¢ $ 868.(
Gross profit 84.: 191.2 257.2 240.( 218.2
Operating income (loss) 23.1 29.t (49.7) 31.¢ 19.¢
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (12.9) 1.6 (1.€) — 5.1
Income (loss) from continuing operations 14.¢ (23.5) (112.9 (31.9 (78.0
Loss from discontinued operations (0.7) (0.7) (1.5 (5.9 —
Net income (loss) $ 145 $ (242 $ (1149 $ (372 $ (78.0
Income (loss) from continuing operations per common
share:
Basic $ 0.8¢ $ (0.8¢) $ (241 $ (0.5¢) $ (2.35)
Diluted $ 087 $ (0.8¢) $ (241) % (0560 $ (1.35)
Loss from discontinued operations per common share
Basic $ (0.0)) $ 0.09 $ (0.09) $ 0.09 $ —
Diluted $ (0.0)) $ (0.09 $ (0.09) $ 0.09 $ =
Net income (loss) per common share:
Basic $ 087 $ (0.8¢9) $ (249 % (0.65 $ (2.35)
Diluted $ 0.8¢ $ (0.8¢9) $ (249 % (065 $ (2.35)
Weighted average shares:
Basic 16.€ 27.4 46.¢ 56.¢ 57.€
Diluted 16.¢ 27.4 46.¢ 56.¢ 57.€
December 26, December 25, December 30, December 29, December 28,
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 106 % 69.€ $ 49.C $ 55.7 $ 34.7
Working capital 65.¢ 207.z 176.€ 179.% 148.¢
Total assets 535.% 1,216.( 1,284.( 1,216.¢ 1,138.¢
Short-term debt 0.€ 1.€ 1t 1.3 11
Long-term debt 226.] 631. 630.] 628.¢ 663.(
Long-term debt premium — 22.¢ 18.7 14.5 —
Total stockholders' equity $ 169.¢ $ 312¢ $ 3241 % 295.¢ $ 224.3

The 2011 and 2012 Consolidated Statements of Qpesaind Comprehensive Loss Data and ConsolidatahBe Sheet Data were
impacted by the acquisitions we completed in thms#ods. The Consolidated Statements of OperatindsComprehensive Loss Data reflect
the results from operations for each of the acqui@mpanies from the date of acquisition and fodywathich contributed an aggregate $375.1
million and $287.3 million increase in revenuestird010 to 2011; and 2011 to 2012, respectivelyiWerred acquisition related expenses of
$12.5 million for fiscal 2011 and a benefit of $APmillion related to acquisition items for fis@012. In 2012, we incurred an impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets of $96.6 millionheT2014 Consolidated Statement of Operations iesladoss on extinguishment of debt of
$39.1 million related to the refinance of the $&2&illion 10% Senior Secured Notes (“the 10% Nokesie in 2017 with the $625.0 million
newly issued 7.00% Senior Secured Notes due in 281® 7% Notes”).
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The 2011 and 2012 Consolidated Balance Sheet Bi¢&ts the impact of our acquisitions as wellrasissuance of $625.0 million in
10% Senior Secured Notes and the issuance of appatety 39.3 million common shares which were ugefiind the acquisitions. The 2014
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data reflects the meding of the $625.0 million 10% Notes with $625.0lion of newly issued 7.00% Notes.
The net proceeds of the 7% Notes was $618.5 midlfter an original issue discount of $6.5 millidine Company utilized the net proceeds
from the 7% Notes, a $41.0 million draw on a neaddragreement, as well as cash from operatiopstioguish the 10% Senior Secured
Notes.

Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Rancial Condition and Results of Operations.

In addition to historical information, the followgndiscussion contains forward-looking statemends #ne subject to risks and
uncertainties. Our actual results may differ subsilly from those expressed in or implied by amyard-looking statements herein due to a
number of factors, including but not limited to tieks and uncertainties described in this ltenm7atem 1A Risk Factors and elsewhere in this
Annual Report. These forwelooking statements reflect our views and assumptanly as of the date such forward-looking statemare
made. Except as required by law, we assume no megplity for updating any forward-looking statentenwhether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise.

The following discussion should be read in conjiomcwith our audited Consolidated Financial Stateseand the related notes and
other financial information appearing elsewheretiis Annual Report and other reports and filingsdmaavith the SEC.

Overview

We are a specialized security technology businesgdging mission critical products, solutions amahgces for domestic and
international customers, with our principal custosrigeing agencies of the U.S. Government. Our capabilities are sophisticated
engineering, manufacturing, technology developm®rgtem integration, and test and evaluation offerifor national security platforms and
programs. Our principal products and solutionsral&ed to Command, Control, Communications, ComgutCombat Systems, Intelligence,
Surveillance and Reconnaissance (“C5ISR”"). We ajftercustomers products, solutions, services apdréige to support their mission-critical
needs by leveraging our skills across our coreioffeareas in C5ISR.

We design, engineer, and manufacture specializzdrehic components, subsystems and systems fadraiée attack, electronic
warfare, radar, and missile system platforms; irgtsgl technology solutions for satellite commuri@ra; products and solutions for unmannec
systems; products and services related to cybaigeand cyberwarfare; products and solutions falfitic missile defense; weapons systems
trainers; advanced network engineering and infoilomaechnology services; weapons systems lifecygpgport and sustainment; military
weapon range operations and technical servicespablit safety, critical infrastructure securitydasurveillance systems.

Our primary end customers are U.S. Government aggriacluding the DoD, classified agencies, ingeihce agencies, other national
security agencies and homeland security relatedcéege We also conduct business with local, statefareign governments and domestic anc
international commercial customers. In fiscal 202213 and 2014, we generated 65% , 64% and 598pectvely, of our total revenues from
contracts with the U.S. Government (including allriches of the U.S. military), either as a primetaactor or a subcontractor. We believe our
stable customer base, strong customer relationshiggdiectual property, broad array of contradtiekes, "designed in" positions on strategic
national security platforms, large employee bassessing specialized skills, specialized manufmgdacilities and equipment, extensive list
of past performance qualifications, and significas@nagement and operational capabilities positoofousuccess.

We were incorporated in the state of New York oréeber 19, 1994 and began operations in March M@5.eincorporated in the
state of Delaware in 1998.
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Industry Background

Faced with significant budget pressures, in regeatrs the U.S. Government has implemented reduciiorgovernment spendit
including reductions in appropriations for the UD@partment of Defense (DoD) and other federal eigsnpursuant to the Budget Control
of 2011 ("BCA"), as amended by the American Taxp&elief Act of 2012 and the Bipartisan Budget AE2013. Pursuant to the terms of
BCA, a sequestration went into effect in March 20&8ulting in a 7.8% reduction to the DoD budgetfiscal year (the period running frc
October 1st to September 30th, a "FY") 2013 to $8%flion, excluding funding for military personndhe DoD budget was approximat
$496 billion in FY 2014 and remains at a similardein FY 2015. The DoD base budget excludes fupdian overseas contingency operatis
such as Afghanistan, Iraq and Syria, which are@pjated separately and are not currently subgetii¢é BCA.

Under the BCA, funding for the DoD base budgetxgeeted to increase very modestly to approxime#&Q0 billion for FY 2016. |
the years beyond FY 2016, the BCA permits annuakgses for DoD base budget funding of about 2.48b such caps remaining in fol
through FY 2023. The Administration has publiclgrsiled its intent to submit DoD budget requests dna significantly higher than the B¢
caps, as it did in submitting the FY 2016 budgeusst and the associated FY 2016 Future Year Defensgram ("FYDP") on February
2015 with all years exceeding the caps under thA.Blich levels of DoD budget funding would requine Congress to enact legislatiol
raise the BCA caps. In the event DoD appropriatiexcseed the BCA caps in any fiscal year through2B¥23, across-thbeard sequestrati
would go into effect, as occurred in 2013.

U.S. Government appropriations have and likely wdlhtinue to be affected by larger U.S. Governnheidigetary issues and related
legislation. When a formal appropriation bill hast been signed into law before the end of the figear, Congress may pass a Continuing
Resolution ("CR") that authorizes agencies of th®.Government to continue to operate, generaligasame funding levels from the prior
year, but typically does not authorize new spendit@tives during this period. If Congress fditlsenact a CR, the U.S. Government may
down, which likely would result in the closure aigrnment offices and furlough of government waoskess well as impact the availability of
funds to pay its contractors for work performedattdition, if the national debt reaches the stayuiebt ceiling, which is currently expected to
occur in the first half of 2015, the Congress narsct legislation to increase the statutory dettinge If the Congress fails to do so, then the
U.S. Government may default on its debts, whichldidibely have a material adverse effect on thébgldinancial markets.

In March 2014, the Pentagon submitted its FY 2008d2t Request of approximately $496 billion, whigds consistent with the
Bipartisan Budget Spending Authorization. Also imf¢h 2014, the Pentagon published the Quadrenei@iSe Review ("QDR"). Both the
Pentagon’s FY 2015 Budget Request and the QDR gedwmportant insight for future national securitméling priorities and related programs,
which include cyber security and warfare, unmarsysiems, satellite communications, missile defamskelectronic warfare.

In September 2014, the President signed a FY201&iriting Resolution ("CR") that funded the govermtiirough December 11,
2014. The bill set the discretionary funding lefaglthe federal government during CR period at mmual rate of $1.012 trillion.

In December 2014, the U.S. Congress and Senatechissfiscal year 2015 omnibus appropriations 6Giinsolidated and Further
Continuing Appropriations Act, 2015 (the "2015 Appriations Act") that totals $1.014 trillion in digtionary spending in compliance with
bipartisan Murray-Ryan budget agreement. The biitf the government through September 30, 2015D€partment of Defense
Appropriations Act, 2015, which is a part of thephppriations Act, provides $554.2 billion in baselaverseas contingency operation
funding, compared to $572 billion enacted in fispedr 2014 and $554.3 billion in the President'dd®t request. The base budget
appropriation is $496.1 billion with $64.2 billidar Overseas Contingency Operations ("OCO") ofDlepartment of Defense ("DoD"),
compared to $85.2 billion for DoD OCO enacted stél year 2014.

Consequently, the DoD'’s overall future spendingelsyemain uncertain, and we are unable to spadtifipredict potential changes to
future DoD budgets on our programs and the effedtthe foregoing would have on our future finahp&formance and outlook. In the event
that BCA funding levels continue, or if other actsoare taken to significantly reduce the DoD budigét possible that such reductions and
related cancellations or delays affecting our éxgstontracts or programs could have a signifidapact on the operating results of our
business.
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Current Reporting Segments

The Company historically operated in two reportad@gments: Kratos Government Solutions (“*KGS”) Babllic Safety & Security
(“PSS”).In the fourth quarter of 2014, the Company expartdechumber of reportable segments to three aeparated the KGS segment i
two reportable segments: KGS and Unmanned Systéhs8)( As a result, the KGS reportable segmentosiprised of an aggregation of
Kratos’ Government Solutions operating segmentduding our electronic products, satellite commatins, modular systems and rocket
support operating segments.

The new Unmanned Systems reportable segment cop$istir unmanned aerial, ground, seaborne and emaincontrol and
communications system business. The KGS and USesggrprovide products, solutions and services pifynf@r mission critical national
security priorities. KGS and US customers primainiglude national security related agencies, th® Dotelligence agencies and classified
agencies, and to a lesser degree, internation&rgment agencies and domestic and internationatrenial customers. The PSS segment
provides independent integrated solutions for adedrhomeland security, public safety, critical astructure, and security and surveillance
systems for government and commercial applicatiB&S customers are in the critical infrastructposyer generation, power transport, nuc
energy, financial, IT, healthcare, education, tpamgation and petro-chemical industries, as wellextain government and military customers.

The Company organizes its reportable segments sttt nature of the products, solutions and sesvoffered. Transactions
between segments are generally negotiated and mecbfor under terms and conditions similar to otfmvernment and commercial contracts.
This presentation is consistent with the Compang&rating structure.

Kratos Government Solutions Segment

Our KGS segment provides C5ISR products, soluttmsservices primarily for strategic mission catinational security programs
and priorities. Our primary end customers in theXsegment are U.S. Government agencies, inclulm@eépartment of Defense ("DoD"),
classified agencies, intelligence agencies, civiigencies, other national security agencies anmelamd security related agencies. Our work
includes electronic warfare/attack and intelligemeeonnaissance and surveillance; satellite cordraad control, satellite communications
support, signal monitoring, interference detectod geolocation; unmanned aerial systems and uredagnound systems; ballistic missile
defense test and evaluation; cyber and IT; learympegormance and training solutions; missile rangerations and technical services; weapor
systems lifecycle sustainment, support and extensimanufacturing of specialized tactical combatpiais, shelters and enclosures for C5ISR
systems, UAVs, modular data centers and critidahgtructure shelters, weapons systems and wagfigiht

Unmanned Systems Segment

In our US segment we design, manufacture, testppacate aerial target drone systems and comsisitetures, such as the BQM-
167A, BQM-167i, BOQM-177A, BQM-177i, and BQM-178 Birejet. We also supply UAS platforms with sensasgpnics and electronic
components including electro-optical/infrared sesstaining systems and ground shelters. We aksoufiacture and provide avionics systems
and ground flight control systems for certain UA&tforms. These products and solutions are usddAf platforms such as the MQ 1C Gray
Eagle, MQ-1C Sky Warrior, Gorgon Stare, MQ-8 Fico®, RQ-4B Broad Area Maritime Surveillance ane Brersistent Threat Detection
System ISR platform. We have manufactured theraié for the Miniature Air Launched Decoy (MALD)manned aerial system. We are
currently in development of a high performance Unned Combat Aerial System (UCAS) utilizing our ¢ixig UAS.

Public Safety & Security Segment

Our PSS segment provides independent integrateditsesolutions for homeland security, public sgfetritical infrastructure, and
strategic assets for government, industrial andneemial customers. Our solutions include designémgiineering, installing, operating and
servicing physical security systems and technototfiat protect people, critical infrastructureatggic assets, and property and make facilitie:
more secure and efficient. We provide solutionsuch areas as the design, engineering and opeddtammmand and control centers, the
design, engineering, deployment and integratioacgkss control, building automation and contratmnications, digital and closed circuit
television security and surveillance, fire and §#fety, maintenance, services and product supporices. We provide solutions for customers
in the critical infrastructure, power generatiooywer transport, nuclear energy, financial, IT, Hezdre, education, transportation and petro-
chemical industries, as well as certain governmaedtmilitary customers. For example, we provideratrics and other access control
technologies to customers such as pipelines, &atgrids, municipal port authorities, power pntommunication centers, large data center
government installations and other commercial @nisgs.
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Strategic Acquisitions

We have supplemented our organic growth by ideintifyacquiring and integrating businesses that meeprimary objective of
providing us with enhanced capabilities to pursieaader cross section of the DoD, Department oheland Security and other government
and critical infrastructure markets, complement arahden our existing customer base and expangrouary service offerings. Our senior
management team has significant acquisition expegie

Acquisition of CEi

On July 2, 2012, we completed the acquisition ofm@osite Engineering, Inc. (“CEi") for approximate#§64.0 million. The purchas
price, including an adjustment for working capaald cash paid to the shareholders for an Interegé®Rue Code ("IRC") Section 338(h)(10)
election, included $135.0 million in cash and 4iliom shares of the Company's common stock, vaktehh.94 per share on July 2, 2012, or
$23.8 million . $10.7 million of the cash paid waaced into an escrow account as security for Gidflemnification obligations as set forth in
the CEi purchase agreement and was reduced by$llidh for the working capital adjustment paidtte@ Company in July 2013, at which
time the remaining escrow was released to the G&fieholders. In addition, we paid $2.5 million étine certain pre-existing CEi debt and
settle pre-existing accounts receivable from CHisatarrying and fair value of $3.0 million . T@B®mpany made an election under Section 33
(h)(10) of the IRC, which resulted in tax deduailgbodwill related to this transaction, and paidragimately $1.6 million in additional tax
liability incurred by the shareholders of CEi fbig election. The Company estimates that the taxctéle goodwill and intangibles is
approximately $136.3 million and can be deducteddderal and California state income taxes ovebs-gear period.

In connection with the CEi acquisition, certain QErsonnel entered into long-term employment agesgsnwith us. On July 2, 2012,
we granted restricted stock units (“RSUs”) for ggregate of 2.0 million shares of our common s@a&kong-term retention inducement grants
to certain employees of CEi who joined Kratos. R&Js had an estimated value of $11.9 million ongtlaet date, cliff vest on the fourth
anniversary of the closing of the CEi acquisitionearlier upon the occurrence of certain evemis,aae being accounted for as compensation
expense over this four year period. As of Decen2Be2014, 520,000 shares remain unvested and rieitéal.

To fund the acquisition of CEi, on May 14, 2012, sedéd 20.0 million shares of our common stock puechase price of $5.00 per
share in an underwritten public offering. We reeeigross proceeds of approximately $100.0 milliodh met proceeds of approximately $97.0
million after deducting underwriting fees and otb#fering expenses. We used the net proceeds tanoffering to fund a portion of the
purchase price for the acquisition of CEi. In aiddif we borrowed $40.0 million from our revolvinigé of credit to partially fund the purchase
price of CEi.

CEi is a vertically integrated manufacturer andedeper of unmanned aerial target systems and catepmiauctures used for national
security programs. Its drones are designed toaatglisome of the most lethal aerial threats fasiadighters and strategic assets. CEi's
customers include U.S. and foreign governments.

Acquisition of Critical Infrastructure Business

On December 30, 2011, we acquired selected adset€ritical Infrastructure Business for approxigiat$18.8 million, which
includes a final agreement on the working capitfistment. The Critical Infrastructure Businessigies engineers, deploys, manages and
maintains specialty security systems at some oUifited States' most strategic asset and critidedstructure locations. Additionally, these
security systems are typically integrated into canthand control system infrastructure or commamdecs. Approximately 15% of the
revenues of the Critical Infrastructure Businessracurring in nature due to the operation, maarter or sustainment of the security systems
once deployed.

Key Financial Statement Concepts
As of December 28, 2014 , we consider the followfaxgjors to be important in understanding our fgiahstatements.

KGS' and US' business with the U.S. Governmentpaimade contractors is generally performed under oaistbursable, fixed-price or
time and materials contracts. Cost reimbursabléracts for the U.S. Government provide for reimieansent of costs plus the payment of a
Some cost reimbursable contracts include inceri¢ige that are awarded based on performance omtiteact. Under time and materials
contracts, we are reimbursed for labor hours abti@gd hourly billing rates and reimbursed forv&laand other direct expenses at actual cost
plus applied general and administrative
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expenses. In accounting for our long-term contrémtproduction of products and services providethe U.S. Government and provided to
our PSS segment customers under fixed-price cdsfrae utilize both cost-to-cost and units delidemeeasures under the percentage-of-
completion method of accounting in accordance wighprovisions of Financial Accounting StandardaBio*FASB”) Accounting Standards
Codification (“ASC") Topic 605, Revenue Recognitiodnder the units delivered measure of the pergentd-completion method of
accounting, sales are recognized as the unitscaspted by the customer generally using sales sdtwaunits in accordance with the contract
terms. We estimate profit as the difference betwetal estimated revenue and total estimated dasttontract and recognize that profit over
the life of the contract based on deliveries oc@aputed on the basis of the estimated final awetenif costs plus profit. We classify contract
revenues as product sales or service revenuesdiagarpon the predominant attributes of the reléwmderlying contracts.

We consider the following factors when determinifngpllection of a receivable is reasonably assucednprehensive collection
history; results of our communications with custosnéhe current financial position of the custonaar the relevant economic conditions in
the customer's country. If we have had no prioregemce with the customer, we may review repodmfwarious credit organizations to ens
that the customer has a history of paying its ¢oeslin a reliable and effective manner. If thefioial condition of our customers were to
deteriorate and adversely affect their financidlitylio make payments, additional allowances wobédrequired. Additionally, on certain
contracts whereby we perform services for a prieeégal contractor, a specified percentage of thei¢ged trade accounts receivable may be
retained by the customer until we complete theqmtojWe periodically review all retainages for eothbility and record allowances for
doubtful accounts when deemed appropriate, basedioassessment of the associated risks.

We monitor our policies and procedures with respeour contracts on a regular basis to ensureistens application under similar
terms and conditions as well as compliance witlapiilicable government regulations. In additiorstsancurred and allocated to contracts
the U.S. Government are routinely audited by théeBge Contract Audit Agency.

We manage and assess the performance of our bssineased on our performance on individual corstiaat! programs obtained
generally from government organizations with coasation given to our Critical Accounting Principlasd Estimates discussed below. Due to
the Federal Acquisition Regulation rules that govaur business, most types of costs are allowabig we do not focus on individual cost
groupings (such as cost of sales or general anéhé&drative costs) as much as we do on total cehtrasts, which are a key factor in
determining contract operating income. As a resulkévaluating our operating performance, we lookprily at changes in sales and service
revenues, and operating income, including the &ffetsignificant changes in operating income. @fesnin contract estimates are reviewed of
a contract-by-contract basis and are revised piedatid throughout the life of the contract suchtthdjustments to profit resulting from
revisions are made cumulative to the date of thssin in accordance with GAAP. Significant managemjudgments and estimates, incluc
the estimated costs to complete the project, wi@hrmine the project's percentage complete, neustdrle and used in connection with the
revenue recognized in any accounting period. Maitelifferences may result in the amount and tinehgur revenue for any period if
management makes different judgments or utilizBeréint estimates.
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Results of Operations
Comparison of Results for the Year Ended December® 2013 to the Year ended December 28, 2014

RevenuesRkevenues by reportable segment for the years dbdeeimber 29, 2013 and December 28, 28®4as follows (in millions’

2013 2014 $ Change % Change
Unmanned Systems
Service revenues $ —  $ — $ —
Product sales 121.¢ 81.t (40.7) (33.0%
Total Unmanned Systems 121.€ 81.t (40.7 (33.0%
Kratos Government Solutions
Service revenues 233.¢ 207.¢ (26.5) (11.9%
Product sales 385.¢ 382.7 (2.7) (0.9%
Total Kratos Government Solutions 619.: 590.1 (29.9 4.7%
Public Safety & Security
Service revenues 209.7 183.¢ (26.9) (12.5%
Product sales — 13.C 13.C
Total Public Safety & Security 209.7 196.¢ (13.3) (6.9%
Total revenues $ 950.¢ $ 868.C $ (82.6) (8.7)%

Revenues decreased $82.6 million from $950.6 miliip2013 to $868.0 million in 2014 . The decremsevenues was primarily due
to contract delays as a result of competitor ptsetes awards made to Kratos, a decline in shipmetsir defense products, and delays in
orders and awards as a result of the challengitey & government and DoD funding environment, fillbich adversely impacted the timing
of new contract awards, bookings and the Compamy/snues. Additionally, revenues in our KGS Segment also adversely impacted by a
decrease resulting from the expected completidwofsizable satellite communications projects assitope of work completed its natural
contract life cycle transitioning from productiomgustainment, which impacted revenue by approxin&t8.5 million, and continued ongo
weakness and increased competition and commodiitizat our legacy government services businessepfoximately $26.1 million.
Revenues in our US Segment were impacted by thectied of shipments of certain of our aerial tangetducts due primarily to delays in the
timing of follow-on and new international contract awards. Thesectaxhs in our KGS and US segments were partidfset by growth in ou
simulation and training business of $18.8 milliarour KGS Segment. PSS segment revenue decreasdad 3y/million , which was primarily
due to the delay in contract awards and projectssta 2014 offset by the delivery of security tethcommunication equipment of $13.0
million.

Product sales decreased $29.8 million from $507lidbomfor the year ended December 29, 2013 to $2riillion for the year ended
December 28, 2014 , primarily as a result of theide in product shipments due to the factors dised above. As a percentage of total
revenue, product revenues were 53.3% for the yededeDecember 29, 2013 as compared to 55.0% foretdveended December 28, 2014 .
Service revenues decreased by $52.8 million frodaB8#!million for the year ended December 29, 2@18390.8 million for the year ended
December 28, 2014 . The decrease was primariljectla reductions in the legacy government semggenues and other service contracts in
the KGS segment, which reductions are being expee industry wide as a result of declining DoD dpetd, changes in certain DoD
procurement rules and other factors, as well agaltiee expected completion of two sizable sageiitmmunications projects.

As described in our “Critical Accounting Principlasd Estimates” below and in the Notes to Constdi&inancial Statements
contained within this Annual Report, we utilize bholhe cost-to-cost and units delivered measuresnihé percentage-abmpletion method «
accounting for recognizing revenue as providedrfaropic 605. When revenue is calculated using the percent&geropletion method, total
costs incurred to date are compared to total estingosts to complete the contract. These estinaateeviewed monthly on a contract-by-
contract basis, and are revised periodically thnoug the life of the contract such that adjustmémisrofit resulting from revisions are made
cumulative to the date of the revision. Significar@nagement judgments and estimates, includingstimated costs to complete projects,
which determine the project's percentage of congpieiust be made and used in connection withdkierrue recognized in any accounting
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period. Material differences may result in the amaand timing of our revenue for any period if mgeent makes different judgments or
utilizes different estimates. During the reportpeyiods contained herein, we did experience revandamargin adjustments on certain proj
based on the aforementioned factors, but the effestich adjustments, both positive and negativesnevaluated in total were determined to
be immaterial to our Consolidated Financial Stateisie

Cost of revenues.Cost of revenues decreased from $710.6 millioriHe year ended December 29, 2013 to $649.8 mitiothe yea
ended December 28, 2014 . The $60.8 million deergmsost of revenues was primarily a result ofrdased revenue discussed above.

Gross margin declined from 25.2% for the year erfdedember 29, 2013 compared to 25.1% for the yedec December 28, 2014 .
Margins on services decreased from 24.4% for tlae gaded December 29, 2013 to 22.1% for the yededBecember 28, 2014 , due
primarily to an unfavorable mix of revenues andrdased margins in our PSS segment. Margins on pradles increased for the year ended
December 29, 2013 as compared to December 28,f201426.0% to 27.7% , respectively, primarily agault of a change in mix of products
sold. Margins in the KGS segment increased fror@26for the year ended December 29, 2013 to 27.4%&year ended December 28,
2014 , primarily as a result of change in the nfiprmmducts sold. Margins in the US segment incrédisam 19.4% for the year ended
December 29, 2013 to 23.2% for the year ended Deee8, 2014, primarily as a result of increasestcoecorded of approximately $5.5
million on certain aerial target contracts to refletrofits necessary to address design changesded in the year ended December 29, 2013,
compared to net increased costs recorded of $3libmor similar retrofit related matters and ant@ct conversion adjustment on certain of
our unmanned aerial platforms recorded in the gaded December 28, 2014. Margins in the PSS segieergased from 25.8% for the year
ended December 29, 2013 to 19.3% for the year eDdedmber 28, 2014 as a result of decreased seméogins and due to costs incurred on
two sizable projects, which were completed in 26d.dre near-completion, under which we are in tloegss of submitting or have submitted
change orders to customers to reimburse us fovtnke we performed at our customers' request, bhuwvfach we have not completed
negotiations for such change orders, and theréfave not reflected the estimated value of thesagsharders in our revenues to date.

Selling, general and administrative expense&elling, general and administrative expenses &8G decreased $19.6 million from
$193.0 million for the year ended December 29, 2018173.4 million for the year ended DecemberZZ84 . The decrease was primarily the
result of a $13.7 million reduction of amortizatiohintangibles in 2014, as a result of certaiugible assets being fully amortized, as well a
cost reduction actions taken by the Company. Asregntage of revenues, SG&A decreased from 20.8%sfml 2013 to 20.0% for fiscal
2014 . Excluding amortization of intangibles of $fnillion for the year ended December 29, 2013amdrtization of intangibles of $22.5
million for the year ended December 28, 2014 , SGR¢keased as a percentage of revenues from 18.3%4% for the year ended
December 29, 2013 and December 28, 2014 , respBctiwimarily as a result of the decline in revesudiscussed previously, and increased
compliance costs including internal cyber securdgts incurred to protect the Company’s assetsSananes Oxley and audit compliance
costs including internal audit and external audsts.

Merger and acquisition related itemsMerger and acquisition expenses increased $4li@mirom a benefit of $3.8 million to $0.2
million expense for the years ended December 283 201d December 28, 2014 , respectively. The itesfe$3.8 million in 2013 was due to
the reduction in a $3.1 million liability as a rétsof our final settlement of our obligations reldtto former officers and directors of Integral
Systems, Inc. ("Integral”) on July 1, 2013, as vaslia $2.7 million settlement, net of associatgdlléees, arising from a contract dispute with
former subcontractor of the Company pursuant tetéesnent agreement executed in December 2013. &dhese benefits were offset
partially by legal fees and settlements relategrtor acquisitions.

Internal research and development (IR&D) expens#?&D expenses increased from $21.4 million fae ffear ended December 29,
2013 to $23.0 million for the year ended Decemi812D14 . As a percentage of revenues, IR&D in@@&m 2.3% of revenues for the year
ended December 29, 2013 to 2.6% of revenues foygdheended December 28, 2014 as a result of neénaestments the Company made
primarily related to new programs and platformshia electronic products business, the unmannedregsarea, and the satellite
communications business.

Unused office space and oth&he benefit of $2.4 million for the year ended Daber 29, 2013 was due to a reduction in the exces:
facility accrual of office space at the Columbiaatyland administrative facilities, partially offdey expenses related to workforce reductior
a result of cost reduction initiatives we implenmeghticross the Company. The expense of $1.7 mithiothe year ended December 28, 2014
was primarily due to an estimated excess facilityraal of office space at our Sacramento, Califoedministrative facilities, as well as due to
employee termination costs related to personnelatézh actions taken during the year.
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Other expense, netOther expense, net increased from $63.7 millio$32.8 million for the years ended December 29324nd
December 28, 2014 , respectively. The increaseperese of $29.1 million was primarily related t®$8million loss on the extinguishment of
the Company’s 10% Senior Secured Notes due 20fs&tddy a $9.4 million reduction in interest expen®sulting from the refinance of the
Company’s 10% Senior Secured Notes to the 7% S&eioured Notes.

Provision (benefit) for income taxeThe provision for income taxes changed from no o on a loss of $31.9 million from continuing
operations before income taxes for the year endambidber 29, 2013 to a provision of $5.1 millionaoloss before income taxes of $72.9
million for the year ended December 28, 2014 . Zém® provision for the year ended December 29, 2d8primarily comprised of a
provision for foreign and state taxes offset bgalienefit related to a statute of limitations expdn of unrecognized tax benefits. The
provision for the year ended December 28, 2014piasarily comprised of a provision for foreign astéte taxes increased by the change in
the indefinite life deferred tax liability. See Nd8 of Notes to the Consolidated Financial Stategten a further discussion of our income
taxes.

Loss from discontinued operatioh@ss from discontinued operations decreased froi® $tllion to $0.0 million for the years ended
December 29, 2013 and December 28, 2014 , respBctivhe revenue and loss from discontinued opmratior 2013 was primarily related to
operations of the non-core businesses from thgtdat@cquisition that were classified as held fdesnd subsequently sold. See Note 9 of the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements forthadu discussion of our discontinued operatic

The following table presents the results of distardgd operations (in millions):

Year ended Year ended
December 29, December 28,
2013 2014
Revenue $ 37 $ —
Loss before taxes (5.3 —
Benefit for income taxes — —
Net loss $ (5.3 $ —

Comparison of Results for the Year Ended December03 2012 to the Year ended December 29, 2013

RevenuesRRevenues by reportable segment for the years dbdeeimber 30, 2012 and December 29, 28¥&3as follows (in millions’

2012 2013 $Change % Change
Unmanned Systems
Service revenues $ - $ — 3 —
Product sales 92.5 121.¢ 29.5 31.7%
Total Unmanned Systems 92.: 121.¢ 29.C 31L.7%
Kratos Government Solutions
Service revenues 264.( 233.¢ (30.7) (11.9%
Product Sales 426.¢ 385.¢ (41.5) (9.71%
Total Kratos Government Solutions 690.¢ 619.¢ (71.6) (10.H%
Public Safety & Security
Service revenues 186.( 209.% 23.7 12.7%
Product sales — — —
Total Public Safety & Security 186.( 209.% 23.7 12.7%
Total revenues $ 969.z § 950 $(18.6) (1.9%
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Revenues decreased $18.6 million from $969.2 milii2012 to $950.6 million in 2013. Included ir@013 revenues are increased
revenues of $32.3 million generated from the adgoiisof CEi in 2012 in our US segment. RevenuesunKGS segment were impacted by
organic increases in our weapons range support afdsk.0 million were offset by continued reduc8cnd compression in our legacy
government service revenues of approximately $adll§on, which have continued to be negatively irofgal by increased competitive pricing
pressures, and continued in-sourcing of our emgleYyy the U.S. Government. In addition, expectddagons due to the completion of
production and subsequent migration to the maimemahase of certain of our satellite communicatipmjects resulted in reduced annual
revenues of $18.3 million. Finally, the delay ohtract awards and shipments caused by the unagrtaithe DoD budgetary environment
impacted revenues primarily in our ground equipmieallistic missile target and our electronic waegfaroducts business by an aggregate
amount of $28.0 million. PSS segment revenue ise@dy $23.7 million, which was primarily due toosty demand for security and
surveillance systems primarily in our transportaimd utility vertical within our critical infragicture business.

Product sales, which are all from the KGS and Ufsremt, decreased $12.2 million from $519.2 millionthe year ended
December 30, 2012 to $507.0 million for the yeateghDecember 29, 2013. As a percentage of totehiey;, product revenues were 53.6% fo
the year ended December 30, 2012 as compared3®58r the year ended December 29, 2013. An inergaproduct sales primarily related
to the acquisition of CEi was offset by reducedeosdand timing on shipments in our ground equipraedtelectronic warfare businesses.
Service revenues decreased by $6.4 million fron0®!illion for the year ended December 30, 2018443.6 million for the year ended
December 29, 2013. The decrease was primarilyectkat the reductions in service revenue in othsimass units in the KGS segment as
discussed above.

Cost of revenues.Cost of revenues decreased from $712.0 millioriHe year ended December 30, 2012 to $710.6 mifto the yee
ended December 29, 2013. The $1.4 million decrigasest of revenues was primarily a result of asréase resulting from our 2012
acquisition of CEi offset by reductions in coste¥fenues in our KGS segment as a result of deateasenue as discussed above.

Gross margin declined from 26.5% for the year erfdedember 30, 2012 compared to 25.2% for the yeded December 29, 2013.
Margins on services increased from 22.0% for ther y@ded December 30, 2012 to 24.4% for the yadedeBDecember 29, 2013, primarily
reflecting the impact of cost reduction actionsha@e taken. Margins on products decreased forehe gnded December 30, 2012 as comj
to December 29, 2013 from 30.4% to 26.0%, respelgtias a result of a change in mix of products silargins in the KGS segment
decreased from 24.2% for the year ended Decemh@03@ to 23.7% for the year ended December 2B péitnarily as a result of change in
mix of products sold. Margins in the US segmentrel@sed from 25.7% for the year ended December@®, & 19.5% for the year ended
December 29, 2013 due primarily to contract desggrofit costs of approximately $7.6 million receddin 2013 as a result of an unsuccessful
flight test failure of one of our aerial targetsalgins in the PSS segment decreased from 26.5%dqgrear ended December 30, 2012 to 2¢
for the year ended December 29, 2013 as a restiieahix of revenue and due to the impact of cetaiger projects that were awarded at
more competitive margins.

Selling, general and administrative expenseelling, general and administrative expenses &8G decreased $0.1 million from
$193.1 million for the year ended December 30, 201%193.0 million for the year ended DecemberZf@,3. The decrease was primarily a
result of the additional SG&A expenses associatiéll thve CEi business offset in part by cost redurctictions we have made. As a percentag
of revenues, SG&A increased from 19.9% for fisdal2to 20.3% for fiscal 2013. Excluding amortizatuf intangibles of $43.9 million for
the year ended December 30, 2012 and amortizationamgibles of $36.2 million for the year endedd@mber 29, 2013, SG&A increased
percentage of revenues from 15.4% to 16.5% foy#ae ended December 30, 2012 and December 29, @&l ctively, primarily reflecting a
full year of the SG&A of our acquisition of CEi, wdhn operates at a higher SG&A infrastructure supfian our other businesses.

Merger and acquisition related itemsMerger and acquisition benefit increased $1.lioniffrom $2.7 million benefit to a benefit of
$3.8 million for the years ended December 30, 281i® December 29, 2013, respectively. Acquisitigreases related to our acquisitions of
the Critical Infrastructure Business and CEi in 20dere offset by a reduction in liabilities of $4rillion as a result of reaching an agreement
over previously disputed fees, a change in estimiaterr indemnity obligations related to formeretitors and officers of Integral as a result of
the settlement of the matter against one of thear in November 2012 and an adjustment to thmattd contingent acquisition considera
owed to Southside Container & Trailer, LLC ("SCTThe benefit of $3.8 million in 2013 was due to teduction in a $3.1 million liability as
result of our final settlement of our obligatiom$ated to former officers and directors of IntegmalJuly 1, 2013, as well as a $2.7 million
settlement, net of associated legal fees, arismg fa contract dispute with a former subcontracfdhe Company pursuant to a settlement
agreement executed in December 2013. Both of thexsefits were offset partially by legal fees antlesments related to prior acquisitions.
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Research and development expensBesearch and development expenses increasediro® million for the year ended
December 30, 2012 to $21.4 million for the yeareshBecember 29, 2013 primarily related to the aitions of CEi, as well as due to select
investments we are making to enhance certain gatalectronic warfare/electronic attack produartsl unmanned systems.

Impairment of goodwill and intangible assdts2012, as a result of reduced defense spendiaghteat of sequestration and a
decrease in current market multiples and our spoide and the corresponding negative impact originealue of the KGS and US reporting
units, we incurred a non-cash goodwill impairmemarge of $82.0 million. We also incurred a reash intangible asset charge of $14.6 mil
related to the decision to minimize the use of@harleston Marine Containers, Inc. and Henry BEdsctronics, Inc. ("HBE"), trade names as
part of our overall branding strategy.

Unused office space and oth&he expense of $2.1 million for the year ended Demr 30, 2012 was a result of an increase in our
excess facility accrual due to consolidation ofa&ffspace at our Lanham, Maryland and HuntsvillabAma administrative facilities. The
credit of $4.7 million for the year ended DecemP@y 2013 was due to a reduction in the excesstiaaitcrual of office space at the Columt
Maryland administrative facilities, primarily offsey expenses related to workforce reductionsrasalt of cost reduction initiatives we have
implemented across the Company.

Other expense, netOther expense, net decreased from $64.8 milid68.7 million for the years ended December 32224nd
December 29, 2013, respectively. The decreaseperese of $1.1 million was mainly due to a decred$2.4 million in the net interest
income/expense, partially offset by a decreasdhiarancome of $1.3 million.

Provision (benefit) for income taxekhe provision for income taxes decreased from a&fiteof $1.6 million on a loss of $114.5
million from continuing operations before incomeda for the year ended December 30, 2012 to ndgioovon a loss before income taxes of
$31.9 million for the year ended December 29, 20h® benefit for the year ended December 30, 20d2miimarily due to the impairment of
goodwill and intangible assets offset by state inedaxes. The zero provision for the year endeceBéer 29, 2013 was primarily comprised
of a provision for foreign and state taxes offsetdx benefit related to a statute of limitatioxpieation of unrecognized tax benefits.

Loss from discontinued operatioh@ss from discontinued operations increased frorb #iillion to $5.3 million for the year ended
December 30, 2012 and December 29, 2013, resplyctine?012 and 2013, the loss was primarily dutgh®operations of the non-core
businesses from the Integral acquisition that hmen classified as held for sale. Revenues geddgitthese businesses were approximately
$18.5 million and $3.7 million for the years endgecember 30, 2012 and December 29, 2013, resplyctivass before income taxes was $1.€
million and $5.3 million for the years ended DecemB0, 2012 and December 29, 2013, respectivetjudied in the loss for December 30,
2012 is a goodwill impairment charge of $1.5 milli&?Ve recognized a tax benefit of $0.3 milliontie tyear ended December 30, 2012
primarily related to the expiration of the statafdimitations for certain domestic and foreign @ontingencies.

The following table presents the results of distardd operations (in millions):

Year ended Year ended
December 30, December 29,
2012 2013
Revenue $ 18.t $ 3.7
Loss before taxes (1.8 (5.9
Benefit for income taxes (0.3 —
Net loss $ 1.5 3 (5.9

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 28, 2014 , we had cash and cashaqois of $34.7 million compared with cash anchaaguivalents of $55.7
million as of December 29, 2013 , which include2 $1million and $16.0 million , respectively, ofsteand cash equivalents held by our
foreign subsidiaries. We are not presently awar@ngfrestrictions on the repatriation of these fymbwever, they are essentially considered
permanently invested in these foreign subsidiatigbese funds were
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needed to fund our operations or satisfy obligationthe U.S. they could be repatriated, and thegiatriation into the U.S. may cause us to
incur additional U.S. income taxes or foreign wittding taxes. Any additional taxes could be offsepart or in whole, by foreign tax credits.
The amount of such taxes and application of tagitsevould be dependent on the income tax lawsatiner circumstances at the time these
amounts are repatriated. Based on these variabiesiot practicable to determine the income takRility that might be incurred if these
earnings were to be repatriated. We do not cusrémténd to repatriate these earnings.

Our total debt, including capital lease obligatiomsncipal due on the Notes, other term debt, theddiscount of $5.8 million on the
Notes issued, increased $19.4 million from $644.7 million as of December, 2813 to $664.1 million as of December 28, 20The increas
in debt was primarily due to the Company’s refiriagof its existing $625.0 million 10% Senior SestiNotes due 2017, which occurred in
May 2014. The Company refinanced its existing 1086i& Notes with an offering of $625.0 million aggate principal amount of 7.00%
Senior Secured Notes due 2019. The proceeds frerftlring, as well as borrowings of $41.0 millifisam our new credit agreement and cast
from operations were used to extinguish the Comisagnisting 10% Senior Secured Notes due 2017 aupay all fees and expenses related
thereto.

We use our operating cash flow to finance trad®aits receivable, fund necessary increases imiakg fund capital expenditures,
our R&D investments, and our ongoing operationsjise our debt and make strategic acquisitionsafémg trade accounts receivable is
necessary because, on average, our customers gayos as quickly as we pay our vendors and erepbjor their goods and services sin
number of our receivables are contractually bikadohd due to us only when certain contractual moifess are achieved. As our mix of rever
has become more product rather than service focosedlays sales outstanding on our receivables haen impacted and can fluctuate due t
contractual billing milestones under which we amakhle to bill and collect certain amounts until thiestones have been satisfied. Financing
increases in inventory balances is necessary fith 8lipment requirements to meet delivery schedwf our customers. Cash from continuing
operations is primarily derived from our customentracts in progress and associated changes inngockpital components.

A summary of our net cash provided by operating/giets from continuing operations from our Conslalied Statements of Cash
Flows is as follows (in millions):

Year Ended
December 30, 2012 December 29, 2013  December 28, 2014
Net cash provided by operating activities from @ming operations $ 52 % 22¢€¢ % 7.7

Our cash provided by operating activities was intpddy interest and transaction expenses we plaitbdeto the completion of a
strategic acquisition 2012. We paid $64.0 millic63.8 million , and $57.1 million in interest exyge in 2012 , 2013 , and 2014 , respectively
Cash provided by operating activities in 2012 ,2afhd 2014 also includes $5.4 million , $0.6 millicand $0.0 million , respectively, in
transaction costs paid related to our acquisiti&e® Note 3 and Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidateaincial Statements contained within this
Annual Report for a further discussion of our asgigns and debt. Excluding the payment of traneaaxpenses, cash provided by operating
activities was $57.7 million , $23.2 million , a@d.7 million in 2012 , 2013, and 2014 , respedyive
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Our cash used in investing activities from contiguoperations is summarized as follows (in milljons

Year Ended
December 30, 201 December 29, 2013 December 28, 2014

Investing activities:

Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired $ (149.9) $ 22 % (2.6)
Proceeds from the disposition of discontinued djmmra 0.3 1.3 —
Change in restricted cash 0.€ 04 (0.9
Capital expenditures (16.6) (16.6) (14.2)

Net cash used in investing activities from contirgudperations $ (165.0) $ az2.7n % (17.2)

Cash paid for acquisitions accounted for the migsiificant outlays for investing activities for tlyear ended December 30, 2012 as &
result of the implementation of our strategy toedlsify our business through strategic acquisiti@s.July 2, 2012, we completed the
acquisition of CEi and paid approximately $135.0ion for the cash portion of the purchase of C&inenon stock and to retire CEi's existing
debt and capital leases.

Capital expenditures in 2012, 2013, and 2014 refle@stments we made for certain machinery, tggipement, and demonstration
units in our unmanned aerial systems businessicaadesser degree, investments we made in our@héc products business, and our satellite
communications business.
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Cash provided by financing activities from contimglioperations is summarized as follows (in milljpns

Year Ended
December 30, 2012 December 29, 2013 December 28, 2014

Financing activities:

Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt $ — 3 — 3 618.t
Extinguishment of long-term debt — — (661.5)
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock 97.C — —
Cash paid for contingent acquisition consideration (2.5) (2.2 —
Borrowings under credit facility 50.C — 41.C
Repayment under credit facility (51.0 (2.0 (2.0
Debt issuance costs paid (1.2 — (10.0
Proceeds from the exercise of restricted stockspaihployee stock option
and employee stock purchase plan — 1.t B2
Other (1.4 (0.9 —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activifiesn
continuing operations $ 90.£ $ (20 $ (9.7

On May 15, 2012, we sold 20.0 million shares of own stock at a purchase price of $5.00 per shaaa imderwritten public
offering. We received gross proceeds of $100.0anillAfter deducting underwriting and other offeriexpenses, we received approximately
$97.0 million in net proceeds. We used the netgeds from this offering as well as borrowings od $4million from our revolving line of
credit to fund the cash consideration paid to tbhekdholders of CEi in connection with our acquasitin July 2012. In September 2012, we
repaid the $40.0 million borrowed on our revolvimg of credit for the acquisition of CEi.

Net cash provided by financing activities for treay ended December 28, 2014 reflects refinanci2®.$amillion of our 10% Senior
Secured Notes due in 2017 with $625.0 million @0%6 Senior Secured Notes due in 2019 as well 44 & $nillion borrowing on our new
Credit Agreement.

Cash provided by (used in) discontinued operatiessimmarized as follows (in millions):

Year Ended
December 30, 201 December 29, 2013 December 28, 2014
Net cash flows provided by (used in) discontinupdrations $ 13 % 13 3 (1.6

Cash flow from discontinued operations is primaréjated to non-core businesses we acquired iimtkegral acquisition.
7.00% Senior Secured Notes due 2019

In May 2014, we refinanced our $625.0 million 10&n®r Secured Notes due in 2017 (the "10% Notegl) $625.0 million of newl
issued 7.00% Senior Secured Notes due in 2019'{#eNotes"). The net proceeds from the issuandbe% Notes was $618.5 million a
an original issue discount of $6.5 million. We inad debt issuance costs of $8.7 million associaiétthe new 7% Notes. We utilized the
proceeds from the 7% Notes, a $41.0 million dravaarew credit agreement discussed below, as weksts from operations to extinguish
10% Notes. The total reacquisition price of the 1R&tes was $661.5 million, including a $31.2 mifliearly termination fee, the write off
$15.5 million of unamortized issue costs, $12.9iamlof unamortized premium, along with $5.3 milliof additional interest while in escrc
which resulted in a loss on extinguishment of $38illion.

We completed the offering of the 7% Notes (hereafte "Notes”)in a private placement conducted pursuant to RdkAlanc
Regulation S under the Securities Act of 1933, msraded (the “Act”).The Notes are governed by an Indenture dated MayQ44 (th
“Indenture”) among us, certain of our subsidiaftbe “Guarantors”) and Wilmington Trust, National
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Association, as Trustee and Collateral Agent. Ar@utr can be released from its Guarantee if (apfathe Capital Stock issued by si
Guarantor or all or substantially all of the ass#tsuch Guarantor are sold or otherwise dispose¢bd we designate such Guarantor a
Unrestricted Subsidiary; (c) we exercised our letgfeasance option or its covenant defeasanceng(ftid upon satisfaction and discharg
the Indenture or payment in full in cash of thenpipal of, premium, if any, accrued and unpaidriegé

The holders of the Notes have a first priority l@msubstantially all of our assets and the assfdtse Guarantors, except with resj
to accounts receivable, inventory, deposit accoueatsurities accounts, cash, securities and geiméaalgibles (other than intellectual propel
on which the holders of the Notes have a secomtdifyriien to the Company's $110.0 million crediraement.

We pay interest on the Notes semi-annually, inaaseon May 15 and November 15 of each year.
The Notes include customary covenants and everdsfafilt as well as a consolidated fixed charge @ft2.0:1 for the incurrence of additiol
indebtedness. Negative covenants include, amoreg titmgs, limitations on additional debt, lienegative pledges, investments, dividends,
stock repurchases, asset sales and affiliate thosa. Events of default include, among other &vemon-performance of covenants, breach o
representations, cross-default to other materibd, dmnkruptcy, insolvency, material judgments enanges in control. As of December 28,
2014 , we were in compliance with the covenantgainad in the Indenture governing the Notes.

On or after May 15, 2016, we may redeem some afalie Notes at 105.25% of the aggregate prin@pabunt of such Notes throL
May 15, 2017, 102.625% of the aggregate principadant of such Notes through May 15, 2018 and 100%eaggregate principal amount
such Notes thereafter, plus accrued and unpaitestteo the date of redemption. In addition, we medeem up to 35% of the Notes at 107¢
the aggregate principal amount of such notes plosiad and unpaid interest before May 15, 2016 thighnet proceeds of certain equity
offerings. We may also redeem some or all of theeblbefore May 15, 2016 at a redemption price 6240f the principal amount thereof p
accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemptate, plus a “make whole” premium. In additiahpne time prior to May 15, 2016, we
may redeem up to 10% of the original aggregatecjrad amount of the Notes issued under the Inderdtia redemption price of 103% of the
principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpdierést to the date of redemption.

On September 17, 2014, we commenced an offer toaege the outstanding Notes for an equal amounéwf7.00% Senior Secul
Notes due 2019 (th“Exchange Notes"}hat have been registered under the SecuritiefAt933, as amended. We made the exchange
pursuant to the terms of the Registration Rightse&gent, dated May 14, 2014, that it entered iritb the Guarantors and the represent;
of the initial purchasers of the Notes. The purpafsthe exchange offer was to allow holders ofXlides to exchange their Notes for Exche
Notes that are not subject to transfer restrictidime terms of the Exchange Notes are identicallimaterial respects to the terms of the Ni
except the Exchange Notes have been registered thed8ecurities Act. The Exchange Notes are fafigt unconditionally guaranteed, joir
and severally, on a senior secured basis by useand of our subsidiaries, as the guarantors thefided Company pays interest on
Exchange Notes serainnually, in arrears, on May 15 and November 18awh year. We completed the exchange offer on @ctbh 2014, i
which time the holders of all outstanding Notes bétted to exchange their Notes for Exchange Ndteshave no further obligations un
the Registration Rights Agreement.

Other Indebtedness
$110.0 Million Credit Agreement

On May 14, 2014, we replaced the credit facilityhaeyBank National Association and entered intoradit and Security Agreeme
(the “Credit Agreement”), by and among the us,lémelers from time to time party thereto, SunTruahlB as Agent (the “Agent”’PNC Bank
National Association, as Joint Lead Arranger anaudoentation Agent and SunTrust Robinson Humphnay.,, las Joint Lead Arranger ¢
Sole Book Runner. The Credit Agreement establishéseyear senior secured revolving credit facility ire tmaximum amount of $11(
million (subject to a potential increase of the maxm principal amount to $135.0 million, subjectttee Agent's and applicable lenders
approval as described therein), consisting of dirsaitfor letters of credit in the amount not to e&d $50.0 million, as well as a swingline |
in an aggregate principal amount at any time ontstey not to exceed $10.0 million. The Credit Agneat is secured by a lien on substant
all of our assets and the assets of the guaratitersunder, subject to certain exceptions and pemniiens. The Credit Agreement has a
priority lien on accounts receivable, inventorypdsit accounts, securities accounts, cash, sexur@hd general intangibles (other 1
intellectual property). On all other assets, theditrAgreement has a second priority lien juniothi® lien securing the Notes.
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Borrowings under the Credit Agreement may takefohm of a base rate revolving loan, Eurodollar teway loan or swingline
loan. Base rate revolving loans and swingline $oaiil bear interest at a rate per annum equdiécsim of the applicable margin from time to
time in effect plus the highest of (i) the Agemisme lending rate, as in effect at such time,tfi§ federal funds rate, as in effect at such time,
plus 0.50% per annum, and (iii) the adjusted LIB@t determined at such time for an interest pesfashe month, plus 1.00% per annum.
Eurodollar revolving loans will bear interest atade per annum equal to the sum of the applicalalgim from time to time in effect plus the
adjusted LIBOR rate. The applicable margin variesvieen 1.50% - 2.00% for base rate revolving l@arsswingline loans and 2.5098.00%
for Eurodollar loans, and is based on several fadgteluding our then-existing borrowing base amalltender’s total commitment amount and
revolving credit exposure. The calculation of oarrbwing base takes into account several itemsimgl#o us and our subsidiaries, including
amounts due and owing under billed and unbillesdbants receivables, then-held eligible raw mateiiatentory, work-in-process inventory,
and applicable reserves. As of December 28, 2@ibdetwas $41.0 million outstanding on the Credite®gnent and $13.6 million was
outstanding on letters of credit, resulting in betrowing base availability of $45.1 million . Weere in compliance with the financial
covenants as of December 28, 2014 .

Debt Acquired in Acquisition of Herley

We assumed a $10.0 million tgear term loan with a bank in Israel that Herleteeed into on September 16, 2008 in connection
the acquisition of one of its wholly owned subsiiia. The balance as of December 28, 2014 wasr§#li8n , and the loan is payable in
quarterly installments of $0.3 million plus interes LIBOR plus a margin of 1.5%. The loan agreententains various covenants including a
minimum net equity covenant as defined in the lagreement. We were in compliance with the finanoisenants of the loan agreement as o
December 28, 2014 .

Payments in Connection with Acquisitions

In connection with our business acquisitions, wesad to make additional future payments to seblased on final purchase price
adjustments and the expiration of certain inderoaifon obligations. Pursuant to the provision3 @ic 805, such amounts are recorded at fail
value on the acquisition date.

The agreement and plan of merger entered intorine@ction with our acquisition of Securelnfo provddbat upon achievement of
certain cash receipts, revenue and EBITDA in 2@ilwere obligated to pay the former stockholderSexdurelnfo additional cash contingent
consideration. In March 2012, we paid $1.5 millrefated to this contingent consideration.

Pursuant to the terms of the agreement and plareojer with DEI Services Corporation entered imoAoigust 9, 2010 (“the DEI
Agreement”), upon achievement of certain cash ptseievenue, EBITDA and backlog amounts in 2000,12and 2012, we were obligated to
pay certain additional contingent consideratior (fBEI Contingent Consideration”). We have paid®illion related to the DEI Contingent
Consideration, of which $2.5 million and $2.1 naitliwas paid in April 2012 and April 2013, respeelw

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

We have no off-balance sheet arrangements as defiriRegulation S-K, Item 303(a)(4)(ii).
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Contractual Obligations and Commitments
The following table summarizes our contractual gdgions and other commitments at December 28, 2aihd the effect such

obligations could have on our liquidity and casiwflin future periods (in millions):

Payments due/forecast by Period

Total 2015 2016 - 2017 2018 - 2019 2020 and After
Debt, net of interest(1) $ 669.6 $ 1C $ 2C % 666.6 $ —
Estimated interest on debt(2) 191.5 43.¢ 87.€ 60.2 —
Purchase orders(3) 109.¢ 92.7 16.€ 0.2 0.3
Operating leases(4) 84.¢ 20.2 32.2 23.2 9.1
Capital leases(4) 0.1 0.1 — — —
Unrecognized tax benefits, including
interest and penalties(5) — — — — —
Total commitments and recorded
liabilities $ 1,056.. $ 157.¢ $ 138 $ 7505 % 9.4

(1) The Notes in the aggregate principal amount of $B2illion are due May 15, 2019. See Note 5 inMag¢es to Consolidated Financ
Statements contained within this Annual Reporffiother details.

(2) Includes interest payments based on curréetdat rates for variable rate debt and the N&es.Note 5 in the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements contained within in this AririR@port for further details.

3) Purchase orders include commitments in whieltitien purchase order has been issued to a vehdbthe goods have not been
received or services have not been performed.

4 We have entered into or acquired various remmcelable operating lease agreements that expivaraus dates through 2022. The
amounts include $11.3 million in excess facilists and exclude expected sublease income. SeeéNotbe Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements contained within this Annuap&t for further detalils.

(5) Our Consolidated Balance Sheet at Decembe2@B} included a $2.8 million noncurrent liabilftyr uncertain tax positions, all of
which may result in cash payments. The future payselated to uncertain tax positions have nobhlpgesented in the table above
due to the uncertainty of the amounts and timingash settlement with the taxing authorities.

As of December 28, 2014 , we have $13.6 milliostahdby letters of credit outstanding. Our lettdrsredit are primarily related to
milestone payments received from foreign custorfars/hich the customer has not yet received theyeg and our prior workers
compensation program. Additional information regagcour financial commitments at December 28, 2@1grovided in the Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements contained in&hisual Report, specifically Note 15.

Other Liquidity Matters

We intend to fund our cash requirements with céshid from operating activities and borrowings untter Credit Agreement. We
believe these sources should be sufficient to meetash needs for at least the next 12 monthsligesissed in Item 1A, “Risk Factors”
contained within this Annual Report, our quartexfyd annual operating results have fluctuated irpdst and may vary in the future due to a
variety of factors, many of which are external tw oontrol. If the conditions in our industry deteate or our customers cancel or postpone
projects or if we are unable to sufficiently incseaur revenues or further reduce our expensesjayeexperience, in the future, a significant
long-term negative impact to our financial resaltsl cash flows from operations. In such a situatimcould fall out of compliance with our
financial and other covenants which, if not waivealld limit our liquidity and capital resources.

Critical Accounting Principles and Estimates

We have identified the following critical accourgipolicies that affect our more significant judgrgeand estimates used in the
preparation of our Consolidated Financial Statemerte preparation of our financial statementsimfarmity
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with GAAP requires us to make estimates and judgsmat affect the reported amounts of assetsiahitities, stockholders' equity, revenues
and expenses, and related disclosures of contirgsets and liabilities. On a periodic basis, &smdel necessary, we evaluate our estimates,
including those related to revenue recognitiorgvadince for doubtful accounts, valuation of inventimicluding the reserves for excess and
obsolete inventory, valuation of long-lived assetduding identifiable intangibles and goodwill,cainting for income taxes including the
related valuation allowance, warranties, accruaipértial self-insurance, contingencies and lit@a business combination purchase price
allocations, contingent acquisition consideratstock-based compensation, and losses on unused sfface. We explain these accounting
policies in the Notes to Consolidated Financiat&tents contained within this Annual Report antelvant sections in this discussion and
analysis. These estimates are based on the infomthgt is currently available and on various o#esumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Actual resolilsl vary from those estimates under differentiaggions or conditions and such
differences may be material.

Revenue recognitio/e generate our revenue from three different tyffeontractual arrangements: cost-plus-fee corgraiche-
and-materials contracts, and fixed-price contrdRé&senue on cost-pluee contracts is recognized to the extent of allde/aosts incurred plt
an estimate of the applicable fees earned. We @dengked fees under cost-plus-fee contracts tedraed in proportion to the allowable costs
incurred in performance of the contract. We recpgtine relevant portion of the expected fee toviberded by the customer at the time sucl
can be reasonably estimated, based on factorsasuatr prior award experience and communicatiotis the customer regarding performar
including any interim performance evaluations readeyy the customer. Revenue on time-and-mater@aigacts is recognized to the extent of
billable rates times hours delivered for services/jgled, to the extent of material cost for produibelivered to customers, and to the extent of
expenses incurred on behalf of the customers.

We have three basic categories of fixed-price emtdr fixed unit price, fixed-price level of effpeind fixedprice completion. Reven
recognition methods on fixed-price contracts wélry depending on the nature of the work and théraonterms. Revenues on fixed-price
service contracts are recorded as work is perfoimadcordance witfiopic 605. Topic 605generally requires revenue to be deferred until all
of the following have occurred: (1) there is a caat in place, (2) delivery has occurred or sewvitave been provided, (3) the price is fixed or
determinable, and (4) collectability is reasonadsdgured. Revenues on fixed-price contracts thaineedelivery of specific items may be
recorded based on a price per unit as units areedetl. Revenue for fixed-price contracts in whigd are paid a specific amount to provide
services for a stated period of time is recogniztdbly over the service period.

A portion of our fixed-price completion contract avithin the scope dfopic 605. For these contracts, revenue is recognized using
the percentage-afempletion method based on the ratio of total ciostsrred to date compared to estimated total dcostemplete the contrax
Estimates of costs to complete include materiaéadilabor, overhead, and allowable indirect expsrisr our government contracts. These
estimates are reviewed and, if necessary, revigedhty on a contract-by-contract basis. If, assulteof this review, we determine that a loss
on a contract is probable, then the full amourgstimated loss is charged to operations in thegériis determined that it is probable a loss
will be realized from the full performance of thentract. In certain instances, when our customave hequested that we commence work |
to receipt of the contract award and funding, weehacurred costs related to that specific antigigaontract, and we believe recoverability of
the costs is probable, we may defer those costsried until the associated contract has been adade funded by the customer.

In accounting for our long-term contracts for protilon of products provided to the U.S. Governmerat utilize both cost-to-cost and
units delivered measures under the percentageropletion method of accounting under the provisioh$opic 605. Under the units deliver:
measure of the percentage-of-completion method@dwanting, sales are recognized as the units aepted by the customer generally using
sales values for units in accordance with the emhterms. We estimate profit as the differencevben total estimated revenue and total
estimated cost of a contract and recognize thdit preer the life of the contract based on unitvdged or as computed on the basis of the
estimated final average unit costs plus profit. 8Messify contract revenues as product sales oicgergvenues depending upon the predom
attributes of the relevant underlying contractgniicant management judgments and estimates,dimdubut not limited to the estimated costs
to complete projects, must be made and used inembion with the revenue recognized in any accognpieriod. A cancellation, schedule
delay, or modification of a fixed-price contracatlis accounted for using the percentage-of-congplehethod may adversely affect our gross
margins for the period in which the contract is fified or canceled. Under certain circumstancesrecellation or negative modification could
result in us having to reverse revenue that wegmized in a prior period, thus significantly recagithe amount of revenues we recognize for
the period in which the adjustment is made. Cowrdmgly, a positive modification may positivelyfedt our gross margins. In addition, a
schedule delay or modifications can result in amease in estimated cost to complete the projgathwvould also result in an impact to our
gross margin. Material differences may result m@mount and timing of our revenue for any perfadanagement made different judgments
or utilized different estimates.
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It is our policy to review any arrangement containsoftware or software deliverables and servigasnat the criteria contained in
FASB ASC Topic 985, SoftwalTopic 985") and related technical practice aids. Under theipravs of Topic 985, we review the contract
value of software deliverables and services andradghe allocations of the contract value based endér Specific Objective Evidence
(“VSOE"). All software arrangements requiring sificant production, modification, or customizatioftbe software are accounted for in
conformity withTopic 605.

Our contracts may include the provision of morentbae of our services (“multiple element arrangetsignin these situations, we
apply the guidance dfopic 605.Accordingly, for applicable arrangements, reveragognition includes the proper identification opaeate
units of accounting and the allocation of revencr®ss all elements based on relative fair valuéh, proper consideration given to the
guidance provided by other authoritative literature

For multiple element arrangements that include\ward products containing software essential tdhirdware products' functionality
and undelivered non-software services, we allogatenue to all deliverables based on their relag@léng prices. In such circumstances, we
use a hierarchy to determine the selling pricegtaised for allocating revenue to deliverablesV80E, (i) thirdparty evidence of selling prit
(“TPE"), and (iii) best estimate of the selling q&i(“ESP”).

VSOE generally exists only when we sell the delbde separately and is the price actually chargadstfor that deliverable. TPE is
determined based on competitor prices for simigdivdrables when sold separately. Generally, ofaripigs contain significant differentiation
such that comparable pricing of products with samilinctionality cannot be obtained. Furthermore,ase unable to reliably determine what
similar competitor products' selling prices areacstand-alone basis. Therefore, we typically ateabte to obtain TPE of selling price. ESP
reflects our best estimates of what the sellinggsriof elements would be if they were sold regylan a stand-alone basis. We determine ESF
for a product or service by considering multipletéas including, but not limited to major producbgpings, geographies, market conditions,
competitive landscape, internal costs, gross mangjectives and pricing practices. The determimatibESP is made through consultation \
our management, taking into consideration our ntarfyestrategy.

We account for multiple element arrangements tbasist only of software or softwaretated products, including the sale of upgre
to previously sold software, in accordance withuistdy specific software accounting guidance. Fehduansactions, revenue on arrangement:
that include multiple elements is allocated to esleiment based on the relative fair value of edement, and fair value is determined by
VSOE. If we cannot objectively determine the faifue of any undelivered element included in sucltiple element arrangements, we defer
revenue until all elements are delivered and sesvimve been performed, or until fair value caedbjely be determined for any remaining
undelivered elements. Under certain of our contidcrrangements, we may also recognize revenusutesf-pocket expenses in accordance
with Topic 605Depending on the contractual arrangement, thesensgs may be reimbursed with or without a fee.

Under certain of our contracts, we provide suppi®curement services and materials for our custenvée record revenue on these
arrangements on a gross or net basis in accorddtic@opic 605. Depending on the specific circumstances of thengiement we consider t
following criteria, among others, for recording eaue on a gross or net basis:

(1) Whether we act as a principal in the transac

(2) Whether we take title to the produ

(3) Whether we assume risks and rewards of ownersiif, s risk of loss for collection, delivery oruets

(4) Whether we serve as an agent or broker, with cosgigm on a commission or fee basis;

(5) Whether we assume the credit risk for the amodl&tcbio the customer subsequent to deliv
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For our federal contracts, we follow U.S. Governtyaoecurement and accounting standards in assetgrajlowability and the
allocability of costs to contracts. Due to the #igance of the judgments and estimation processislikely that materially different amounts
could be recorded if we used different assumptarithe underlying circumstances were to chaie.closely monitor compliance with, and
the consistent application of, our critical accaugpolicies related to contract accounting. Busineperations personnel conduct periodic
contract status and performance reviews. When td@mngs in estimated contract revenues or costeegréred, any significant changes from
prior estimates are included in earnings in theesurperiod. Also, regular and recurring evaluaiohcontract cost, scheduling and technical
matters are performed by management personnel rhiodependent from the business operations peesgenforming work under the
contract. Costs incurred and allocated to contraittsthe U.S. Government are scrutinized for cdamgle with regulatory standards by our
personnel, and are subject to audit by the DCAA.

From time to time, we may proceed with work basedawstomer direction prior to the completion arghsig of formal contract
documents. We have a formal review process forapg any such work. Revenue associated with suat ¥8 recognized only when it can
be reliably estimated and realization is probalile.base our estimates on previous experienceshdtbustomer, communications with the
customer regarding funding status, and our knovdezfcavailable funding for the contract or program.

Allowance for doubtful accounté/e maintain an allowance for doubtful accountsefstimated losses resulting from the potential
inability of certain customers to make requiredifetpayments on amounts due to us. Managementdeées the adequacy of this allowance
by periodically evaluating the aging and past dateire of individual customer accounts receivablarzes and considering the customer's
current financial situation as well as the existimdustry economic conditions and other relevaotdis that would be useful towards assessing
the risk of collectability. If the future financiabndition of our customers were to deteriorateylténg in their inability to make specific
required payments, additions to the allowance whdful accounts may be required. In additionhé financial condition of our customers
improves and collections of amounts outstandingroence or are reasonably assured, then we may egwergiously established allowances
for doubtful accounts. Changes to estimates ofraohvalue are recorded as adjustments to revamdia@ as a component of the allowance
for doubtful accounts. We write off accounts reedie when they become uncollectible and paymeitisesjuently received on such
receivables are credited to the allowance for daubtcounts.

Long-lived and Intangible Asseld/e account for long-lived assets in accordance thighprovisions oFASB ASC Topic 360 Propel
Plant, and EquipmentTopic 360"). Topic 360addresses financial accounting and reporting feitipairment or disposal of long-lived assets
and requires that lonlied assets be reviewed for impairment wheneventsyor changes in circumstances indicate thatdhging amount ¢
an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverabilityeissured by comparing the carrying amount of aetéasshe expected future net cash flows
generated by the asset. If it is determined thaidset may not be recoverable and if the cargiingunt of an asset exceeds its estimated fair
value, an impairment charge is recognized to thergof the differencel opic 360requires companies to separately report discordinue
operations, including components of an entity #ititer have been disposed of (by sale, abandononémia distribution to owners) or
classified as held for sale. Assets to be dispo$ede reported at the lower of the carrying amaurfair value less costs to sell.

In accordance witfiopic 360, we assess the impairment of identifiable intalegiland londived assets whenever events or chang
circumstances indicate that the carrying value matybe recoverable. Factors we consider importéitiwecould individually or in combinatic
trigger an impairment review include the following:

» significant underperformance relative to expectistbrical or projected future operating resi

» significant changes in the manner of our use obitiuired assets or the strategy for our overalin®ss
» significant negative industry or economic trel

» significant decline in our stock price for a suséa period; ar

e our market capitalization relative to net book

If we determined that the carrying value of intdolgs and long-lived assets may not be recoverasedupon the existence of one or
more of the above indicators of impairment, we wiaglcord an impairment equal to the excess of dinging amount of the asset over its
estimated fair value.

Goodwill and Purchased IntangibleBhe purchase price of an acquired business isa#iddo the underlying tangible and intangible
assets acquired and liabilities assumed basedthparespective fair market values, with the esaesorded as goodwill. Such fair market
value assessments require judgments and estinhatesain be affected by contract performance aner ddctors over time, which may cause
final amounts to differ materially from originaltesates.
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We have established certain accruals in conneutitnindemnities and other contingencies from ceguasitions. These accruals and
subsequent adjustments have been recorded dugmytbhase price allocation period for acquisitidrie accruals were determined based
upon the terms of the purchase or sales agreemedfsn most cases, involve a significant degrdeddment. Management has recorded tl
accruals in accordance with its interpretationhef terms of the purchase or sale agreements, kfemts) and an estimation of probable future
events based on management's experience. Any chemgecorded estimates will be recognized throeayimings.

We perform our impairment test for goodwill in aogance withTopic 350. We assess goodwill for impairment at the repgrtinit
level, which is defined as an operating segmewinerlevel below an operating segment, referred @ @eomponent. We determine our
reporting units by first identifying our operatisggments, and then assessing whether any compaf¢hése segments constitute a business
for which discrete financial information is availaland where segment management regularly reviesveierating results of that component.
We aggregate components within an operating segthanhhave similar economic characteristics.

KGS has five operating segments: Defense Rockgh@uervices ("DRSS"), Electronic Products ("ER&chnical and Training
Solutions ("TTS"), Modular Systems ("MS"), and Ummad Systems ("US") that provide technology basddrnse solutions, involving
products and services, primarily for mission catitnited States National Security priorities, witie primary focus relating to the nation’s
C5ISR requirements. The PSS operating segmentdeswitegrated solutions for advanced homelandisggoublic safety, critical
infrastructure security, and security and survedisystems for government, industrial and comrakeccistomers. The Company has identifiec
its reporting units to be the DRSS, EP, TTS, M3 @ divisions within its KGS and US reportablersegts, and the PSS reportable segmer
to be tested for potential impairment in its fisgahr 2014 annual test.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014, we pexgively changed our goodwill testing date from It day of our fiscal year to the
last day of our fiscal October. The change wdsetter align our impairment testing procedures withcompletion of our annual financial and
strategic planning process as discussed in NofdaldNotes to Consolidated Financial Statementge also perform impairment tests for
goodwill whenever evidence of potential impairmerists. When it is determined that impairment hamuaed, a charge to operations is
recorded. In order to test for potential impairmeve estimate the fair value of each of our repgrtinits based on a comparison and weightin
of the income approach, specifically the discourt@sh flow (“DCF”) method and the market approadhich estimates the fair value of our
reporting units based upon comparable market pandsecent transactions and also validates tnadleness of the implied multiples from
the income approach. We reconcile the fair valueusfreporting units to our market capitalizatigndalculating our market capitalization
based upon an average of our stock price priontbsaibsequent to the date we perform our analysisasuming a control premium.

In testing for impairment of our goodwill, we ma&ssumptions about the amount and timing of futipeeted cash flows, terminal
growth rates, appropriate discount rates, markatiphes, and the control premium a controlling seolder could be expected to pay:

e The timing of future cash flows within our DCRalysis is based on our most recent forecasts #eat estimates. Our historical
growth rates and operating results are not indieaif our projected growth rates and operatingltesis a consequence of our
acquisitions and divestitures.

e The terminal growth rate is used to calculatevalue of cash flows beyond the last projecteébgen our DCF analysis and
reflects our best estimates for stable, perpetualiy of our reporting units.

*  We use estimates of market participant weighteztage cost of capital (“WACC?") as a basis fored@ining the discount rates to
apply to our reporting units' future expected cidmlvs. The significant assumptions within our WAG@E: (a) equity risk
premium, (b) beta, (c) size premium adjustmenfs¢cddt of debt and (e) capital structure assumptibnaddition, we use a
company specific risk adjustment which is a subjecadjustment that, by its very nature does ndtitle market related data, but
instead examines the prospects of the reportingrelaitive to the broader industry to determinthére are specific factors which
may make it more “risky” relative to the industry.

* Recent historical market multiples are used toveste future market pricin

* We use an estimated control premium in recamgithe aggregate value of our reporting units toroarket capitalization. As
discussed iTopic 350, control premiums may effectively cause a compaaggregate fair
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value of its reporting unit(s) to exceed its cutnerarket capitalization due to the ability of a toilling shareholder to benefit
from synergies and other intangible assets tha¢ drom such control. As a result, the measurefefiatr value of an entity with

a collection of assets and liabilities that opetaggether to produce cash flows is different frdva tair value measurement of that
entity's individual securities, hence, the reasaorarol premium is paid.

While our methodology for evaluating goodwill amdaingibles for impairment has always used the ircand market approach, in
past the market approach was used solely to valitiat the fair value derived from the income apphowas comparable to its market peers.
Beginning 2011, we used a weighting of the income market approach to derive the fair value ofreporting units which resulted in a more
conservative fair value.

In 2012 KGS was impacted by continued decliningkatvaluations and the economic uncertainty inUtfe. defense industry, which
resulted in the book value of KGS exceeding itsfalue in step one of the impairment test duringannual test in 2012. As a result, we
performed the second step of the goodwill impairntest to measure the amount of the impairment Ibasiy. The second step of the test
requires the allocation of the reporting unit's fedlue to its assets and liabilities, includiny amrecognized intangible assets, in a hypothetic:
analysis that calculates the implied fair valugoddwill as if the reporting unit was being acqdiie a business combination. If the implied
value of goodwill is less than the carrying valtie difference is recorded as an impairment loaseB on the results of the step two analysis,
we recorded an $82.0 million goodwill impairmenated to KGS, as of December 30, 2012.

We review intangible assets subject to amortizatmnimpairment whenever events or changes in nistances indicate that
carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverainpairment losses, where identified, are deteeshias the excess of the carrying v
over the estimated fair value of the lolnged asset. We assess the recoverability of theyiog value of assets held for use based on &wewi
projected undiscounted cash flows. Prior to coridgcstep one of our 2012 goodwill impairment tes, reviewed certain of our loryed
assets for recoverability and recorded intangiBEeaimpairment losses related to a change indtiaated life of trade names $12.9 millior
and $1.7 millionin our PSS and KGS reporting units, respectivege Slote 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financialeéstents for a furth
discussion of these intangible asset and goodwkirments.

The goodwill of the PSS, US, and KGS reportablersays are $35.6 million , $97.3 million and $46@\#ion , respectively, at
December 28, 2014.

In determining the fair value of our reporting shithere are key assumptions related to our futpegating performance and revenue
growth. If the actual operating performance andritial results are not consistent with our asswmptan impairment in our $596.4 million
goodwill and $52.3 million long-lived intangiblesud occur in future periods. In particular, the k&porting unit fair value includes
assumptions that the development of the high paidioce UCAS product is successful and we are awdutiex contracts for the UCAS
product. Additionally, the US reporting unit faialue assumes that we will receive follow on orderghe Sub-Sonic Aerial Target ("SSAT"),
which us currently under contract with the US NaAgiditional risks for goodwill across all reportingits include, but not limited to the risks
discussed in Item 1A “Risk Factors” contained witthis Annual Report and:

» adecline in our stock price and resulting madegitalization, if we determine the decline istsiined and is indicative of a
reduction in the fair value below the carrying \eabf our reporting units;

» adecrease in available government fundingugtioly budgetary constraints affecting U.S. Goveminspending generally, or
specific departments or agencies;

* changesin U.S. Government programs or requiremireisiding the increased use of small businessigeos

» our failure to reach our internal forecasts ddumpact our ability to achieve our forecasted lewd cash flows and reduce the
estimated discounted value of our reporting uiaits]

« volatility in equity and debt markets resultinghigher discount rate

» market and political factors that could impact shkecess of new products, especially related tourenanned systems platfori

It is not possible at this time to determine ifiampairment charge would result from these factorsif it does, whether such charge
would be material. We will continue to monitor tleeoverability of our goodwiill.

Accounting for income taxes and tax contingendiepic 740provides the accounting treatment for uncertaintincome taxes
recognized in an enterprise's financial statemdmigic 740prescribes a recognition threshold and measureatgiitute for the financial
statement recognition and measurement of a tatigosaken or expected to be taken in a tax return.
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Topic 740also provides guidance on derecognizing, classifioainterest and penalties, accounting in intgpniods, disclosure and transiti

As part of the process of preparing our Consoldi&i@ancial Statements, we are required to estimaterovision for income taxes
each of the tax jurisdictions in which we conduasibess. This process involves estimating our actuaent tax expense in conjunction with
the evaluation and measurement of temporary diffaze resulting from differing treatment of certéaé@ms for tax and accounting purposes.
These temporary differences result in the estafiéstt of deferred tax assets and liabilities, whaichrecorded on a net basis and included in
our Consolidated Balance Sheets. We then assespe@niodic basis the probability that our net defétax assets will be recovered and
therefore realized from future taxable income anthé extent we believe that recovery is not mikey than not, a valuation allowance is
established to address such risk resulting in ditiadal related provision for income taxes durthg period.

Significant management judgment is required in mheil@ing our provision for income taxes, our defdrtax assets and liabilities, tax
contingencies, unrecognized tax benefits, and agyired valuation allowance, including taking ictimsideration the probability of the tax
contingencies being incurred. Management assdsisgsrobability based upon information providedisoby our tax advisers, our legal
advisers and similar tax cases. If at a later eassessment of the probability of these taxiegancies changes, our accrual for such tax
uncertainties may increase or decrease.

We have a valuation allowance at December 28, 20&40 management's overall assessment of riskararedtainties related to our
future ability to realize and, hence, utilize certdeferred tax assets, primarily consisting ofotrating losses, carry forward temporary
differences and future tax deductions resultingificertain types of stock option exercises, befoey expire.

The 2014 effective tax rate at December 28, 20t 4rfimual and interim reporting periods could beantpd if uncertain tax positions
that are not recognized at December 28, 2014 #tedsat an amount which differs from our estim&timally, during 2014 and thereafter, if we
are impacted by a change in the valuation allowascef December 28, 2014 resulting from a changedgment regarding the realizability of
deferred tax assets beyond December 28, 2014 effaxtt will be recognized in the interim periodvithich the change occurs.

Contingencies and litigationWe are currently involved in certain legal procegdi We estimate a range of liability related togieg
litigation where the amount and range of loss caestimated. We record our estimate of a loss whetoss is considered probable and
reasonably estimable. Where a liability is probaid there is a range of estimated loss and no r@inothe range is more likely than any o
number in the range, we record the minimum estichBability related to the claim in accordance WiHASB ASC Topic 450 Contingenciés.
additional information becomes available, we as#esgotential liability related to our pendindgddtion and revise our estimates. Revisions ir
our estimates of potential liability could matelfampact our results of operations. See Item 3gdleProceedings” contained within this
Annual Report for additional information.

Stock-based Compensatidfie account for stock-based compensation arrangsnreatcordance with the provisionsFASB ASC
Topic 718, Compensation-Stock Compensation (“T@fpR"), which requires the measurement and recognitiomwipensation expense for all
stock-based payment awards to employees and disdzased on estimated fair values.

The valuation provisions dfopic 718apply to new awards and to awards that are outistgraoh the effective date and subsequently
modified or canceled. We use the Black-Scholeaptricing model and a lattice options pricing midde market condition options to
estimate the fair value of our stock options atghant date. The Blacgcholes option pricing model was developed forinsstimating the fa
value of traded options which have no vesting iet&tns and are fully transferable. The latticeiop$ pricing model breaks down the time to
expiration into potentially a very large numbettiafe intervals, or steps which makes it possiblehteck at every point in an option's life for
the possibility of early exercise. Our employeektoptions are generally subject to vesting retsms and are generally not transferable.

Valuing options requires highly subjective assumpiincluding the expected stock price volatilitienthe term of the award, the
expected life of an option and the number of awattiately expected to vest. Changes in thesenagons can materially affect the fair
value estimates of an option. Furthermore, thernedéd fair value of an option does not necessegjyesent the value that will ultimately be
realized by an employee. We used historical datstimnate the expected forfeiture rate, intrinsid historical data to estimate the expected
price volatility, and a weighted-average expecifedfbrmula to estimate the expected option lifaeTisk-free rate is based on the U.S.
Treasury yield curve in effect at the time of grimtthe estimated life of the option.
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Estimates of stock-based compensation expensasgaiicant to our Consolidated Financial Stateraghtit these expenses are base
on option valuation models and will never resulthia payment of cash by us. For this reason, acduse we do not view stock-based
compensation to be significant as related to oeratpnal performance, we exclude estimated stedeth compensation expense when
evaluating the business performance of our opeyagments.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

See Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Finand&tkeghents contained within this Annual Report om#&0-K for a discussion of
recent accounting pronouncements.
ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative DisclosuresAbout Market Risk.
Interest Rate and Foreign Currency Risks

We are exposed to market risk, primarily relatethterest rates and foreign currency exchange.rates

Exposure to market risk for changes in interegisa¢lates to our outstanding debt. We are expios@tkerest rate risk, primarily
through our borrowing activities under the Crediréement discussed undeLiquidity and Capital Resources" above. Based arcauent
outstanding balances, a 1% change in the LIBORwatdd not materially impact our financial positioWe manage exposure to these risks
through our operating and financing activities amtden deemed appropriate, through the use of der/Bnancial instruments. Derivative
financial instruments are viewed as risk managertats and are not used for speculation or foritiggurposes. Derivative financial
instruments were contracted with investment grammterparties to reduce exposure to interest isiteon our prior credit facilities.

Exposure to market risk for foreign currency exawrate risk is related to receipts from customeagments to suppliers and
intercompany loans denominated in foreign currendkecordingly, a strengthening of the U.S. do{l&fSD") will negatively impact revenues
and gross margins expressed in consolidated USistaiVe currently enter into limited foreign currgriorward contracts to manage foreign
currency exchange rate risk because to date exelratgfluctuations have had minimal impact onaperating results and cash flows.

Cash and cash equivalents as of December 28, 266e1$84.7 million and are primarily invested in rapmarket interest bearing
accounts. A hypothetical 10% adverse change iatleeage interest rate on our money market caslstimeats and short-term investments
would have had no material effect on our net lasgte year ended December 28, 2014 .

Commodity Price Risk Management

We purchase commodities for use in our manufaaypiocesses. We typically purchase these commsditiemarket prices, and as a
result are affected by market price fluctuation® héve decided not to hedge these exposures aarthegemed immaterial.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Our Consolidated Financial Statements and supplemedata required by this item are set forth atghges indicated in Iltem 15
(a) (1) and 15(a) (2), respectively.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéunting and Financial Disclosure

None.
Item 9A. Controls and Procedures.
Disclosure Controls and Procedur

We maintain disclosure controls and proceduredgéised in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) promuthateler the Exchange Act,
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed in our reports filed under the Exchangeig\recorded, processed, summarized an
reported within the time periods specified in tH&CS rules and forms, and that such informatiacsumulated and communicated to our

management, including our Principal Executive @ffiand Principal
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Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timelgcisions regarding required disclosure. In desgaind evaluating the disclosure controls
procedures, management recognized that any comaindiprocedures, no matter how well designed ardatgd, can provide only reasonable
assurance of achieving the desired control objestignd management necessarily was required tg @ppidgment in evaluating the cost
benefit relationship of possible controls and pcaoes.

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) and 158ib) promulgated under the Exchange Act, we chwig an evaluation, under the supervis
and with the participation of our management, ideig our Principal Executive Officer and Princifgéhancial Officer, of the effectiveness of
the design and operation of our disclosure conantsprocedures as of the end of the period cousredis Annual Report. Based on the
foregoing, our Principal Executive Officer and Ripal Financial Officer concluded that our disclasaontrols and procedures were effective
at the reasonable assurance level as of Decemh2028

Management's Report on Internal Control over FiriahReporting

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finaha@orting, as such term is
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d)18ésigned to provide reasonable assurance rieggttte reliability of financial reporting
and the preparation of financial statements foemrel purposes in accordance with GAAP. Becausts afherent limitations, internal control
over financial reporting may not prevent or detaidstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that internal controls may lmednadequate because of changes in conditiottisabthe degree of compliance with the
policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Under the supervision and with the participatiomof management, including our principal executffecer and principal financial
officer, we conducted an evaluation of the effemti@ss of our internal control over financial repaytased on the framework in the 2013
Internal Contro-Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriie Treadway Commission. Based on the
results of our evaluation, our management conclakiadour internal control over financial reportiwgs effective as of December 28, 2014 .

Our internal control over financial reporting haseh audited by Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independegistered public accounting
firm, as stated in their report appearing belowiclwtexpresses an unqualified opinion on the effeckéss of our internal control over financial
reporting as of December 28, 2014 .

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogin
There were no changes in our internal control divmancial accounting and reporting (as defined ideR 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of
the Exchange Act) during the fourth quarter offieeal year ended December 28, 2014 that have rabyeaffected, or are reasonably likely to

materially affect, our internal control over fingalareporting.
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Item 9B. Other Information

Item 5.02 Departure of Directors or Certain Officers; Election of Directors; Appointment of Certain Officers; Compensatory
Arrangements of Certain Officers.

On March 6, 2015, we entered into an employmergegent which is effective as of January 1, 201& ‘Employment Agreement”) with
Richard Poirier to serve as President of the Coryipdfiectronic Products Division through Decembgy 3018. The Employment Agreement
provides the following principal terms: (i) a basgary of $485,000; (ii) an opportunity to earn aarincentive compensation in an amount up
to 60% of the base salary, at the sole and absdisteetion of the Company; (iii) an opportunitydarticipate in the Company’s employee
benefit plans that are generally made availabtaedCompany’s employees, including but not limitedhsurance programs; (iv) payment of
severance in the event of a termination of emplaoyméthout cause or upon a change of control amjestito Mr. Poirier's execution of a
customary release of claims agreement; and (v)idantiality, non-interference, and non-disparagenpeavisions, which apply during the
employee’s employment and for a certain restrigiedod after termination of employment. The des@ipof the Employment Agreement set
forth herein is a summary only and is qualifiedtsnentirety by the full text Employment Agreemaittached as Exhibit 10.48 to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K and incorporated by referererein.

PART III

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence.

The information required by this item is incorpehby reference to our definitive proxy statemdéatlfin connection with our 2015
Annual Meeting of Stockholders or an amendmenhi®Annual Report to be filed with the SEC withid0ldays after the close of our fiscal
year endeDecember 28, 2014 .
Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required by this item is incorpehby reference to our definitive proxy statemdatlfin connection with our 2015
Annual Meeting of Stockholders or an amendmenhi®Annual Report to be filed with the SEC withid0ldays after the close of our fiscal
year endeDecember 28, 2014 .
Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners aiinagement and Related Stockholder Matters.

The information required by this item is incorpehby reference to our definitive proxy statemdatlfin connection with our 2015

Annual Meeting of Stockholders or an amendmenhi®Annual Report to be filed with the SEC withid0ldays after the close of our fiscal
year endeDecember 28, 2014 .

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions, abatector Independence.
The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference to our definitive proxy statemdatifin connection with our 2015

Annual Meeting of Stockholders or an amendmenhi®Annual Report to be filed with the SEC withid0ldays after the close of our fiscal
year endeDecember 28, 2014 .

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.
The information required by this item is incorp@aby reference to our definitive proxy statemdatifin connection with our 2015

Annual Meeting of Stockholders or an amendmenhi®Annual Report to be filed with the SEC withid0ldays after the close of our fiscal
year endeDecember 28, 2014 .
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statements Schedules.

(@)(1)

The Consolidated Financial Statements of KratoebBsd & Security Solutions, Inc. and Reports of bel& Touche LLP, and Grant
Thornton LLP, Independent Registered Public AccimgnEirms, are included in a separate sectionisfAlnnual Report beginning on page F-

1.

@)(2)

Schedules not listed above have been omitted betheayg are not applicable or are not required eiirlformation required to be set
forth therein is included in the Consolidated FitiahStatements or the notes thereto.

Financial Statement:

Financial Statement Schedule

(@) (3). Exhibits.

Incorporated by

Reference
Filed-
Exhibit Filing Date (File Furnished
Number Exhibit Description Form No.) Exhibit Herewith
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated February 7,
2011, by and among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., Lanza Acquisition, Co. and Herley
Industries, Inc. (incorporated by reference to Anne
A to the Prospectus Supplement dated February 8,
2011, pursuant to the Registration Statement on
Form S-3 of Kratos Defense & Security 02/08/2011
2.1+ Solutions, Inc.) 424 (333-161340) n/a
Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated May 15, 2
by and among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions,
Inc., Integral Systems, Inc., IRIS Merger Sub Inc., 05/18/2011
2.2+ and IRIS Acquisition Sub LLC. 8-K (001-34460) 2.1
Stock Purchase Agreement, dated May 8, 2012, by
and among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions,
Inc., Composite Engineering, Inc., and Amy 05/08/2012
2.3+ Fournier, the stockholders representative 8-K (001-34460) 2.1
Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation 11/13/2001
3.1 of Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc 10-Q (000-27231) 4.1
Certificate of Ownership and Merger of Kratos
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. into Wireless 09/14/2007
3.2 Facilities, Inc. 8-K (000-27231) 3.1
Certificate of Amendment to Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation of Kratos Defense & 11/03/2009
3.3 Security Solutions, Inc. 10-Q (001-34460) 3.1
Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights 11/13/2001
3.4 of Series A Preferred Stock. 10-Q (000-27231) 4.2
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3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

4.3

10.1

10.2#

10.3#

10.4#

10.5#

10.6#

10.7#

10.8#

10.9#

10.10#

Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights
of Series B Preferred Stock (included as Exhibit A

to the Preferred Stock Purchase Agreement dated as
of May 16, 2002 among the Company, Meritech
Capital Partners Il L.P., Meritech Capital Affilest

Il L.P., MCB Entrepreneur Partners Il L.P., Oak
Investment Partners X, Limited Partnership, Oak X
Affiliates Fund, Limited Partnership, Oak

Investment Partners IX, L.P, Oak Affiliates Fund,
L.P, Oak IX Affiliates Fund-A, L.P, and the KLS

Trust dated July 14, 1999). 8-K/A
Certificate of Designation of Series C Preferred

Stock. 8-K
Second Amended and Restated Bylaws of Kratos

Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. 8-K
Amendment to the Second Amended and Restated

Bylaws of Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, | 10-Q
Specimen Stock Certificate. 10-K

Indenture, dated as of May 14, 2014, among Kratos
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc., as Issuer, the
Guarantors party thereto, and Wilmington Trust,

National Association, as Trustee and Collateral

Agent (including the Form of 7.00% Senor Secured

Notes due 2019). 8-K

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of May 14,

2014, among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions,

Inc., as Issuer, the Guarantors party thereto, and

SunTrust Robinson Humphrey, Inc., as

Representative of the Initial Purchasers. 8-K

Commitment Letter, dated February 7, 2011, by and
among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.

and Jefferies Group, Inc., Key Capital Corporation

and OPY Credit Corp. 8-K

Form of Indemnification Agreement by and between
Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. and its

directors and executive officers. 10-Q
1999 Employee Stock Purchase Plan and related

offering documents. S-1
2000 Nonstatutory Stock Option Plan. 10-Q

Form of Stock Option Agreement and Grant Notice
used in connection with the 2000 Nonstatutory

Stock Option Plan. 10-Q
Nonqualified Deferred Compensation Plan. 8-K
2005 Equity Incentive Plan. S-8
Form of Stock Option Agreement pursuant to the

2005 Equity Incentive Plan. S-8

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement and Form
of Notice of Grant under the 2005 Equity Incentive
Plan. 8-K

Herley Industries, Inc. 1996 Stock Option Plan. S-8
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06/05/2002
(000-27231)

12/17/2004
(000-27231)
03/15/2011
(001-34460)
11/07/2014
(001-34460)

03/02/2011
(001-34460)

05/15/2014
(001-34460)

05/15/2014
(001-34460)

02/07/2011
(001-34460)

08/04/2011
(001-34460)
08/18/1999
(333-85515)

11/14/2000
(000-27231)

11/14/2000
(000-27231)
11/24/2004
(000-27231)
08/01/2005
(333-127060)
08/01/2005
(333-127060)

01/17/2007
(000-27231)

04/08/2011
(333-173383)

4.1

3.1

3.1

3.8

4.1

4.1

10.1

10.1

10.8

10.5

10.2

10.3

10.44

99.2

99.1

99.3

4.10
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10.11#

10.12#

10.13#

10.14#

10.15#

10.16#

10.17#

10.18#

10.19#

10.20#

10.21#

10.22#

10.23#

10.24#

10.25#

10.26#

10.27#

Herley Industries, Inc. 1997 Stock Option Plan.
Herley Industries, Inc. 1998 Stock Option Plan.
Herley Industries, Inc. 2000 Stock Option Plan.

Herley Industries, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Plan.

Herley Industries, Inc. Amended and Restated 2006
New Employee Stock Option Plan.

2011 Equity Incentive Plan.

Form of Notice of Grant of Restricted Stock Units
and Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement
pursuant to the 2011 Equity Incentive Plan.

2014 Equity Incentive Plan

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Grant & Award
Agreement pursuant to the 2014 Equity Incentive
Plan.

Employment Agreement, dated as of July 22, 2010,
by and between Kratos Government Solutions, Inc.
and David Carter.

First Amendment to Employment Agreement, dated
as of August 4, 2011, by and between Kratos
Defense Engineering Solutions, Inc. and David
Carter.

Second Amended and Restated Executive
Employment Agreement, dated as of August 4,
2011, by and between Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. and Eric DeMarco

Second Amended and Restated Severance and
Change of Control Agreement, dated as of August 4,
2011, by and between Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. and Deanna Lund.

Amended and Restated Severance and Change of
Control Agreement, dated as of August 4, 2011, by
and between Kratos Defense & Security Solutions,
Inc. and Deborah S. Butera.

Employment Agreement, dated as of August 4,
2011, by and between Kratos Public Safety &
Security Solutions, Inc. and Ben Goodwin.

Settlement Agreement and General Release of
Claims, dated as of October 16, 2009, among Kratos
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc., KeyBank
National Association, Field Point Ill, Ltd. and SPF
CDO |, Ltd.

Sublease Agreement, dated as of December 17,
2009, by and between Amylin Pharmaceuticals, Inc.
(Sublessor) and Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. (Sublessee).
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S-8
S-8
S-8
S-8
S-8

DEF 14A

8-K

DEF 14A

10-Q

10-K

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-Q

10-K

04/08/2011
(333-173383)

04/08/2011
(333-173383)
04/08/2011
(333-173383)
04/08/2011
(333-173383)
04/08/2011
(333-173383)

04/15/2011
(001-34460)

11/18/2011
(001-34460)
04/11/2014
(001-34460)

11/07/2014
(001-34460)

03/02/2011
(001-34460)

11/04/2011
(001-34460)

08/04/2011
(001-34460)

08/04/2011
(001-34460)

08/04/2011
(001-34460)

11/04/2011
(001-34460)

11/03/2009
(001-34460)

03/11/2010
(001-34460)

411

412

4.13

414

4.15

n/a

10.2

n/a

10.1

10.15

10.9

10.3

10.4

10.8

10.10

10.1

10.26
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10.28

10.29

10.30

10.31

10.32

10.33

10.34

10.35

10.36

10.37

Purchase Agreement, dated as of May 12, 2010, by
and among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions,
Inc., the Guarantors set forth therein, Jefferies &
Company, Inc., B. Riley & Co., LLC, Imperial
Capital, LLC, Keybanc Capital Markets Inc. and
Noble International Investments, Inc.

Security Agreement, dated as of May 19, 2010, by
and among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions,
Inc., the Guarantors set forth therein and
Wilmington Trust FSB, as Collateral Agent.

Intercreditor Agreement, dated as of May 19, 2010,
by and among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., the Guarantors set forth therein,
Wilmington Trust FSB, as Indenture Agent, and
KeyBank National Association, as Credit Facility
Agent.

Credit Agreement, dated as of March 3, 2010,
among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.,
KeyBank National Association, as Administrative
Agent and Lender, Bank of America, N.A., as
Syndication Agent and Lender, and the other
financial institutions parties thereto with Keybanc
Capital Markets and Banc of America Securities,
LLC, as Co-Lead Arrangers and Book Runners.

First Amendment Agreement, dated as of December
13, 2010, by and among Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc., as Borrower, the Lenders named
therein and KeyBank National Association, as Lead
Arranger, Sole Book Runner and Administrative
Agent.

Second Amendment Agreement, dated as of
February 7, 2011, among Kratos Defense & Sec
solutions, the Lenders named therein and KeyBank
National Association.

Purchase Agreement, dated March 22, 2011, by and
among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.,
Acquisition Co. Lanza Parent, Lanza Acquisition
Co., the guarantors named therein, Jefferies &
Company, Inc., KeyBanc Capital Markets, Inc. and
Oppenheimer & Co. Inc.

Security Agreement, dated March 25, 2011, by and
among Acquisition Co. Lanza Parent, Lanza
Acquisition Co. and Wilmington Trust FSB, as
Collateral Agent.

Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of May 19,
2010, as amended and restated as of July 27, 2011,
among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc
Borrower, the Lenders named therein and KeyBank
National Association, as Lead Arranger, Sole Book
Runner and Administrative Agent.

First Amendment Agreement, dated as of
November 14, 2011, by and among Kratos
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc., as Borrowee, th
Lenders named therein, and Key Bank National
Association, as Lead Arranger, Sole Book Runner
and Administrative Agent.
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10.38

10.39

10.40

10.41

10.42

10.43

10.44

10.45

10.46

10.47#

10.48#

10.49

18.1

211
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Purchase Agreement, dated July 14, 2011, by and
among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.,
the Guarantors named therein, Jefferies & Comg
Inc., KeyBanc Capital Markets Inc. and B. Riley &
Co., LLC, as amended by that certain Joinder
Agreement, dated July 27, 2011.

Stipulation and Agreement of Settlement of
Derivative Claims, dated as of January 5, 2010.

Amended and Restated Herley Industries, Inc. 2010
Stock Plan, and the forms of agreement related
thereto.

Amended and Restated Integral Systems, Inc. 2008
Stock Incentive Plan, and the forms of agreement
related thereto.

Second Amendment to Credit and Security
Agreement, dated as of May 4, 2012, among Kratos
Defense & Security Solutions, the lenders named
therein, and KeyBank National Association.

Third Amendment to Credit and Security
Agreement, dated as of May 8, 2012, among Kratos
Defense & Security Solutions, the lenders named
therein, and KeyBank National Association.

Standstill Agreement, dated May 14, 2012, between
Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc., Bandel
Carano, Oak Investment Partners IX, L.P., Oak IX
Affiliates Fund, L.P., Oak IX Affiliates Fund-A,

L.P., Oak X Affiliates Fund, L.P., Oak Investment
Partners X, L.P., and Oak Investment Partners Xlll,
L.P.

Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement entered
into between Kratos Defense & Security Solutions,
Inc. and certain employees of Composite
Engineering, Inc.

Fourth Amendment to Credit and Security
Agreement, dated as of February 27, 2013, among
Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, the lenders
named therein, and KeyBank National Association.

Employment Agreement, effective January 17, 2
by and between Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. and Phil Carrai.

Employment Agreement, effective January 1, 2015,
by and between Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. and Richard Paoirier.

Credit and Security Agreement, dated as of May 14,
2014, among Kratos Defense & Security Solutions,
Inc., as Borrower, the lenders named therein,
SunTrust Bank, as Agent, and SunTrust Robinson
Humphrey, Inc., as Lead Arranger and Sole Book
Runner.

Preferability Letter, dated March 13, 2015, prodde
by Deloitte & Touche LLP

List of Subsidiaries.

Consent of Independent Registered Public
Accounting Firm.
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Consent of Independent Registered Public

23.2 Accounting Firm. *
Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant t

31.1 Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002. *
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuamt t

31.2 Section 302 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002. *

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, a
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
32.1 Oxley Act of 2002 for Eric M. DeMarco. *

Certification pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, a
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
32.2 Oxley Act of 2002 for Deanna Lund. *

Financial statements from the Annual Report on
Form 10K of Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. for the year ended December 28,
2014, formatted in XBRL: (i) the Consolidated
Balance Sheets, (ii) the Consolidated Statements of
Operations and Comprehensive Loss, (iii) the
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows, (iv) the
101 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements. *

+ Certain schedules and exhibits referencedigndocument have been omitted in accordance téth 601(b)(2) of Regulation S-K. A copy
of any omitted schedule and/or exhibit will be fishred supplementally to the Securities and Exch&waamission upon request.

# Management contract or compensatory planrangement.
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(b) Exhibits

See Item 15(a)(3) above.

(c) Financial Statement Schedules

See Item 15(a)(2) above.

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to
be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theoeduly authorized.

Date: March 13, 2015

Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.

/sl Eric M. DeMarco
Eric M. DeMarco
President and Chief Executive Officer (Principal
By: Executive Officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe following persons on
behalf of the registrant and in the capacities@mthe date indicated:
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Signature

/sl Eric M. DeMarco
Eric M. DeMarco

/s/ Deanna H. Lund
Deanna H. Lund

/s/ Deborah S. Butera
Deborah S. Butera

/s/ Richard Duckworth
Richard Duckworth

s/ Scott Anderson
Scott Anderson

/s/ Bandel Carano
Bandel Carano

/s/ William Hoglund
William Hoglund

/sl Scot Jarvis
Scot Jarvis

/s/ Jane E. Judd
Jane E. Judd

/s/ Sam Liberatore
Sam Liberatore

/sl Amy Zegart
Amy Zegart

Title

President, Chief Executive Officer and DirectoriiBipal
Executive Officer)

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial OfficBriacipal
Financial Officer)

Senior Vice President, General Counsel, Chief Ca@anpé

Officer and Secretary / Registered In-House Counsel

Vice President and Corporate Controller
(Principal Accounting Officer)

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director

Director
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Date

March 13, 2015

March 13, 2015

March 13, 2015

March 13, 2015

March 13, 2015

March 13, 2015

March 13, 2015

March 13, 2015

March 13, 2015

March 13, 2015

March 13, 201!
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INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accourfings
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 29,&td Becember 28, 2014

Consolidated Statements of Operations and Compsaleshoss for the Years Ended December 30, 2012ember 29, 2013, and
December 28, 2014

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders' EquitytferYears Ended December 30, 2012, December 23, 20d December 28,

2014

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the YEaded December 30, 2012, December 29, 2013, aceniizer 28, 2014

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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---REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTI NG FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.
San Diego, California

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balsieets of Kratos Defense & Security Solutioms, &nd subsidiaries (the "Company")
as of December 28, 2014 and December 29, 2013harelated consolidated statements of operatindsamprehensive loss, stockholders'
equity, and cash flows for each of the two yearth@period ended December 28, 2014. We also hadited the Company's internal control
over financial reporting as of December 28, 20&¢ul on criteria establishedlitiernal Control - Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremd@ommission. The Company's management is redperisr these financial
statements, for maintaining effective internal cohtver financial reporting, and for its assesstdrihe effectiveness of internal control over
financial reporting, included in the accompanyingridgement's Report on Internal Control Over Firsiéporting. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statememt@&aropinion on the Company's internal control direancial reporting based on our audits.
The consolidated financial statements of the Companthe year ended December 30, 2012, beforeffieets of the retrospective adjustments
to the disclosures for a change in the composafaeportable segments discussed in Note 14 tedheolidated financial statements, were
audited by other auditors whose report, dated Mag;t2013, expressed an unqualified opinion ondlsbgtements.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstals of the Public Company Accounting OversighamBiqUnited States). Those standard:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtaasonable assurance about whether the finataiaiments are free of material
misstatement and whether effective internal cordvelr financial reporting was maintained in all ev&l respects. Our audits of the financial
statements included examining, on a test basideaee supporting the amounts and disclosures ifirthecial statements, assessing the
accounting principles used and significant estimatade by management, and evaluating the ovemalhdial statement presentation. Our a

of internal control over financial reporting inckri obtaining an understanding of internal contu@rdinancial reporting, assessing the risk

a material weakness exists, and testing and evaduihie design and operating effectiveness of ivalecontrol based on the assessed risk. Our
audits also included performing such other proceslass we considered necessary in the circumstaneebelieve that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial repogtis a process designed by, or under the supemidi the company's principal executive
and principal financial officers, or persons penigrg similar functions, and effected by the compsulspard of directors, management, and
other personnel to provide reasonable assuraneediag the reliability of financial reporting anltket preparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygiedeaccounting principles. A company's internaitod over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertaiheanaintenance of records that, in reasonablel detaurately and fairly reflect the transacti
and dispositions of the assets of the companypr@jide reasonable assurance that transactions@eded as necessary to permit preparatio
of financial statements in accordance with gengrdtepted accounting principles, and that receiptsexpenditures of the company are bein
made only in accordance with authorizations of ngan@ent and directors of the company; and (3) peoxédsonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized asitjon, use, or disposition of the company's asHst could have a material effect on the
financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internaltcoinover financial reporting, including the posiii of collusion or improper management
override of controls, material misstatements duertor or fraud may not be prevented or detected tmely basis. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the effectiveness of the internaltoarover financial reporting to future periods ateéhject to the risk that the controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditiotigt the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegrferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the financial position of the
Company as of December 28, 2014 and December 29, 20d the results of their operations and theshdlows for each of the two years in
the period ended December 28, 2014, in conformitly accounting principles generally accepted inlinéted States of America. Also, in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all materiaipexcts, effective internal control over financgporting as of December 28, 2014, based or
the criteria established Internal Control - Integrated Framework (201i8sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike

Treadway Commission

We also have audited the adjustments to the 20d%otidated financial statements to retrospectiaglyst the disclosures for a change in the
composition of reportable segments in 2014, asudssd in Note 14 to the consolidated financiakstaints. Our procedures included (1)
comparing the adjustment amounts of segment regenie@reciation and amortization, and
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operating income (loss) from continuing operatitmthe Company's underlying analysis and (2) tgstie mathematical accuracy of the
reconciliation of segment amounts to the consadiddihancial statements. In our opinion, such sgettive adjustments are appropriate and
have been properly applied. However, we were ngaged to audit, review, or apply any procedurabeéa?012 consolidated financial
statements of the Company other than with respetiet retrospective adjustments and, accordingdydavnot express an opinion or any other
form of assurance on the 2012 consolidated finhstdééements taken as a whole.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLF

San Diego, California
March 13, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidatednséatits of comprehensive income (loss), stockhold=ysity, and cash flows of Kratos
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. (the “Companigh) the year ended December 30, 2012. These fiabsizEitements are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. Our responsibility isxjaress an opinion on these financial statemerstsdchen our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statgdof the Public Company Accounting OversightriBq&nited States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebtagsonable assurance about whether the finataiaiments are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on tldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and diss in the financial statements,
assessing the accounting principles used and &ignifestimates made by management, as well agatirgg the overall financial statement
presentation. We believe that our audit providesagonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetegeferred to above present fairly, in all matenégpects, the consolidated results of the
operations and cash flows of Kratos Defense & Ssc8polutions, Inc. for the year ended December28,2 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United StafeSmerica.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Diego, California
March 12, 2013
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Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable, net
Inventoried costs
Income taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses
Other current assets
Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Other assets
Total assets
Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Accrued compensation

Accrued interest

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 29, 2013 and December 28, 2014
(in millions, except par value and number of sharés

2013

2014

Billings in excess of costs and earnings on uncetedl contracts

Deferred income tax liability
Other current liabilities
Current portion of long-term debt
Current portion of capital lease obligations
Current liabilities of discontinued operations
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt principal, net of current portion
Long-term debt premium
Line of credit
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion

Deferred income tax liability
Other long-term liabilities

Long-term liabilities of discontinued operations
Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies

Stockholders’ equity:

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value, 5,000,000 aiztebr O shares outstanding at December 29, 201

and December 28, 2014

Common stock, $0.001 par value, 195,000,000 slaastborized; 57,056,892 and 57,801,978 shares
issued and outstanding at December 29, 2013 aneniier 28, 2014, respectively

Additional paid-in capital

Accumulated other comprehensive loss
Accumulated deficit

Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

The accompanying notes are an integral part obtlEmsolidated Financial Statements.

$ 55.7 343
5. 5.4
265.¢ 248.;
74.6 68.
2.1 1.2
10.2 8.
16.7 8.
430.: 374.¢
84.¢ 82.6
596.< 596.¢
69.¢ 52.%
35.2 32.€
$ 1,216.¢ 1,138.¢
$ 61.c 484
46.: 34.2
a4.¢ 46.4
5.2 5.€
52.F 52.1
28. 30.
8.1 6.
1. 1.
0.2 0.1
2. 1.2
251.( 226.
628.¢ 622.(
14 —
= 41.(

0.1
0.7 c
255 24.F
0.2 =
920.¢ 914
856.( 863.
(0.8) (1.7)
(559.9) (637.9)
295.¢ 224.:
1,216.¢ 1,138.¢
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS AND COMPREHEN SIVE LOSS
Years ended December 30, 2012, December 29, 2018} Becember 28, 2014
(in millions, except per share amounts)

Service revenues
Product sales
Total revenues
Cost of service revenues
Cost of product sales
Total costs
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Merger and acquisition related items
Research and development expenses
Impairment of goodwill and intangible assets
Unused office space and other restructuring
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Other income, net
Total other expense, net
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes from contirgimperations
Loss from continuing operations
Loss from discontinued operations
Net loss

Basic and diluted loss per common share:
Net loss from continuing operations
Net loss from discontinued operations
Net loss per common share
Weighted average common shares outstanding:
Basic and diluted
Comprehensive Loss
Net loss from above
Other comprehensive loss:
Change in cumulative translation adjustment
Post retirement benefit reserve adjustment neboékpense
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax
Comprehensive loss

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottEmsolidated Financial Statements.

2012 2013 2014

450 $ 443¢ $ 390.¢
519.0 507.( 4772
969. 950.¢€ 868.(
350.¢ 335. 304.¢
361.0 375. 345.;
712.( 710.€ 649.¢
257.: 240.( 218.c
193.1 193.( 173.
2.7 (3.9 0.2
17.€ 21.2 23.
96.€ — —
2.1 (2.4) 1.7
(49.7) 31.¢ 19.¢
(66.7) (63.7) (54.9)
— — (39.9)
1.2 — 0.6
(64.9) (63.7) (92.9)
(114.5 (31.9 (72.9)
(1.6) — 5.1
(112.9 (31.9 (78.0)
(1.5 (5.9 —
(1149 $ (372 $ (78.0)
(247 $ (056 $ (1.39)
(0.09) (0.09 0.0C
(249 $ (0.65 $ (1.39)
46.¢ 56. 57.€
(1149 $ (372 $ (78.0)
(0.9) — (0.9)
0.2 — 0.5)
(0.6) — (0.9
(115.0 $ (372 $ (78.9
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDER'S EQUITY
Years ended December 30, 2012, December 29, 201R®] Becember 28, 2014

(in millions)
Accumulated
Common Stock  aAdditional Other Total
Paid-In Comprehensive Accumulated Stockholders'
Shares Amounts  Capital Loss Deficit Equity
Balance, December 25, 2011 3224 $ — $ 7206 $ 02 $ (407.9 $ 312.¢
Issuance of common stock for employee stock puechis, options and warrants 0.z — — — — —
Issuance of common stock for cash 20.C — 97.C — — 97.C
Issuance of common stock for acquisitions 4.C — 23.¢ — — 23.¢
Common stock repurchased for employee stock pueghias — — (0.9 — — (0.9
Stock-based compensation — — 6.€ — — 6.€
Restricted stock units traded for taxes — — (0.2) — — (0.2)
Net loss — — — — (114.9) (114.9
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax = — — (0.6 — (0.6)
Balance, December 30, 2012 56.€ — 847.1 (0.8) (522.7) 324.]
Stock-based compensation — — 7.4 — — 7.4
Issuance of common stock for employee stock puechis, options and warrants 0.2 — 1.€ — — 1€
Restricted stock units traded for taxes 0.1 = (0.2) — — (0.2)
Net loss — — — — (37.29) (37.9)
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax = — — = — =
Balance, December 29, 2013 57.C — 856.( (0.8) (559.9) 295.¢
Stock-based compensation — = 3.8 = = 3.8
Issuance of common stock for employee stock puechis, options and warrants 0.7 — 3.c — — 3.¢
Restricted stock units traded for taxes 0.1 — (0.9) — — (0.9)
Net loss — — — — (78.0 (78.0
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax — — — 0.9 — (0.9
Balance, December 28, 2014 57¢ $ — $ 8632 % @an s (637.9) $ 224.%

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years ended December 30, 2012, December 29, 201 Becember 28, 2014

(in millions)
2012 2013 2014
Operating activities:
Net loss $ (1149 $ (37.2) $ (78.0
Loss from discontinued operations (1.5 (5.9 =
Loss from continuing operations (112.9 (3.9 (78.0
Adjustments to reconcile net loss from continuipgmtions to net cash provided by
operating activities from continuing operations:
Depreciation and amortization 58.C 53.4 39.1
Deferred income taxes (2.5 (0.9 2.3
Stock-based compensation 6.€ 7.4 3.8
Goodwill and intangible asset impairment charge 96.¢€ — =
Loss on extinguishment of debt — — 39.1
Amortization of deferred financing costs 5.1 5.1 3.2
Amortization of premium and discount on Senior SedNotes (4.2) 4.2) (0.9)
Provision for doubtful accounts 0.4 1.C 1kt
Change in accrual for excess facilities 1.8 4.7 0.2
Changes in assets and liabilities, net of acqaisiti
Accounts receivable 2.8 4.6 16.1
Inventoried costs (5.2 20.C 6.5
Prepaid expenses .7 1.¢ 2.2
Other assets 0.2 (7.0 14
Accounts payable 25.€ (22.0 (13.5)
Accrued expenses (10.9) 0.9 (12.3)
Accrued compensation 4.3 3.0 14
Accrued interest 1.2 (1.3 0.4
Billings in excess of costs and earnings on uncetegl contracts (5.0 8.8 (2.4
Income tax receivable and payable (0.7) 1€ 0.8
Other liabilities (7.9 (6.5) (3.9
Net cash provided by operating activities from gmrihg operations 52.c 22.€ 7.7
Investing activities:
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired (149.9 2.2 (2.6)
Proceeds from the disposition of discontinued dpera 0.3 1.2 —
Cash transferred from (to) restricted cash 0.€ 0.4 0.9
Capital expenditures (16.€) (16.€) (14.2)
Net cash used in investing activities from contirguoperations (165.7) (22.9) (17.2)
Financing activities:
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt, fniesbance costs — — 618.t
Extinguishment of long-term debt — — (661.5)
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock, rissoénce costs 97.C — _
Borrowing under credit facility 50.C — 41.C
Repayments under credit facility (51.0 (1.0 (1.0)
Cash paid for contingent acquisition considerati (2.5) (2.7 —
Debt issuance costs 1.2 — (10.0
Proceeds from exercise of restricted stock unitgleyee stock options, and employee
stock purchase plan — 1.t 3.3
Other () (0.4) —

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activifieen continuing operations 90.¢ (2.0 9.7




Net cash flows of continuing operations

Net operating cash flows of discontinued operations
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and caslaénts
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:
Cash paid during the year for interest
Net cash paid during the year for income taxes
Non-cash investing and financing activities:
Common stock and stock options issued for acqoisti
Liability for contingent cash consideration

Supplemental disclosures of non-cash investingfimadicing transactions:

Fair value of assets acquired in acquisitions
Liabilities assumed in acquisitions

(21.9 7.¢ (19.2)

1.2 (1.9 (1.6)

— 0.1 0.2)

(20.6) 6.7 (21.0

69.€ 49. 55.7

$ 490 $ 55.7 34.7
$ 640 $ 63.€ 57.1
$ 27 $ 0.2 1.2
$ 23€ $ — —
$ 21 $ — —
$ 218: $ — —
$ 352 $ — —

The accompanying notes are an integral part ottEmsolidated Financial Statements.
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KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1. Organization and Summary of Significant Acounting Policies

€) Description of Busines

Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. (“Kratas”the “Company”)s a specialized technology focused security bgsipeoviding
mission critical products, solutions and serviaasdomestic and international customers, with gurgipal customers being agencies of the
U.S. Government. Our core capabilities are sop@itsgd engineering, manufacturing, technology depretmt, system integration, and test and
evaluation offerings for national security platfariend programs. Our principal products and solstame related to Command, Control,
Communications, Computing, Combat Systems, Intefigg, Surveillance and Reconnaissance (“C5ISR”)ofée our customers products,
solutions, services and expertise to support thession critical needs by leveraging our skillscssrour core offering areas in C5ISR.

The Company designs, engineers and manufacturegmbped electronic products, components, subsysiaml systems for
intelligence, surveillance, and reconnaissance)(I8Rctronic attack, electronic warfare, radad amssile system platforms; integrated
product, software and technology solutions forl§eEeommunications; products and solutions fomamned systems; products and services
related to cybersecurity and cyberwarfare; prodantssolutions for ballistic missile defense; weapsystems trainers; advanced network
engineering and information technology servicesapaas systems lifecycle support and sustainmeltitargiweapon range operations and
technical services; and public safety, criticatastructure security and surveillance systems.ddmpany believes our stable customer base,
strong customer relationships, intellectual propdstoad array of contract vehicles, "designedoos$itions on strategic national security
platforms, large technically oriented employee hasesessing specialized skills, specialized mahufiag facilities and equipment, extensive
list of past performance qualifications, and siigpaifit management and operational capabilities iposits for success.

The Company conducts most of its business withuttse Government (which includes foreign militaryesd and performs work as 1
prime contractor, subcontractor, or preferred sepprhe Company also conducts business with Istale, and foreign governments and
domestic and international commercial customers.

The Company operates in three principal reportadtgments: Kratos Government Solutions (*KGS”), Ksdt/nmanned Systems
("US™) and Public Safety & Security (“PSS”). Ther@pany organizes its reportable segments baseceamatiure of the services offered.
Transactions between segments are generally negbdad accounted for under terms and conditiongasito other government and
commercial contracts, and these intercompany tciioss are eliminated in consolidation. The finahstatements in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K (this “Annual Report”) are presented imanner consistent with the Company's operatingire. For additional information
regarding the Company's operating segments, seeMoof the Notes to the Consolidated Financiak8tants.

(b) Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentain

The Consolidated Financial Statements include tceunts of Kratos and its 100% owned subsidiaftgsyhich all intercompany
transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

In June 2012, the Company committed to a planlt@sgain lines of business associated with arasneatellite-cased products and
fly-away terminals of the non-core businesses aedun the Integral Systems, Inc. (“Integral”) aifion. In accordance witRinancial
Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting 8tads Codification ("ASC") Topic 205, PresentatwfrFinancial Statement¢Topic
205") , these businesses have been classified as heddl®and reported in discontinued operationsérattcompanying Consolidated
Financial Statements. See Note 9.

(c) Fiscal Year
The Company has a 52/53 week fiscal year endinth®tast Sunday of the calendar year, with intdigral periods ending on the Iz
Sunday of each calendar quarter. There were 5Bdaleveeks in the fiscal years ended on Decemhe?(3 and December 28, 2014 . There

were 53 calendar weeks in the fiscal year ended on
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December 30, 2012 .
(d) Use of Estimate

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia United States
(“U.S. GAAP”) requires management to make estimatesassumptions that affect the reported amodrassets and liabilities, the disclosure
of contingent assets and liabilities at the dattheffinancial statements and the reported amafresvenues and expenses during the reportin
period. Such estimates include revenue recognitibonvance for doubtful accounts, warranties, ineenvaluation, valuation of long-lived
assets including identifiable intangibles and goitidaccounting for income taxes including the tethvaluation allowance on the deferred tax
asset and uncertain tax positions, contingenciddiggation, contingent acquisition consideratistgck-based compensation, losses on unuse
office space, and business combination purchase ptiocations. In the future, the Company mayizealctual results that differ from the
current reported estimates and if the estimatagtiaCompany has used change in the future, sumfiges could have a material impact on
Company's consolidated financial position, resoftsperations and cash flows.

(e) Revenue Recognitio

The Company generates its revenue from three diffaypes of contractual arrangements: cost-plas@mtracts, time-and-materials
contracts, and fixed-price contracts. Revenue atrplusfee contracts is recognized to the extent of alldevaosts incurred plus an estimat
the applicable fees earned. The Company considessunder cost-plus-fee contracts to be earnedpopion to the allowable costs incurred
in performance of the contract and recognizeseateyant portion of the expected fee to be awargeithd customer at the time such fee can be
reasonably estimated, based on factors such pgdtsaward experience and communications withctigomer regarding performance,
including any interim performance evaluations readeyy the customer. Revenue on time-and-mater@aigacts is recognized to the extent of
billable rates times hours delivered for services/jgled, to the extent of material cost for produibelivered to customers, and to the extent of
expenses incurred on behalf of the customers.

The Company has three basic categories of fixezkmdntracts: fixed unit price, fixed-price-levéledfort, and fixed-price-
completion. Revenue recognition methods on fixadepcontracts will vary depending on the naturéhefwork and the contract terms.
Revenues on fixed-price service contracts are detbas work is performed in accordance W8C Topic 605, Revenue Recognition (“Topic
605") , specificallyTopic 605-10-S99which generally requires revenue to be deferred all of the following have occurred: (1) thasea
contract in place; (2) delivery has occurred ovisess have been provided; (3) the price is fixedeterminable; and, (4) collectability is
reasonably assured. Revenues on fixed-price castii@at require delivery of specific items may bearded based on a price per unit as units
are delivered. Revenue for fixgulice contracts in which the Company is paid a jgegmount to provide services for a stated penbtime is
recognized ratably over the service period.

On a portion of the fixed price-completion conteaeevenue is recognized in accordance Wahic 605using the percentage-of-
completion method based on the ratio of total ciogtsrred to date compared to estimated total dostemplete the contract. Estimates of ¢
to complete include material, direct labor, overthemnd allowable indirect expenses for governmentrects. These cost estimates are
reviewed and, if necessary, revised on a contrgaelntract basis. If, as a result of this revievanagement determines that a loss on a contre
is evident, then the full amount of estimated liessharged to operations in the period. As of Ddmem29, 2013 and December 28, 2014 , the
provisions for losses on contracts were $4.8 nnilaoad $2.9 million , respectively.

In certain instances, when the Company's custohmere requested that it commence work prior to ptasfi the contract award a
funding and it has incurred costs related to tpat#ic anticipated contract, and the Company beBerecoverability of the costs is probabl
may defer those costs incurred until the associedatract has been awarded and funded by the castom

In accounting for the Company's loterm contracts for production of products providedhe U.S. Government, the Company util
both cost-to-cost and units delivered measuresruhdegpercentage-of-completion method of accountimder the provisions dfopic 605.
Under the units delivered measure of the percent&gempletion method of accounting, sales aregated as the units are accepted by the
customer generally using sales values for unitecordance with the contract terms. The Companmatds profit as the difference between
total estimated revenue and total estimated costomintract and recognizes that profit over thedif the contract based on units delivered or ¢
computed on the basis of the estimated final aweuait costs plus profit. The Company
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classifies contract revenues as product salesraicegevenues depending upon the predominanbatés of the relevant underlying contracts.

Significant management judgments and estimatekidimg but not limited to the estimated costs tmptete projects, must be made
and used in connection with the revenue recogriizedy accounting period. A cancellation, schedigkay, or modification of a fixed-price
contract which is accounted for using the percesrafgcompletion method may adversely affect the Gany's gross margins for the period in
which the contract is modified or canceled. Undmtain circumstances, a cancellation or negativdification could result in the Company
having to reverse revenue that was recognizediioa period, thus significantly reducing the ambahrevenues recognized for the period in
which the adjustment is made. Correspondingly,sitige modification may positively affect gross mans. In addition, a schedule delay or
modifications can result in an increase in estimhatest to complete the project, which would algulein an impact to gross margins. Material
differences may result in the amount and timinghef Company's revenue for any period if managemmate different judgments or utilized
different estimates.

It is the Company's policy to review any arrangenoamtaining software or software deliverables se/ices against the criteria
contained inASC Topic 985, Software (“Topic 985'Qlnder the provisions ofopic 985, the Company reviews the contract value of softwar
deliverables and services and determines allocatdbthe contract value based on vendor-specifieablve evidence (“VSOE”) of fair value
for each of the software elements. All softwar@agements requiring significant production, mogeifien, or customization of the software are
accounted for in conformity witfiopic 605.

The Company's contracts may include the provisianare than one of its services (“multiple elemarrangements”). In these
situations, the Company applies the guidanceopiic 605. Accordingly, for applicable arrangements, revereegnition includes the proper
identification of separate units of accounting #melallocation of revenue across all elements baseaeélative fair values.

For multiple element arrangements that includeward products containing software essential tdhirdware products' functionali
the Company allocates revenue to all deliverabdsed on their relative selling prices. In suchuinstances, the Company uses a hierarchy t
determine the selling price to be used for allagatevenue to deliverables: (i) VSOE, (ii) thirdryaevidence of selling price (“TPE”), and
(iii) best estimate of the selling price (“ESP”).

VSOE generally exists only when the Company shisdeliverable separately and is the price actudlrged by the Company for
that deliverable. TPE is determined based on catopgrices for similar deliverables when sold sapealy. Generally, the Company's offerii
contain significant differentiation such that comgdae pricing of products with similar functionglitannot be obtained. Furthermore, the
Company is unable to reliably determine what simitampetitor products' selling prices are on adtalone basis. Therefore, the Company
typically is unable to obtain TPE of selling pri&&SP reflects the Company's best estimates of thkatelling prices of elements would be if
they were sold regularly on a staalbne basis. The Company determines ESP for a pradservice by considering multiple factors irtihg,
but not limited to major product groupings, geodpiap, market conditions, competitive landscaperirdl costs, gross margin objectives and
pricing practices. The determination of ESP is mhdeugh consultation with management, taking odosideration the Company's marketing
strategy.

The Company accounts for multiple element arrangesthat consist only of software or software-mdigproducts, including the sale
of upgrades to previously sold software, in accocgawith industry specific software accounting guide. For such transactions, revenue on
arrangements that include multiple elements iccatied to each element based on the relative faievaf each element, and fair value is
determined by VSOE. If the Company cannot objebttidetermine the fair value of any undelivered edatincluded in such multiple element
arrangements, the Company defers revenue unélatients are delivered and services have beenrmedo or until fair value can objectively
be determined for any remaining undelivered eleméddnder certain of the Company's contractual gearents, the Company may also
recognize revenue for out-of-pocket expenses inrdemce withTopic 605.Depending on the contractual arrangement, thesensgs may be
reimbursed with or without a fee.

Under certain of its contracts, the Company prowvisigoplier procurement services and material¢$aruistomers. The Company

records revenue on these arrangements on a grass$ loasis in accordance witlopic 605depending on the specific circumstances of the
arrangement. The Company considers the followiitgre, among others, for recording revenue onaasgor net basis:
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(1) Whether the Company acts as a principal in thes&retion
(2) Whether the Company takes title to the prod
(3) Whether the Company assumes risks and rewardsrgrsiip, such as risk of loss for collection, detivor returns
(4) Whether the Company serves as an agent or brokerceampensation on a commission or fee basis;
(5) Whether the Company assumes the credit risk foatheunt billed to the customer subsequent to dgli

For federal contracts, the Company follows U.S. &@oment procurement and accounting standards @ssisg the allowability and
the allocability of costs to contracts. Due to $ignificance of the judgments and estimation preessit is likely that materially different
amounts could be recorded if different assumptiwee used or if the underlying circumstances wermhinge. The Company closely moni
the consistent application of its critical accongtpolicies and compliance with contract accountBigsiness operations personnel conduct
periodic contract status and performance reviewsemadjustments in estimated contract revenuessts are required, any significant
changes from prior estimates are included in egein the current period. Also, regular and reagrevaluations of contract cost, scheduling
and technical matters are performed by managenszsbpnel who are independent from the businessatpes personnel performing work
under the contract. Costs incurred and allocatemmdracts with the U.S. Government are scrutinfoedompliance with regulatory standards
by the Company's personnel, and are subject ta hudhe Defense Contract Audit Agency.

From time to time, the Company may proceed withkhmased on customer direction prior to the compietind signing of formal
contract documents. The Company has a formal repiewsess for approving any such work. Revenue &sgsocwith such work is recognized
only when it can be reliably estimated and reailirats probable. The Company bases its estimatgsarnous experiences with the customer,
communications with the customer regarding funditajus, and its knowledge of available fundingtfar contract or program. As of
December 29, 2013 and December 28, 2014 , apprtedyr®8.7 million and $1.6 million , respectivebf,the Company's unbilled accounts
receivable balance were under an authorizatiomdoged or work order from its customers where médpurchase order had not yet been
received.

Costs incurred for shipping and handling are inetlich cost of product sales at the time the reledgdnue is recognized. Amounts
billed to a customer for shipping and handling r@m@orted as revenue.

) Inventoried costs

Inventoried costs are stated at the lower of costarket. Cost is determined using the averageard#tst-in, first-out methods and
the applicable method is applied consistently withim operating entity. Inventoried costs primaréiate to work under fixed-price contracts
using the percentage-of-completion under the wfitielivery method of revenue recognition. Thesgtsoepresent accumulated contract cost
less the portion of such costs allocated to dedgétems. Accumulated contract costs include dipeatiuction costs, factory and engineering
overhead and production tooling costs. Pursuaabmdract provisions of U.S. Government contraaishscustomers may have title to, or a
security interest in inventories related to sucht@cts as a result of advances, performance-h@sgdents, and progress payments. The
Company reflects those advances and paymentsaffsahagainst the related inventory balances.

The Company regularly reviews inventory quantibeshand, future purchase commitments with its sappland the estimated utility
of its inventory. If the Company's review indicateseduction in utility below carrying value, itthéces its inventory to a new cost basis.

() Research and Development

Costs incurred in research and development aetivaire expensed as incurred in accordance with B Topic 730, Research and
Development

(h) Income Taxe!
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The Company records deferred tax assets and fiabifor the future tax consequences attributabdifferences between the financial
statement carrying amounts of existing assetsiabdities and their respective tax bases and djpeyéoss and tax credit carryforwards.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measurid) @hacted tax rates expected to apply to taxiabtame in the years in which those tempo
differences are expected to be realized. The effiecteferred tax assets and liabilities of a changax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date.

The Company maintains a valuation allowance ord#ferred tax assets for which it is more likelyrtimot that the Company will not
realize the benefits of these tax assets in fuaxgeriods. The valuation allowance is based timages of future taxable income by tax
jurisdiction in which the Company operates, the bhanof years over which the deferred tax assetdeitecoverable, and scheduled rever
of deferred tax liabilities.

In accordance with the recognition standards estadal byASC Topic 740, Income Taxes (“Topic 740the Company makes a
comprehensive review of its portfolio of uncerttam positions regularly. In this regard, an undartax position represents the Company's
expected treatment of a tax position taken inelftax return, or planned to be taken in a futareréturn or claim, which has not been refle
in measuring income tax expense for financial répompurposes. Until these positions are sustalyethe taxing authorities, the Company has
not recognized the tax benefits resulting from gpositions and reports the tax effects as a lighfitir uncertain tax positions in its
Consolidated Balance Sheets.

0] Stock-Based Compensatio

The Company accounts for stock-based compensatiaccordance witASC Topic 718, Compensation-Stock Compensatiorp{tTo
718”) . All of the Company's stock-based compensationgtae considered equity plans und@lepic 718, and compensation expense
recognized is net of estimated forfeitures oventigting period. The Company issues stock optiodsstock awards under its existing plans.
The fair value of stock options is estimated ondhte of grant using a Black-Scholes option-prigimadel or a trinomial lattice options pricing
model and is expensed on a straight-line basis threeremaining vesting period of the options, whiggenerally six or less years. The fair
value of stock awards is determined based on tieng market price of the Company's common stocthergrant date and is adjusted at eact
reporting date based on the amount of shares u#lynexpected to vest. Compensation expense fok stwvards is expensed over the vesting
period, usually five to ten years . Compensatigmease for stock issued under the Company's empkigek purchase plan is estimated at the
beginning date of the offering period using a Bf&dholes option-pricing model and is expensed sinaaght-line basis over the period of the
offering, which is generally six months.

For the years ended December 30, 2012 , Decemb&0238 and December 28, 2014 , there was no inereintax benefit from stock
options exercised in the periods. The followingeathows the amounts recognized in the Consolidaiteghcial Statements for 2012 , 2013
and 2014 for stockased compensation expense related to stock op$itmtk awards and to stock offered under the Coip@mployee stoc
purchase plan (in millions, except per share ang)unt

2012 2013 2014
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 6.6 $ 74 $ 3.6
Total cost of employee stock-based compensatidnded in operating income
(loss) from continuing operations, before income ta 6.€ 7.4 3.8
Impact on net income (loss) per common share:
Basic and diluted $ (019 % (0139 $ (0.07)

()] Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The Company maintains an allowance for doubtfubaats for estimated losses resulting from the iitglmf its customers to make
required payments, which results in bad debt ex@dadanagement periodically determines the adeqaathyis allowance by evaluating the
comprehensive risk profiles of all individual custer receivable balances including, but not limti@cthe customer's financial condition, credit
agency reports, financial statements and overateatieconomic conditions. Additionally, on certaontracts whereby the Company performs
services
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for a prime/general contractor, a specified pergatof the invoiced trade accounts receivable neagtained by the customer until the projec
is completed. The Company periodically reviewgetihinages for collectability and records allowanfme doubtful accounts when deemed
appropriate, based on its assessment of the as=mbcizdit risks. Changes to estimates of contralcie are recorded as adjustments to revent
and not as a component of the allowance for doubtitounts. Individual accounts receivable aretemibff to the allowance for doubtful
accounts when the Company becomes aware of aispaestomer's inability to meet its financial olaltgpn, and all collection efforts are
exhausted.

The following table outlines the balance of the @amy's Allowance for Doubtful Accounts for 2012013 and 2014 . The table
identifies the additional provisions each year a#l as the write-offs that utilized the allowande rillions).

Balance at Beginning Write- Balance at End of
Allowance for Doubtful Accounts of Year Provisions offs/Recoveries Year
Year ended December 30, 2012 $ 2C % 04 $ 1.0 % 1.4
Year ended December 29, 2013 $ 14 % 1.C $ 0.2 % 2.2
Year ended December 28, 2014 $ 22 % 15 $ @7 $ 2.C

() Cash and Cash Equivalent

The Company's cash equivalents consist of its hiliiiid investments with an original maturity ¢free months or less when
purchased by the Company.

The Company has restricted cash accounts of appeately $5.0 million at December 29, 2013 and $5illan at December 28,
2014 . As of December 29, 2013 and December 28} 26dstricted cash consists primarily of a depssiuring foreign letters of credit related
to payment and performance bonds on internaticoratacts.

() Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment, net owned by the Compadgpseciated over the estimated useful lives aviddal assets. Equipment and
facilities acquired under capital leases are amedtover the shorter of the lease term or the agtigdnuseful life of the asset. Improvements,
which significantly improve and extend the usefig bf an asset, are capitalized and depreciated the shorter of the lease period or the

estimated useful life. Expenditures for maintenaawce repairs are charged to operations as incurred.

Assets are depreciated predominately using thigktrine method, with the following lives:

Years
Buildings and improvements 15 -39
Machinery and equipment 3-10
Computer equipment and software 1-10
Vehicles, furniture, and office equipment 5
Shorter of useful life or
Leasehold improvements length of lease

(m) Lease:

The Company uses its incremental borrowing rateérassessment of lease classification as capitglerating and defines the initial
lease term to include renewal options determinduktoeasonably assured. The Company conducts mperatimarily under operating leases.

Most lease agreements for real property contaieritiges for tenant improvements, rent holidaygeat escalation clauses. For
incentives for tenant improvements, the Companytakges the leasehold improvements which are aegted over the shorter of the lease
term or their estimated useful life and recordefeided rent liability which is amortized over tteem of the lease as a reduction to rent
expense. For rent holidays and rent
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escalation clauses during the lease term, the Coymegords minimum rental expenses on a straiglktiasis over the term of the lease. For
purposes of recognizing lease incentives, the Cosnpaes the date of initial possession as the coroemeent date, which is generally when
the Company is given the right of access to thespad begins to make improvements in preparatioimfended use.

(n) Acquisitions

The Company accounts for business combinationgub@macquisition method of accounting as presdrifyeASC Topic 805,
Business CombinationTopic 805”) . The Company allocates the purchase price otisiaitions to the tangible and intangible assats,
liabilities including certain contingent liabiliseacquired based upon their estimated fair vallies.excess of purchase price over those fair
values is recorded as goodwill. Acquisiticelated expenses and restructuring costs are resahyseparately from the business combinatior
are expensed as incurred.

(0) Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, Ne

In accordance with the provisions A8C Topic 350, Intangibles-Goodwill and Other (“To50") , the Company performs an ann
impairment test for goodwill, or when evidence gfaential impairment exists. In the third quadéfiscal year 2014, the Company
prospectively changed its goodwill testing daterfrihie last day of its fiscal year to the last daitofiscal October. The change was to better
align its impairment testing procedures with thenpéetion of its annual financial and strategic piisig process as discussed in Note 2,
Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets, to the Coitsded Financial Statements. This change was appliespectively beginning on Noveml
2, 2014; retrospective application to prior perie@lsnpracticable as the Company is unable to divjely determine, without the use of
hindsight, the assumptions that would have beed usthose earlier periods to estimate fair vaAea result, during fiscal year 2014, the
Company tested its goodwill for impairment as ofvBimber 2, 2014 and concluded that there was noiimpat of the carrying value of
goodwill. The change in accounting principle retete changing the annual goodwill impairment tegtiate did not accelerate, delay, avoic
cause an impairment charge.

When it is determined that impairment has occuraetharge to operations is recorded. Goodwill ghdrgpurchased intangible asset
balances are included in the identifiable assethefeporting unit to which they have been assigAay goodwill impairment, as well as the
amortization of other purchased intangible asgetharged against the respective reporting usyitstating income.

In accordance witfiopic 350, the Company classifies intangible assets intectfuategories: (1) intangible assets with finitedi
subject to amortization, (2) intangible assets wittefinite lives not subject to amortization, gB8)l goodwill. The Company tests intangible
assets with finite lives for impairment if conditi® exist that indicate the carrying value may reotdroverable. Such conditions may includ
economic downturn in a geographic market or a chamghe assessment of future operations. The Coynggords an impairment charge
when the carrying value of the finite lived intalpigi asset is not recoverable by the cash flowsrgése: from the use of the asset.

The Company determines the useful lives of ideatil& intangible assets after considering the sigdeifts and circumstances related
to each intangible asset. Factors considered watnmrdining useful lives include the contractuaintef any agreement, the history of the a:
the Company's long-term strategy for the use obteet, any laws or other local regulations whmhia impact the useful life of the asset, and
other economic factors, including competition apdcific market conditions. Intangible assets tmatdeemed to have finite lives are
amortized, generally on a straight-line basis, akeir useful lives, ranging from one to 15 years .

(p) Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Long-Lived Assts to Be Disposed Of

Long-lived assets and certain identifiable intategtare reviewed for impairment in accordance W8T Topic 360, Property, Plant,
and Equipmentwhenever events or changes in circumstancesaitedibat the carrying amount of an asset may noédverable.
Recoverability of assets to be held and used isuored by a comparison of the carrying amount ofigsets to future net cash flows
(undiscounted and without interest) expected tgdreerated by the asset. If such assets are coedittebe impaired, the impairment to be
recognized is measured by
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the amount by which the carrying amount of the @sseceeds the fair value of the assets. Assdis thsposed of are reported at the lower of
the carrying amount or fair value less costs tb sel

(@) Fair Value of Financial Instruments

ASC Topic 825, Financial Instrumentsguires that fair values be disclosed for the Camyfs financial instruments. The carrying
amounts of cash equivalents, accounts receivatteuats payable, accrued expenses, billings inssxgkcosts and earnings on uncompleted
contracts, and income taxes payable, approximatedhie due to the short-term nature of theseumsénts. The fair value of the Company's
long-term debt is based upon actual trading agtiViibe fair value of capital lease obligationsstmated based on quoted market prices for tf
same or similar obligations with the same remaimirggurities.

n Concentrations and Uncertaintie:

The Company maintains cash balances at variousdiakinstitutions and such balances commonly ex¢ke $250,000 insured
amount by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporaliba Company has not experienced any losses mateounts and management believe:
that the Company is not exposed to any significaedit risk with respect to such cash and cashvatprits.

Financial instruments, which subject the Compangdi@ntial concentrations of credit risk, consisngipally of the Company's billed
and unbilled accounts receivable. The Company'suats receivable result from sales to customernsinvthe U.S. Government, state and loca
agencies and with commercial customers in varindastries. The Company performs ongoing credituatains of its commercial customers.
Credit is extended based on evaluation of the ousts financial condition and collateral is notuiggd. Accounts receivable are recorded at
the invoiced amount and do not bear interest. Se#e N3 for a discussion of the Company's signiticastomers.

(s) Debt Issuance Costs

Fees paid to obtain debt financing or amendmerdsiusuch debt financing are treated as debt issuergts and are capitalized and
amortized over the expected term of the related. ddtese payments are shown as a financing activitye Consolidated Statements of Cash
Flows and are included in other current assetsoéimel assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets.

® Interest Expense, Ne

Interest expense, net in the Consolidated Statenoér@®@perations and Comprehensive Loss is sumnahinizéhe following table (in
millions):

2012 2013 2014
Interest expense incurred primarily on the Comm8gnior Secured Notes $ (66.9) $ (63.9 $ (54.5)
Miscellaneous interest income 0.3 0.2 0.2
Interest expense, net $ (66.) $ (63.7) $ (54.9

(u) Foreign Currency

For operations outside the U.S. that prepare fil@hstatements in currencies other than the U.Bardoesults of operations and cash
flows are translated at average exchange ratesgltite period, and assets and liabilities are gdlgdranslated at end-of-period exchange
rates. Translation adjustments are included aparag component of accumulated other compreheltsgen the Consolidated Statements of
Stockholders' Equity.

The Company transacts with foreign customers inetisies other than the U.S. dollar. It experiemeasized and unrealized foreign
currency gains or losses on foreign denominategivables. In addition, certain intercompany tratisas give rise to realized and unrealized
foreign currency gains or losses. Also, any othangactions between the Company or its subsidiaridsa third-party, denominated in a
currency different from the functional currencye éoreign currency transactions.
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The aggregate foreign currency transaction lodsidied in determining net loss for the years endeddinber 30, 20120ecember 2¢
2013, and December 28, 2014 was approximatelyddlién , $0.0 million , and $0.9 million , respgacely, which is included in other income
(expense), net on the accompanying ConsolidatadrBémts of Operations and Comprehensive Loss.

(v)  Product Warranties

Certain of the Company's products and services@arered by a warranty to be free from defects iten and workmanship for
periods ranging from one to ten years . Option&maed warranty contracts can also be purchasécdtiétrevenue deferred and amortized
over the extended warranty period. The Companyuasca warranty liability for estimated costs tovide products, parts or services to repair
or replace products in satisfaction of warrantyigdtions. Warranty revenues related to extendedantyr contracts are amortized to income,
over the life of the contract, using the straighelmethod. Costs under extended warranty contesietexpensed as incurred.

The Company's estimate of costs to service itsam@yrobligations is based upon historical expegesied expectations of future
conditions. To the extent that the Company expedsrany changes in warranty claim activity or castociated with servicing those claims,
its warranty liability is adjusted accordingly.

(x)  Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In April 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standddgslate 2014-08 ("ASU 2014-08") "Presentation afdricial Statements (Topic
205) and Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 3R@porting Discontinued Operations and Disclosofd3isposals of Components of an
Entity" . The amendments in ASU 2014-08 change the criteriaefporting discontinued operations and requirggaced disclosures in this
area. Under the new guidance, only disposals reptieg a strategic shift in operations should lEsented as discontinued operations. Those
strategic shifts should have a major effect onafgnization’s operations and financial resultsaiaples include a disposal of a major
geographic area, a major line of business, or ameajuity method investment. In addition, the naidgnce requires expanded disclosures
about discontinued operations that will provideafinial statement users with more information allegitassets, liabilities, income, and
expenses of discontinued operations. The new ga@also requires disclosure of the pre-tax incottibatable to a disposal of a significant
part of an organization that does not qualify facdntinued operations reporting. The amendmer#sSid 2014-08 are effective in the first
quarter of 2015 for public organizations with calanyear ends. Early adoption is permitted. The gamy does not believe that the adoptio
this guidance will have a material impact on itaslidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Standarddadtie 2014-09 ("ASU 2014-09") "Revenue from Contraath Customers".
ASU 2014-09 affects any entity using GAAP that eithnters into contracts with customers to trangbeds or services or enters into contract
for the transfer of nonfinancial assets unlessetommtracts are within the scope of other standaeds., insurance contracts or lease contra
ASU 2014-09 will supersede the revenue recognitimuirements in Topic 60Revenue Recognitigrand most industry-specific guidance.
ASU 2014-09 also supersedes some cost guidanealattin ASC Subtopic 605-3Revenue Recognition-Construction-Type and Produoetio
Type Contracts For a public entity, the amendments in this A3t effective for annual reporting periods beginrafigr December 15, 2016,
including interim periods within that reporting ot. Early application is not permitted. The guidamermits companies to either apply the
requirements retrospectively to all prior periodssented or apply the requirements in the yeadoption, through a cumulative adjustment.
The Company has not yet selected a transition rdatbo has it determined the impact of adoptiontsransolidated financial statements.

In August 2014, the FASB issued Accounting Stanslafpdate 2014-15 ("ASU 2014-15") "PresentationiofRcial Statements-
Going Concern (Subtopic 205-40): Disclosure of Utaiaties about an Entity’s Ability to Continue a$s0ing Concern". ASU 2014-15 is
intended to define management’s responsibilityvagate whether there is substantial doubt abowrganization’s ability to continue as a
going concern and to provide related footnote dmales. Under GAAP, financial statements are pegpander the presumption that the
reporting organization will continue to operateaagoing concern, except in limited circumstancésaiicial reporting under this presumptiol
commonly referred to as the going concern basécobunting. The going concern basis of accounsirggiiical to financial reporting becaus:
establishes the fundamental basis for measuringlasdifying assets and liabilities. Currently, GAkcks guidance about management’s
responsibility to evaluate whether there is suliithdoubt about the organization’s ability to done as a going concern or to provide related
footnote disclosures. ASU
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2014-15 provides guidance to an organization’s mament, with principles and definitions that areimed to reduce diversity in the timing
and content of disclosures that are commonly pexVioly organizations today in the financial stateimfieotnotes. The amendments are
effective for annual periods ending after Decenitigr2016, including interim periods within that ogfing period. Early application is
permitted for annual or interim reporting periods fhich the financial statements have not previobeen issued. The Company does not
believe that the adoption of this guidance will @é@amaterial impact on its consolidated finandiatesnents.
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Note 2. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
€) Goodwill

The Company historically performed its annual impent test for goodwill in accordance wikbpic 350as of the last day of each
fiscal year or when evidence of potential impairtrexists. In the third quarter of fiscal year 20t Company prospectively changed its
goodwill testing date from the last day of its fikgear to the last day of its fiscal October. Thange was to better align its impairment tes
procedures with the completion of its annual firahand strategic planning process. This changeapalied prospectively beginning on
November 2, 2014; retrospective application tompieriods is impracticable as the Company is untbbibjectively determine, without the L
of hindsight, the assumptions that would have hesgnl in those earlier periods to estimate fairezalu

The Company assesses goodwill for impairment atgperting unit level, which is defined as an opiegasegment or one level below
an operating segment, referred to as a componhatCbmpany determines its reporting units by fidsntifying its operating segments, and
then assessing whether any components of theseesggjoonstitute a business for which discrete Girinformation is available and where
segment management regularly reviews the operegggts of that component. The Company aggregatepanents within an operating
segment that have similar economic characteristics.

The Company concluded that goodwill was not imghaeNovember 2, 2014. In determining the fair edior the reporting units,
there are key assumptions relating to our futuerajng performance and revenue growth. If theadaperating performance and financial
results are not consistent with our assumptiongngairment in our $596.4 million goodwill and $82nillion long-lived intangibles could
occur in future periods. Market factors that comighact our ability to successfully develop new proid include the successful completion of
certain unmanned system platforms, the successtelpgance of new unmanned system platforms, inedufitom a political and budgetary
standpoint. For example, the US reporting unit ¥alue includes assumptions that the developmetiiteohigh performance UCAS product is
successful and we are awarded future contracthéotJ CAS product. Additionally, the US reportingtuiair value assumes that we will
receive follow on orders for the Sub-Sonic Aeriatdet ("SSAT"), which is currently under contradgthwthe US Navy.

As a result of an internal organizational realigniria August 2013 the Company reorganized its K@&rating segment. As a result
of this reorganization, the KGS reporting segmextt fiveoperating segments: Defense Rocket Support Ser(ib&SS"), Electronic Produc
("EP™), Technical and Training Solutions ("TTS")ollular Systems ("MS"), and Unmanned Systems ("U&I"of the KGS operating
segments provide technology based defense solutiordving products and services, primarily forssion critical United States National
Security priorities, with the primary focus reldito the nation’s C5ISR requirements. The PSS taplar business segment provides integrate
solutions for advanced homeland security, publietgacritical infrastructure security, and secpand surveillance systems for government,
industrial and commercial customers. In the foguhrter of 2014, we expanded the number of replersggments to three as we separated tt
KGS segment into two reportable segments: KGS amddahned Systems (“US”). As a result, the KGS regtbet segment is comprised of an
aggregation of Kratos’ Government Solutions opagaegments, including our electronic productslbi@ communications, modular systems
and rocket support operating segments. The Comipasiydentified its reporting units to be the DREB, TTS, MS, US divisions and PSS, to
be tested for potential impairment in its fiscahy2014 annual test.

In order to test for potential impairment, the Camy estimates the fair value of each of its repgrtinits based on a comparison and
weighting of the income approach, specifically diecounted cash flow method and the market apprasgich estimates the fair value of the
Company's reporting units based upon comparabl&anhprices and recent transactions and also vabdae reasonableness of the implied
multiples from the income approach. The Compangmeites the fair value of its reporting units t® iharket capitalization by calculating its
market capitalization based upon an average stdtsk price prior to and subsequent to the dat€tmapany performs its analysis and
assuming a control premium. The Company uses thesigodologies to determine the fair value of ifgoréing units for comparison to their
corresponding book values because there are novallbe inputs available, a Level 3 measurement [8#e 10). If the book value exceeds
estimated fair value for a reporting unit a potantnpairment is indicated, afitbpic 350prescribes the approach for determining the
impairment amount, if any.

As a result of the Company's decision in June 26Mispose of certain non-core businesses acquirde Integral acquisition in July
2011, the Company allocated $1.5 million of goodlit@ldiscontinued operations, which
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resulted in an impairment charge (see Note 9).ddmpany then tested the goodwill remaining in tli&Xreporting unit. The fair value of the
KGS reporting unit exceeded its carrying value 24 at that time.

During the fourth quarter of 2012, the KGS repatimit was impacted by continued declining marlstigtions and the economic
uncertainty in the U.S. defense industry. Congvess unable to agree on a budget that conformedthatiBudget Control Act of 2011
requirements, which called for additional substlrdefense spending reductions through sequestraliongress and the President could not
agree on budgetary, tax and spending issues, amdessilt a FY 2013 budget was not passed andmaaith continuing resolution that funded
the U.S. Government through March 27, 2013 wasguasghese events significantly increased the licgld of the sequester occurring which
had negative consequences for the defense industagdition, as Congress and the Administratiomdomot come to an agreement on term
a possible national fiscal approach, they alsedaib address other fiscal matters such as thecedintg. These events negatively impacted the
Company's 2012 annual estimate of the fair valub®KGS reporting unit resulting in the book vabféhe KGS reporting unit exceeding its
fair value in step one of the impairment test.

The Company performed the second step of the gdiddvaairment test to measure the amount of theaiimpent loss, if any, of the
KGS reporting unit. The second step of the testireg the allocation of the reporting unit's fa@ue to its assets and liabilities, including any
unrecognized intangible assets, in a hypotheticalysis that calculates the implied fair value obdwill as if the reporting unit was being
acquired in a business combination. If the impfegdvalue of goodwill is less than the carryindus the difference is recorded as an
impairment loss. Based on the results of the stepanalysis, the Company recorded an $82.0 mifioodwill impairment in 2012 related to
our KGS reporting unit.

As of December 28, 2014 , the goodwill of the P8S,and KGS reportable segments were $35.6 mill&87,3 million and $463.5
million , respectively.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwilltfe years ended December 29, 2013 and Decemb26028 are as follows (in
millions):

Public
Safety &
Security us KGS Total
Balance as of December 30, 2012 $ 356 $ — % 560.¢ $ 596.t
Retrospective adjustments — (0.3 (0.2
Balance as of December 30, 2012 after retrospeatijiesstments 35.€ — 560.¢ 596.¢
2013 reorganization — 97.% (97.9) —
Balance as of December 29, 2013 35.€ 97.z 463.t 596.4
2014 transactions — — — —
Balance as of December 28, 2014 $ 35€ % 97.c % 4635 § 596.

The accumulated impairment losses as of Decemhe&®@8& were $247.4 million , of which $215.3 millizvas associated with the

KGS reportable segment, $13.8 million was assatiaith the US reportable segment, and $18.3 miliais associated with the PSS

reportable segment.

(b) Purchased Intangible Assel

The following table sets forth information for adepa finite-lived and indefinite-lived intangiblessets (in millions):
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As of December 29, 2013 As of December 28, 2014
Gross Accumulated Net Gross Accumulated Net
Value Amortization Value Value Amortization Value
Acquired finite-lived intangible assets:
Customer relationships $ 97.7 $ (53.7) $ 4.0 $ 2.0 $ (70.6) $ 28.4
Contracts and backlog 80.C (78.7) 1.3 82.7 (80.0 2.7
Developed technology and technical know-
how 22.1 (8.6) 13t 23.1 (10.9 12.2
Trade names 6.1 3.0 3.C 6.C (5.0 1.C
Favorable operating lease 1.8 (0.6) 1.2 1.€ (0.7) 1.1
Total finite-lived intangible assets 207.7 (144.7) 63.C 212.¢ (167.2) 45.4
Acquired indefinite-lived intangible assets
Trade names 6.€ — 6.€ 6.€ — 6.S
Total indefinite-lived intangible assets 6.6 — 6.¢ 6.€ — 6.C
Total intangible assets $ 214¢ $ (1447 $ 69.¢ $ 219.5 % (167.2) $ 52.c

The Company reviews intangible assets for impaitnadrenever events or changes in circumstancesateltbat the carrying amount
of the asset may not be recoverable. Impairmeseksvhere identified, are determined as the exafahkg carrying value over the estimated
fair value of the long-lived asset. The recoveigbdf the carrying value of assets held for usassessed based on a review of projected
undiscounted cash flows. Prior to conducting steg af the 2012 goodwill impairment test, certairitaf long-lived assets were assessed for
recoverability. During 2012 the Company made thagien to minimize the use of the CMCI and HBE #ahmes as part of its overall
branding strategy which resulted in a revisedvalue of $6.9 million for such trade names, wittemaining useful life of two years . This
resulted in an impairment of $14.6 million in 20IPhe impairment related to the KGS and PSS replersegments were $1.7 million and
$12.9 million , respectively.

The aggregate amortization expense for finite-livgdngible assets was $43.9 million , $36.2 milland $22.5 million for the years
ended December 30, 2012 , December 29, 2013 , andriiber 28, 2014 , respectively. The Company recatdmortization expense in
selling, general and administrative expenses irCihvesolidated Statements of Operations and CompséreLoss.

The estimated future amortization expense of aeduimtangible assets with finite lives as of Decentt8, 2014 is as follows (in
millions):

Fiscal Year Amount
2015 $ 15.¢
2016 10.€
2017 9.4
2018 4.
2019 3.t
Thereafter 1.7
Total $ 45.£

Note 3. Acquisitions
(a8 Summary of Recent Acquisitions
Composite Engineering, Inc.

On July 2, 2012, the Company acquired Compositerteeging, Inc. (“CEi") for approximately $164.2 idin . The purchase price
included consideration of $135.0 million in cashl &0 million shares of the Company's common stealyed
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at $5.94 per share on July 2, 2012, or $23.8 millids security for CEi's indemnification obligaig $10.7 milliorof the cash paid was plac
into an escrow account. The Company was paid $ili@mfrom the escrow account for working capigadjustments in July 2013, at which
time the remaining escrow was released to therseldso included in the purchase consideration $&5 million paid to retire certain pre-
existing CEi debt and settle pre-existing accouatgivable from CEi. There was no contingent puseteonsideration associated with the
acquisition of CEi.

The Company made an election under Section 33&hifflthe Internal Revenue Code, which resulte@dindeductible goodwill
related to this transaction. The Company estimttatthe tax deductible goodwill and intangiblesuténg from the election will approximate
$ 136.3 million , to be available for deduction mgaFederal and California state income taxes aves -year period.

Certain CEi personnel entered into long-term empieyt agreements with the Company and on July 2,26& Company granted
restricted stock units (“RSUs”) for an aggregatillion shares of common stock as loiegm retention inducement grants. The RSUs he
estimated value of $11.9 million on the grant daést on the fourth anniversary of the closinghef €Ei acquisition, or earlier upon the
occurrence of certain events, and are being acedudot as compensation expense over such four pexand. As of December 28, 2014,
520,000 shares remain unvested and not forfeited.

To fund the acquisition of CEi, on May 14, 2012 thompany sold 20.0 million shares of its commaoulstt a purchase price of
$5.00 per share in an underwritten public offerifige Company received gross proceeds of approxiynd1©0.0 million and net proceeds of
approximately $97.0 million after deducting undeting fees and other offering expenses. The Compaeyl the net proceeds from this
offering to fund a portion of the purchase pricetfe acquisition of CEi. In addition, the Comparsed borrowings of $40.0 million from its
revolving line of credit to partially fund the pinase price of CEi.

CEi is a vertically integrated manufacturer andadeper of unmanned aerial target systems and catepisuctures used for national
security programs. Its drones are designed toaatglisome of the most lethal aerial threats fasiadighters and strategic assets. CEi's
customers include U.S. agencies and foreign goventen CEi is a part of the US reportable segment.

The excess of the purchase price over the fairevafuihe tangible and identifiable intangible assatquired and liabilities assumed in
the acquisition was allocated to goodwill. The eatd the goodwill represents the value the Compaapects to be created by enabling it to
strategically expand its strengths in the areatesign, engineering, development, manufacturingpraduction of unmanned aerial targets,
by enabling the Company to realize significant sreslling opportunities.

The transaction was accounted for using the ad@nsinethod of accounting, which requires, amorgebthings, that the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed be recognizetait fair values as of the acquisition date. THeWng table summarizes the fair values of
the major assets acquired and liabilities assureexf the acquisition date (in millions):

Cash $ 8.¢
Accounts receivable 9.3
Inventoried costs 12.5
Other current assets 8.6
Property and equipment 8.1
Intangible assets 38.C
Goodwill 104.2

Total assets 189.%
Current liabilities (25.9)

Net assets acquired $ 164.(

The amounts of revenue and operating income ofi@fiilded in the Company's Consolidated Stateme@tparations and
Comprehensive Loss for the year ended Decemb&@@ was $68.2 million and $1.6 million , respeelyw
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Critical Infrastructure Business

On December 30, 2011, the Company acquired selastests of a critical infrastructure security aotlig safety system integration
business (the “Critical Infrastructure Business) &pproximately $18.8 million .

The Critical Infrastructure Business designs, eeglin, deploys, manages and maintains specialtyisesystems at some of the most
strategic asset and critical infrastructure loaaim the U.S. Additionally, these security systemrestypically integrated into command and
control system infrastructure or command centeppréximately 15% of the revenues of the Criticdtdstructure Business are recurring in
nature due to the operation, maintenance or susé&inof the security systems once deployed. Thec@rinfrastructure Business is part of the
Company's PSS reportable segment.

The excess of the purchase price over the fairevaluhe tangible and identifiable intangible assetquired and liabilities assumed in
the acquisition was allocated to goodwill. The eatf the goodwill represents the value the Compapects to be created by enabling it to
strategically expand its strengths in the aredwaieland security solutions and will also enabé&e@ompany to realize significant cross selling
opportunities and increase its sales of higher mafiged-price products.

The transaction was accounted for using the adiprsinethod of accounting, which requires, amoneothings, that the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed be recognizeteait fair values as of the acquisition date. THeWing table summarizes the fair values of
the major assets acquired and liabilities assumexf the acquisition date (in millions):

Accounts receivable $ 23.2
Other assets 0.t
Intangible assets 2.C
Goodwill 2.€

Total assets 28.t
Current liabilities (9.7

Net assets acquired $ 18.¢

The goodwill recorded in this transaction is taduaigtible.
Pro Forma Financial Information

The following tables summarize the supplementaldéosed Consolidated Statements of Operations amgpf@bensive Loss
information on an unaudited pro forma basis akefdcquisitions of CEi, and the Critical Infrasture Business occurred on December 25,
2011 and include adjustments that were directhbatiable to the foregoing transactions or wereaxgtected to have a continuing impact on
the Company. Both acquisitions were included inrtsilts of operations for the full years endeddddoer 29, 2013 and December 28, 2014
There are no material, nonrecurring pro forma adjests directly attributable to the business comtidms included in the reported pro forma
revenue and operations for 201 2. The pro formaltseare for illustrative purposes only for the kgable period and do not purport to be
indicative of the actual results that would haveuwsted had the transactions been completed a® dfgginning of the period, nor are they
indicative of results of operations that may odauhe future (all amounts, except per share ansoarg in millions):

Year Ended
December 30,
2012
Pro forma revenues $ 1,019t
Pro forma net loss before tax (132.0
Pro forma net loss (130.9)
Net loss attributable to the registrant (112.9
Basic and diluted pro forma loss per share $ (2.3))

The pro forma financial information reflects acdqtigs related expenses incurred, pro forma adjustm#r the additional
amortization associated with finite-lived intangilalssets acquired, additional incremental intengsense, stock compensation related to the
RSUs granted in the CEi transaction, and the relgbe expense.
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These adjustments are as follows (in millions ekpep share data):

Year Ended
December 30,
2012
Intangible amortization $ 16.2
Net change in stock compensation expense 2.2
Increase in weighted average common shares ouistpfatt shares issued and not already includetieniteighted averag
common shares outstanding 9.6
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Note 4. Balance Sheet Details

The detail of certain assets in the Consolidatddig® Sheets consists of the following (in millipns
Cash and cash equivalents

The Company's cash equivalents consist of overmigblt sweep accounts that are invested on a delg.lilCash and cash equivalents
at December 29, 2013 and December 28, 2014 wer& $5bion and $34.7 million , respectively and amxmated their fair value.

Accounts receivable, net (in millior

Receivables including amounts due under long-teyniracts are summarized as follows:

December 29, 2013 December 28, 2014

Billed, current $ 150.2 $ 133.¢
Unbilled, current 117.¢ 116.¢
Total current accounts receivable 268.1 250.2
Allowance for doubtful accounts (2.3 (2.0)
Total current accounts receivable, net 265.¢ 248.2
Unbilled, long-term (included in other assets) 0.1 —
Total accounts receivable, net $ 265.¢ § 248.%

Unbilled receivables represent the balance of re@ble costs and accrued profit, composed prirlgip&kevenue recognized on
contracts for which billings have not been presgidethe customer because the amounts were eam@dtcontractually billable as of the
balance sheet date. Retainages receivable wereriich as of December 29, 2013 and $6.1 millierod December 28, 20J8hd are include
in accounts receivable, net in the ConsolidatecBz# Sheets.

U.S. Government contract receivables where the @oms the prime contractor included in accountseaigable, net (in millions)

December 29, 2013  December 28, 2014

Billed $ 19.¢ $ 19.1
Unbilled 31.€ 21.2
Total U.S. Government contract receivables $ 514 % 40.2

Inventoried costs, net of progress payments (iliang)

December 29, December 28,
2013 2014
Raw materials $ 445 3 39.¢
Work in process 24.% 22.%
Finished goods 4.€ 4.7
Supplies and other 1.¢ 2.1
Subtotal inventoried costs 75.% 68.¢
Less customer advances and progress payments (0.7) (0.9
Total inventoried costs $ 74€ $ 68.(

Property and equipment, net (in millior
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December 29, 2013 December 28, 2014

Land and buildings $ 21.C % 21.¢
Computer equipment and software 20.C 27.C
Machinery and equipment 59.C 59.¢
Furniture and office equipment 15.4 12.¢
Facility under capital lease 1.C —
Leasehold improvements 13.7 13.¢
Construction in progress 4.8 8.C
Property and equipment 134.¢ 143.%
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (50.1) (60.7)
Total property and equipment, net $ 84t $ 82.

Depreciation expense was $14.1 million , $17.2ianiland $16.6 million for the years ended Decen3@e12012 , December 29,
2013, and December 28, 2014 , respectively.

Note 5. Debt
€)) Issuance of 7.00%Senior Secured Notes due 20

In May 2014, the Company refinanced its $625.0iamill10% Senior Secured Notes due in 2017 (the " N¥Stes ") with$625.(
million of newly issued 7.00% Senior Secured Nates in 2019 (the " 7% Notes "). The net proceedb®f7% Notes was $618.5 milliaftel
an original issue discount of $6.5 million . Then@many incurred debt issuance costs of $8.7 millissociated with the new 7% NoteFhe
Company utilized the net proceeds from the 7% Nopte$41.0 milliondraw on a new credit agreement discussed belowglsas cash fro
operations to extinguish the 10% Notes . The tatatquisition price of the 10% Notes was $661.3ionilincluding a $31.2 milliorearly
termination fee, the write off of $15.5 million ahamortized issue costs, $12.9 million of unamedipremium, along with $5.3 millioof
additional interest while in escrow, which resulbed loss on extinguishment of $39.1 million .

The Company completed the offering of the 7.00%eN@hereafter the "Notes”) in a private placementdccted pursuant to Rule
144A and Regulation S under the Securities Actd¥3] as amended (the “Act”). The Notes are govehyean Indenture dated May 14, 2014
(the “Indenture”) among the Company, certain of@mmpany’s subsidiaries (the “Guarantoraiid Wilmington Trust, National Association.
Trustee and Collateral Agent. A Guarantor can leaeed from its Guarantee if (a) all of the Captick issued by such Guarantor or all or
substantially all of the assets of such Guarantsald or otherwise disposed of; (b) the Compassighates such Guarantor as an Unrestricte
Subsidiary; (c) if the Company exercises its lagfeasance option or its covenant defeasance gptigd) upon satisfaction and discharge of
the Indenture or payment in full in cash of thepipal or, premium, if any, accrued and unpaidrige

The holders of the Notes have a first priority l@nsubstantially all of the Company's assets hadssets of the Guarantors, except
with respect to accounts receivable, inventoryodémccounts, securities accounts, cash, seaudtid general intangibles (other than
intellectual property), on which the holders of tetes have a second priority lien to the CompabyX0.0 million credit agreement.

The Company pays interest on the Notes semi-annualarrears, on May 15 and November 15 of eaetn.ye

The Notes include customary covenants and everdsfafilt as well as a consolidated fixed charge @t2.0 :1 for the incurrence of
additional indebtedness. Negative covenants in¢laa®ng other things, limitations on additional téibns, negative pledges, investments,
dividends, stock repurchases, asset sales anidtaffitansactions. Events of default include, ammthgr events, noperformance of covenan
breach of representations, cross-default to otlaerial debt, bankruptcy, insolvency, material joggts and changes in control. As of
December 28, 2014 , the Company was in compliarittetiie covenants contained in the Indenture gaugrthe Notes.

On or after May 15, 2016, the Company may redeamesar all of the Notes at 105.25% of the aggrepgeteipal amount of such
Notes through May 15, 201102.625% of the aggregate principal amount of otes through May 15, 2018 and 100% of the aggeegat
principal amount of such Notes thereafter, pluswet and unpaid interest to the date of redempltioaddition, the Company may redeem up
to 35% of the Notes at 107% of the aggregate grad@mount of such
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Notes plus accrued and unpaid interest before Ma2Q16 with the net proceeds of certain equitenifigs. The Company may also rede
some or all of the Notes before May 15, 2016 a&demption price of 100% of the principal amounteé plus accrued and unpaid interest, if
any, to the redemption date, plus a “make wholefyum. In addition, at one time prior to May 15180the Company may redeem up to 10¥%
of the original aggregate principal amount of thetd¢ issued under the Indenture at a redemptioe pfi103%of the principal amount there
plus accrued and unpaid interest to the date @mgdion.

On September 17, 2014, the Company commenced antoféxchange the outstanding Notes for an equnautat of new 7.00%
Senior Secured Notes due 2019 (the “Exchange Natiest have been registered under the Securiti¢®fAr933, as amended. The Company
made the exchange offer pursuant to the termsedR#gistration Rights Agreement, dated May 14, 201at it entered into with the
Guarantors and the representative of the initiatipasers of the Notes. The purpose of the excheffigiewas to allow holders of the Notes to
exchange their Notes for Exchange Notes that arsuigect to transfer restrictions. The terms ef#xchange Notes are identical in all
material respects to the terms of the Notes, extepExchange Notes have been registered und&ethgrities Act. The Exchange Notes are
fully and unconditionally guaranteed, jointly arelerally, on a senior secured basis by the Compadyeach of its subsidiaries, as the
guarantors thereof. The Company pays interest®Ethange Notes semi-annually, in arrears, on Magnd November 15 of each year. The
Company completed the exchange offer on Octobe2d®4, at which time the holders of all outstandiajes had elected to exchange their
Notes for Exchange Notes. The Company has no fudihiggations under the Registration Rights Agreetr

(b) Other Indebtedness
$110.0 Million Credit Facility

On May 14, 2014, the Company replaced its creditifiawith KeyBank National Association and entdriato a Credit and Security
Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”), by and amorgy@mpany, the lenders from time to time partyaterSunTrust Bank, as Agent (the
“Agent”), PNC Bank, National Association, as Jdiead Arranger and Documentation Agent and SunTRasinson Humphrey, Inc., as Joint
Lead Arranger and Sole Book Runner. The CredieaAgrent establishes a five -year senior securedvirgaredit facility in the maximum
amount of $110.0 million (subject to a potentiariase of the maximum principal amount to $135l0ani, subject to the Agent's and
applicable lenders’ approval as described therem)sisting of a subline for letters of credit mamount not to exceed $50.0 million , as well
as a swingline loan in an aggregate principal arhatiany time outstanding not to exceed $10.0 omilliThe Credit Agreement is secured by ¢
lien on substantially all of the Company's assatsthe assets of the guarantors thereunder, subjeettain exceptions and permitted liens.
The Credit Agreement has a first priority lien @taunts receivable, inventory, deposit accountsyrifées accounts, cash, securities and
general intangibles (other than intellectual progeOn all other assets, the Credit Agreementehsscond priority lien junior to the lien
securing the Notes.

The Credit Agreement contains certain covenantiiwinclude, but are not limited to, restrictions iadebtedness, liens, and
investments, and places limits on other variousrgats, as well as a financial covenant relating teinimum fixed charge coverage ratio of
1.15 :1. Events of default under the terms of thed@ Agreement include, but are not limited tatuiee of the Company to pay any principal of
any loans in full when due and payable; failuréhaf Company to pay any interest on any loan orfeeyr other amount payable under the
Credit Agreement within three business days afierdate when due and payable; failure of the Cosnpaany of its subsidiaries to comply
with certain covenants and agreements, subjegifticable grace periods and/or notice requiremeartany representation, warranty or
statement made in or pursuant to the Credit Agre¢mreany related writing or any other materiabimhation furnished by the Company or
of its subsidiaries to the Agent or the lenderdlghtave to be false or erroneous. Subject to @eratice requirements and other conditions,
upon the occurrence of an event of default, comenitis may be terminated and the principal of, atetést then outstanding on, all of the
loans may become immediately due and payable. Henyexhere an event of default arises from certaimkbuptcy events, the commitments
shall automatically and immediately terminate amalrincipal of, and interest then outstandingadingf the loans shall become immediately
due and payable.

Borrowings under the revolving Credit Agreement rtel§e the form of a base rate revolving loan, Eallad revolving loan or
swingline loan. Base rate revolving loans and glime loans will bear interest at a rate per anmgual to the sum of the applicable margin
from time to time in effect plus the highest oftfie Agents prime lending rate, as in effect at such timgtl{e federal funds rate, as in effec
such time, plus 0.50% per annum, and (iii) the stéjdi LIBOR rate determined at such time for arr@geperiod of one month, plus 1.00% per
annum. Eurodollar revolving loans will bear intdrassa rate per annum equal to the sum of the egdgk margin from time to time in effect
plus the adjusted LIBOR rate. The applicable mavwgiries between 1.50% - 2.00% for base rate renglioans and swingline loans a2&0%

- 3.00% for Eurodollar loans, and is based oresafactors including the Company’s then-existimgrowing base and the Lender’s total
commitment amount and revolving credit exposure Gaiculation of the Company’s borrowing base tak&saccount
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several items relating to the Company and its slidnsés, including amounts due and owing undeetiind unbilled accounts receivables,
then-held eligible raw materials inventory, workgrocess inventory, and applicable reserves. ABeafember 28, 2014 , there was $41.0
million outstanding on the Credit Agreement and.$X8illion was outstanding on letters of credisulting in net borrowing base availability
of $45.1 million . The Company was in compliancéhwihe financial covenants of the Credit Agreenanbf December 28, 2014 .

Debt Acquired in Acquisition

The Company has a 10 year term loan with a bafdgrael entered into on September 16, 2008 in cdiorewith the acquisition of
one of its wholly owned subsidiaries. The balareefeDecember 28, 2014 was $3.8 million , and tlza lis payable in quarterly installments
of $0.3 million plus interest at LIBOR plus a margif 1.5% . The loan agreement contains variougants, including a minimum net equity
covenant as defined in the loan agreement. The @oyywas in compliance with all covenants, as ofdbatwer 28, 2014 .

Fair Value of Long-term Debt

Carrying amounts and the related estimated fairasabf the Company’s long-term debt financial instents not measured at fair
value on a recurring basis at December 29, 2013aweémber 28, 2014 are presented in the followdintet

As of December 29, 2013 As of December 28, 2014
Carrying Carrying
$ in millions Principal Amount Fair Value Principal Amount Fair Value
Long-term debt $ 629.6 $ 644.: $ 679.7 $ 669.6 $ 664.C $ 577.1

The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt Wwased upon actual trading activity (Level 1, Obable inputs —quoted prices in
active markets) and is the estimated amount thepaognwould have to pay to repurchase its debtud@iog any premium or discount
attributable to the difference between the statéglést rate and market value of interest at titemba sheet date.

The net unamortized original issue discount of $Bilion as of December 28, 2014 , which is thdat#nce between the carrying
amount of $664.0 million and the principal amouh$669.8 million presented in the previous taldeh@ing accreted to interest expense over
the term of the related debt.

Future maturities of long-term debt for each ofykars ending 2015 through 2017 are $1.0 millianyear, $0.8 million in 2018, and
$666.0 million in 2019.

Note 6. Lease Commitments

The Company leases certain facilities and equipmedeér operating and capital leases having terpsieg at various dates through
2023.

Future minimum lease payments under capital ancatipg leases as of December 28, 2014 , which doemclude $4.5 million in
sublease income on the Company's operating leaiseas follows (in millions):
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Operating
Year Capital Leases Leases
2015 $ 01 $ 20.z
2016 — 17.2
2017 — 15.1
2018 — 12.7
2019 — 10.t
Thereafter — 9.1
Total future minimum lease payments 01 $ 84.¢
Less amount representing interest —
Present value of capital lease obligations 0.1
Less current portion 0.1
Long-term capital lease obligations $ —

The following is an analysis of the leased propertger capital leases by major class (in millions):

December 29, 2013 December 28, 2014

Classes of Property

Facilities $ 1.C $ —
Vehicles 0.t 3
Office equipment 0.4 0.1
Total 1.¢ 0.4
Less: Accumulated amortization 1.7 0.4

$ 02 $ —

Amortization expense related to capital leases$@as million , $0.2 million and $0.2 million for ¢hyears ended December 30, 2012
December 29, 2013 and December 28, 2014 , resphctiv

Gross rent expense under operating leases foredrs ynded December 30, 2012 , December 29, 20BDecember 28, 2014 was
$21.1 million , $20.9 million , and $25.1 milliomespectively. Total sublease income for the yeaded December 30, 2012 , December 29,
2013, and December 28, 2014 , totaling $2.7 milli$2.3 million , and $3.3 million , respectivehas been netted against rent expense.

The Company's accrual for excess facilities was®8llion , $12.4 million , and $11.3 million a§ Becember 30, 2012 ,
December 29, 2013 and December 28, 2014 , respictithe Company estimates that the remaining atevill be paid through 2020.

The accrual for excess facilities is as followsrfiitlions):

Excess Facilities

Balance as of December 30, 2012 $ 18.7
Adjustment of excess facility accrual 4.7
Cash payments (1.6
Balance as of December 29, 2013 12.4
Adjustments of excess facility accruals 0.2
Cash payments (1.3
Balance as of December 28, 2014 $ 11.¢
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The adjustment to the excess facility accrual ih®®&as primarily due to a change in the estimategss office space at our
Colombia, Maryland administrative facilities. Thajiastment of $0.2 million for 2014 was primarilyalto an estimated excess facility accrual
of office space at our Sacramento, California adstiative facilities.

The lease on certain office facilities includesestiied base rent increases over the term of tise |&de total amount of the base rent
payments is being charged to expense on the stiiighmethod over the term of the lease. In addito the base rent payment, the Company
pays a monthly allocation of the building's opergtexpenses. The Company has recorded deferredrrelatied in accrued expenses and ¢
long-term liabilities in the Consolidated Balandee8ts, of $1.3 million , $3.2 million , and $5.3llioh at December 30, 2012 , December 29,
2013 and December 28, 2014 , respectively, toateflee excess of rent expense over cash paymewts isiception of the respective leases.

Note 7. Net Loss Per Common Share

The Company calculates net loss per share in aanoedwithFASB ASC Topic 26(Earnings per Share (“Topic 260"UnderTopic
260, basic net loss per common share is calculatetiviging net loss by the weighted-average numberoofimon shares outstanding during
the reporting period. Diluted net loss per commioars reflects the effects of potentially dilutivecarities.
The following shares were excluded from the cakioaof diluted loss per share because their ingtus/ould have been anti-dilutive (in

millions):

December 30, 2012 December 29, 2013 December 28, 2014
Shares from stock options and awards 3.6 2.€ 0.¢

Note 8. Income Taxes

The components of income (loss) from continuingrapens before income taxes are listed below (itianis):

2012 2013 2014
Domestic $ (120.9 $ (39.9) % (84.0
Foreign 5.8 7.E 11.1
Total $ (1145 $ (319 $ (72.9

The provision (benefit) for income taxes from contng operations for the years ended December@®I®, 2December 29, 2013, and
December 28, 2014 are comprised of the followingillions):

2012 2013 2014
Federal income taxes:
Current $ — 3 @an s —
Deferred (3.5 & 3.2
Total Federal (3.5 (1.9 3.8
State and local income taxes
Current 0.8 2.C 1.€
Deferred 0.4 (0.9) (2.7
Total State and local 1.2 - (0.2
Foreign income taxes:
Current 0.1 0.1 1.2
Deferred 0.€ — 0.7
Total Foreign 0.7 0.1 1.¢
Total $ (1.6) $ — $ 5.1
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A reconciliation of the total income tax provisifirenefit) to the amount computed by applying tla¢usory federal income tax rate of
35% to the loss from continuing operations befamime taxes for the years ended December 30, 2D&2ember 29, 2013 and December 28
2014 is as follows (in millions):

2012 2013 2014

Income tax expense (benefit) at federal statutaty r $ (40.0) $ (111 $ (25.5)
State taxes, net of federal tax benefit and vanadilowance 0.7 1.8 0.€
Difference in tax rates between U.S. and foreign (1.5 (2.6 (2.0
Increase in federal valuation allowance 14.2 13.C 26.¢
Nondeductible expense 0.3 0.7 2.t
Increase (decrease) in reserve for uncertain taitipos 0.1 (1.4 0.€
Transaction costs 0.1 — —
Changes to indefinite life items and separate steterred taxes (3.0 (0.9 1.€
Goodwill impairment 27.€ — —
Total $ 16 $ — 8 5.1

The tax effects of temporary differences that gise to deferred tax assets and deferred taxiliglsilas of December 29, 2013 and
December 28, 2014 are as follows (in millions):

2013 2014
Deferred tax assets:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 07 $ 0.€
Sundry accruals 2.8 2.2
Vacation accrual 5.2 5.1
Stock-based compensation 6.1 5.4
Payroll related accruals 3.2 4.€
Lease accruals 9.1 8.4
Investments 1.6 2.C
Net operating loss carryforwards 118.2 144.:
Tax credit carryforwards 5.1 6.5
Deferred revenue 2.4 2.4
Reserves and other 10.2 9.2
165.( 190.¢
Valuation allowance (123.) (154.0
Total deferred tax assets, net of valuation allavean 41.¢ 36.¢
Deferred tax liabilities:
Unearned revenue (35.9) (35.9)
Other intangibles 4.7 (2.7
Property and equipment, principally due to differesin depreciation (7.7) (6.5)
Other (0.9 (1.3
Total deferred tax liabilities (49.) (46.9)
Net deferred tax asset (liability) $ (72 $ (99

In assessing the Company's ability to realize deferax assets, management considers, on a pebasiis, whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the defereedassets will not be realized. As such, managehentietermined that it is appropriate to
maintain a full valuation allowance against the @amy's deferred tax assets, with the exceptiom @naount equal to its deferred tax
liabilities, which can be expected to reverse avdefinite life and certain foreign and separaatestieferred tax assets. Management will
continue to evaluate the necessity to maintaini@ati@an allowance against the Company's net deddae assets. During fiscal 2014 , the
Company recorded a net increase in its federaktial allowance of $30.9 million .
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At December 28, 2014 , the Company had federdbssccarryforwards of $391.5 million and variouststtax loss carryforwards of
$285.0 million including net operating losses réaglfrom stock options of $14.4 millidior federal and state, which if recognized woulsiuft
in additional paid-in-capital. The federal tax l@assryforwards will begin to expire in 2019 andtstiax loss carryforwards will begin to expire
in 2015 in certain states.

Federal and state income tax laws impose restngtim the utilization of net operating loss (“NOIaid tax credit carryforwards in
the event that an “ownership change” occurs foiptasposes, as defined by Section 382 of the Inté&teaenue Code of 1986, as amended
(“Section 382"). In general, an ownership changeuog when shareholders owning 5% or more of a ‘tmsporation” & corporation entitled
use NOL or other loss carryovers) have increaseid tiwnership of stock in such corporation by mibtv@n 50 percentage points during any 3
year period. The annual base Section 382 limitatiaralculated by multiplying the loss corporat®walue at the time of the ownership cha
by the greater of the long-term tax-exempt ratemeined by the Internal Revenue Service in the mohthe ownership change or the two
preceding months. This base limitation is subje@adjustments, including an increase for built@ing recognized in the five year period after
the ownership change. In March 2010 , an “ownershgnge” occurred that will limit the utilizatiori NOL carryforwards. In July 2011 ,
another “ownership change” occurred. The March 20&08ership change limitation is more restrictiveprior years the company acquired
corporations with NOL carryforwards at the datecduisition (Acquired NOLSs). The Acquired NOLs ateject to separate limitations that
may further restrict the use of Acquired NOLs. A®sult, the Company's federal annual utilizatibiN@L carryforwards will be limited to at
least $27 million a year for the five years sucaegthe March 2010 ownership change and at lea&t@& million for each year thereafter
subject to separate limitations for Acquired NOIfshe entire limitation amount is not utilized ényear, the excess can be carried forward an
utilized in future years. For the year ended Decam2, 2014 , there was no impact of such limitegion the income tax provision since the
amount of taxable income did not exceed the anima@htion amount. In addition, future equity offiegs or acquisitions that have equity as a
component of the purchase price could also causevamership change.” If and when any other “owngysthange” occurs, utilization of the
NOL or other tax attributes may be further limitéd. discussed elsewhere, deferred tax assetsuglatithe NOL and credit carryforwards
offset by a full valuation allowance. In additiartilization of state tax loss carryforwards is degent upon sufficient taxable income
apportioned to the states.

The Company has not provided deferred U.S. incaxestor foreign withholding taxes of approximatly8.1 million on temporary
differences relating to the outside basis in it@stment in foreign subsidiaries which are essinpi@rmanent in duration. It is the Company's
intention to permanently reinvest undistributech@zgs of its foreign subsidiaries. As of Decemb&r 2014 the Company has $10.9 million of
cash and cash equivalents available for distrilbutio

The Company is subject to taxation in the U.S.iouar state tax jurisdictions and various foreignjtaisdictions. The Company's tax
years for 2000 and later are subject to examindtjothe U.S. and state tax authorities due to tirtence of NOL carryforwards. General
the Company's tax years for 2002 and later areestity) examination by various foreign tax authesiti

The following table summarizes the activity relatedhe Company's unrecognized tax benefits (itioni):

Balance as of December 25, 2011 $ 10.1
Increases related to prior periods (acquired esiti 3.7
Increases related to current year tax positions —
Expiration of applicable statutes of limitations (0.2
Settlements with taxing authorities (0.3
Balance as of December 30, 2012 13.4
Increases related to prior periods (acquired esiti 33
Increases related to current year tax positions 1.7
Expiration of applicable statutes of limitations (2.6)
Settlements with taxing authorities —
Balance as of December 29, 2013 15.¢
Increases related to prior periods —
Increases related to current year tax positions 0.€
Expiration of applicable statutes of limitations (0.2
Settlements with taxing authorities —
Balance as of December 28, 2014 $ 16.4
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Included in the balance of unrecognized tax bemafiDecember 28, 2014 , are $16.4 million of tamdiits that, if recognized, would
affect the effective tax rate. Included in this ambis $14.5 million that would become a defermedasset if the tax benefit were recognized.
As such, this benefit may be impacted by a cornedimgy valuation allowance depending upon the Comiparonsolidated financial position at
the time the benefits are recognized.

The Company recognizes interest and penaltiesrbtatunrecognized tax benefits in its provisionificome taxes. For the years
ended December 30, 2012 , December 29, 2013 anehier 28, 2014 , the Company recorded $0.4 mijl®®2 million and $0.2 million ,
respectively, in interest or penalties. These art®are netted by a benefit for interest and pessatilated to the reversal of prior positions as
noted above of $0.1 million , $0.2 million , and Bnillion for the years ended December 30, 20D2cember 29, 2013 , and December 28,
2014 , respectively. As of December 30, 2012 , bdwsr 29, 2013, and December 28, 2014 , the Comipadiyecorded total interest and
penalties of $0.7 million , $0.7 million , and $0r8llion , respectively.

The Company believes that no material amount ofiiindities for uncertain tax positions will exgiwithin 12 months of
December 28, 2014 .

Note 9. Discontinued Operations

In June of 2012, consistent with the Company'starcomplete its assessment and evaluation afdhecore businesses acquired in
the Integral acquisition, the Company committed f@an to sell certain lines of business associat#dantennas, satellite-cased products anc
fly-away terminals. These operations were previpusported in the KGS segment, and in accordantieMaipic 205these businesses have
been classified as held for sale and reportedsooditinued operations in the accompanying congelitifinancial statements. In the second
quarter of 2012, the Company recorded a $1.5 milliopairment charge associated with the portiogaafdwill that was allocated to the
discontinued businesses based on management'aestfrthe fair value of the discontinued busines$ee Company sold its domestic
operations to two buyers for approximately $0.8iomilin cash consideration and the assumption ghgeliabilities. The Company received
$0.3 million in cash in 2012 from the first buyerda$0.5 million in cash in April 2013 from the saddbuyer. The Company recorded a $1.2
million impairment charge in the first quarter @13 related to its revised estimate of the faiugadf these operations.

The following table presents the results of distaréd operations including gain and loss on disigoshich is included in loss before
taxes (in millions):

Year ended Year ended Year ended
December 30, 2012 December 29, 2013 December 28, 2014
Revenue $ 185 $ 37 $ —
Loss before taxes (1.9 (5.9 —
Benefit for income taxes (0.3 — —
Net loss $ (15 $ 5.3 $ —

The benefit for income taxes for the year endededdxr 30, 2012 was primarily due to the expiratibthe statute of limitations for
certain foreign tax contingencies related to then@any’s discontinued wireless services business.

The following is a summary of the liabilities ofsdbntinued operations, which are in other curriabilities and other long-term
liabilities in the accompanying Consolidated BakuSheets as of December 29, 2013 and Decembe®28 (id millions):
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December 29, 2013 December 28, 2014

Accrued expenses and accounts payable $ 11 % 0.7
Other current liabilities 14 0.t
Current liabilities of discontinued operations $ 25 % 1.2
Other long-term liabilities of discontinued opeoats $ 02 $ =

Note 10. Fair Value Measurement

The Company adoptetbpic 820with the exception of the application of the stag@trto non-recurring nonfinancial assets and
nonfinancial liabilities. Non-recurring nonfinantassets and nonfinancial liabilities for whicthas not applied the provisions Bdpic 820
include those measured at fair value in goodwipp@inment testing, indefinite lived intangible assateasured at fair value for impairment
testing, asset retirement obligations initially s@ad at fair value, and those assets and liasilitiitially measured at fair value in a business
combination.

Topic 820establishes a valuation hierarchy for disclosurthefinputs to valuation used to measure fair valigs hierarchy
prioritizes the inputs into three broad levels@®ivs. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadfljste active markets for identical assets or
liabilities. Level 2 inputs are quoted prices foniar assets and liabilities in active marketsnputs that are observable for the asset or ligt
either directly or indirectly through market coroshtion, for substantially the full term of thedimcial instrument. Level 3 inputs are
unobservable inputs based on the Company's owmasiguns used to measure assets and liabilitiegimtdlue. A financial asset or liability's
classification within the hierarchy is determinexbed on the lowest level input that is signifidanthe fair value measurement.

Note 11. Stockholders’ Equity
€)) Common Stocl

On May 14, 2012, the Company sold 20.0 million skasf its common stock at a purchase price of $pedGhare in an underwritten
public offering. The Company received gross prosegfds100.0 million . After deducting underwritiagd other offering expenses, the
Company received approximately $97.0 million in peiceeds. The Company used the net proceeds liisroffering to fund a portion of the
cash consideration paid to the stockholders ofi@Ebnnection with the Company's acquisition thémoJuly 2, 2012.

(b) Stock Option Plans and Restricted Stock Unit Plans

In March 2014 the Board approved the 2014 Equitgiive Plan (the "2014 Plan"). The 2014 Planéssinccessor to the Kratos
Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. 2011 Equity Imieée Plan, the Kratos Defense & Security Solutjdns. Amended and Restated 2005
Equity Incentive Plan, the Kratos Defense & Segusiblutions, Inc. 2000 Nonstatutory Stock OptioarRlthe Kratos Defense & Security
Solutions, Inc. 1999 Equity Incentive Plan, the Awded and Restated Integral Systems, Inc. 2008 $toekitive Plan, the Amended and
Restated Herley Industries, Inc. 2010 Stock Plam Herley Industries, Inc. 2003 Stock Option Pthe,Henry Bros. Electronics, Inc. 2007
Stock Option Plan, the Henry Bros. Electronics, B@06 Stock Option Plan, the Amended and Res&168 Digital Fusion, Inc. Equity
Incentive Plan, the 2000 Digital Fusion, Inc. Stégition Plan, the 1999 Digital Fusion, Inc. Stoghtion Plan, and the 1998 Digital
Fusion, Inc. Stock Option Plan (collectively, therior Plans").

The 2014 Plan became effective May 14, 2014 analdditional stock awards will be granted under thierfPlans as of April 1, 2014.
All outstanding stock awards granted subject tat¢nes of the Prior Plans will continue to be sabje the terms and conditions as set forth ir
the agreements evidencing such stock awards artdrths of the respective Prior Plans. Any sharbgstto outstanding stock awards grar
under the Prior Plans or granted outside of a Fian that, at any time after March 27, 2014, Xpiee or terminate for any reason prior to
exercise or settlement; (ii) are forfeited, candede otherwise returned to the Company becaudeedfdilure to meet a contingency or condi
required to vest such shares; or (iii) are reaeglliwithheld (or not issued) to satisfy a tax witlfing obligation in connection with an award
or to satisfy the purchase price or exercise fce stock award (collectively, the "Returning S¥sj will immediately be added to the share
reserve of the 2014 Plan and become availables$oiance pursuant to stock awards granted undé@ot¥ePlan.
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As of March 27, 2014 , there were 2,306,256 shamemining available for issuance under the Prian®l The total number of awards
outstanding under all of the Prior Plans and oetsidany Prior Plan was 5,511,322 as of March P142 The 2014 Plan decreased the nun
of shares remaining available for issuance undexqtiity compensation plans from 2,306,256 to 188D, although, per the 2014 Plan, up to
5,511,322 shares subject to outstanding awards dinelé>rior Plans and non-plan grants could pa#ntbecome Returning Shares available
for issuance under the 2014 Plan.

The Company's board of directors (“Board”) may ¢eguity-based awards to selected employees, diseand consultants of the
Company pursuant to its 2014 Plan. As of DecemBgRQ14 , there are approximately 3,208,000 shraseyved for issuance for future grant
under the 2014 Plan. The Board may amend or tetentha 2014 Plan at any time. Certain amendmenrthiiding an increase in the share
reserve, require stockholder approval. Generafifipas and restricted stock units outstanding west periods not exceeding ten years . Whe|
the Company grants stock options, they are granmittda per share exercise price not less thanainerfarket value of the Company's common
stock on the date of grant, and generally wouléercisable for up to ten years from the grant.date

The Company records compensation expense for emlstpck options based on the estimated fair \@ltiee options on the date of
grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing maated trinomial lattice options pricing model witihetweighted average assumptions
(annualized percentages) included in the followaige. Awards with graded vesting are recognizeédguthe straight-line method with the
following assumptions:

2012 2013 2014
Stock Options
Expected life (1) 10.0 6.25-10.0 10.0
Risk-free interest rate(2) 1.6% - 2.3% 1.1% -2.9% 2.4% -2.7%
Volatility(3) 59.0% - 59.7% 56.8% - 61.2% 54.5% - 56.1%
Forfeiture rate(4) 16.3% 10.0% 2.5% - 15.2%
Dividend yield(5) —% —% —%

(1) In 2012, no unvested options were granted haadxpected life was equal to the life of the aptio

(2) The risk-free interest rate is based on U.8a%ury yields in effect at the time of grant witteem equal to the expected term
of the options.

(3) In 2012, 2013, and 2014 , the Company eséchatplied volatility based upon trailing volatlit

(4) Forfeitures are estimated at the time of gbeased upon historical information. Forfeitures Ww#l revised, if necessary, in
subsequent periods if actual forfeitures diffenfrestimates.

(5) The Company has no history or expectatiopayiing dividends on its common stock.

A summary of the status of the Company's stocloogtian as of December 28, 2014 and changes inrgptiutstanding under the
plan for the year ended December 28, 2014 is &sifsi

Weighted-
Average
Weighted- Remaining
Number of Average Contractual Aggregate
Shares Under  Exercise Price Term Intrinsic
Option per Share (in years) Value
(000's) (000's)
Options outstanding at December 29, 2013 1,721 $  13.1¢ 58 $ 2,179.(
Granted 1C % 6.62 0 —
Exercised (45 $ 3.87 0 —
Forfeited or expired (18¢) $  35.1¢ 0 —
Options outstanding at December 28, 2014 1,49¢ ¢§  11.0¢ 56 $ 108.3
Options exercisable at December 28, 2014 64¢ $  18.9¢ 24 $ 8.9t

As of December 28, 2014 , there was $1.5 milliototdl unrecognized stodkased compensation expense related to nonvestieds
which is expected to be recognized over a remaiweighted-average vesting period of 3.3 years. Upaicise of an option, the Company
issues new shares of common stock.
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During the years ended December 30, 2012 , Dece®he@013 , and December 28, 2014 the followingieslrelate to the grants and
exercises under the Company's option plans:

2012 2013 2014
Weighted average grant date fair value of optioasigd $ 356 % 2.8t $ 4.4C
Total intrinsic value of options exercised (in teands) $ — — ¢ 171
The following table summarizes the Company's Restli Stock Unit activity:

Weighted-

Restricted Average
Stock Units Grant Date

(000's) Fair Value
Nonvested balance at December 29, 2013 3,34t $ 7.2€
Grants 55t § 7.9C
Vested (12¢) $ 10.9¢
Forfeitures (1,569 $ 6.1C
Vested but not released 2 $ 12.1¢
Nonvested balance at December 28, 2014 2,208 g 8.0%

As of December 28, 2014 , there was $8.1 milliototdl unrecognized stock-based compensation erpefeted to nonvested
restricted stock units which is expected to be gaczed over a remaining weighted-average vestimpg®ef 2.7 years. The fair value of RSU
awards that vested in 2012 , 2013 , and 2014 wasrfillion , $1.7 million , and $1.4 million , resgtively.

(d) Employee Stock Purchase Ple

In August 1999, the Board approved the 1999 Em@&teck Purchase Plan (“Purchase Plan”). A tot8l ofmillion shares of
Common Stock have been authorized for issuancer theéurchase Plan. The Purchase Plan qualifieas amployee stock purchase plan
within the meaning of Section 423 of the InternavBnue Service Code. Unless otherwise determingdebompensation Committee of the
Board, all employees are eligible to participat¢hi@a Purchase Plan so long as they are employ#ueb@ompany (or a subsidiary designate
the Board) for at least 20 hours per week and westomarily employed by the Company (or a subgydi@signated by the Board) for at least
5 months per calendar year.

Employees who actively participate in the PurctRlss are eligible to have up to 15% of their eagsifor each purchase period
withheld pursuant to the Purchase Plan. The antbahis withheld is used at various purchase dai#sn the offering period to purchase
shares of Common Stock. The price paid for ComntonkSat each such purchase date is equal to therlofaB5% of the fair market value of
the Common Stock at the commencement date of ffeatrg period or 85% of the fair market value bétCommon Stock on the relevant
purchase date. Employees are also able to endpidugicipation in the offering at any time duririgetoffering period, and participation ends
automatically upon termination of employment. Friive Purchase Plan's inception through Decembe2®8 , the cumulative number of
shares of Common Stock that have been issued timel@&urchase Plan is 2.4 million and approximateBymillion shares are available for
future issuance. During fiscal 2014 , approxima@32,000 shares were issued under the plan ateaagesprice of $6.14 .

The fair value of Kratos' Purchase Plan share20a# was estimated using the Black-Scholes optiming model. The assumptions
and resulting fair values of options granted fot202013 and 2014 were as follows:
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Offering Offering Offering
Periods Periods Periods
January 1to January 1 to January 1to
December 31, December 31, December 31
2012 2013 2014
Expected term (in years)(1) 0.5 0.5 0.5
Risk-free interest rate(2) 0.06% - 0.16% 0.10% - 0.11% 0.07% - 0.10%
Expected volatility(3) 49.70% - 65.73% 36.95% - 43.70% 40.14% - 40.23%
Expected dividend yield(4) 0% 0% 0%
Weighted average grant-date fair value per share $1.93 $1.50 $2.09

(1) The expected term is equivalent to the offeringquk

(2)The riskfree interest rate is based on U.S. Treasury yial@ésfect at the time of grant with a term equatte expected ter
(3) The Company estimated implied volatility édsipon trailing volatility.

(4) The Company has no history or expectatiopaying dividends on its common stock.

As of December 28, 2014 , there was no materigdeognized compensation expense related to the epBtock Purchase Plan.

Note 12. Retirement Plans

The Company provides eligible employees the oppdstio participate in defined-contribution savingans (commonly known as
401(k) plans), which permit contributions on a lveftax basis. Generally, salaried employees artdindrourly employees are eligible to
participate in the plans. Under most plans, theleyge may contribute to various investment altéveat In certain plans, the Company
matches a portion of the employees' contributidhe Company's contributions to these defined-doution savings plans totaled $5.1 million
in 2012 , $6.0 million in 2013 and $5.9 million2014 .

Note 13. Significant Customers

Revenue from the U.S. Government (which include®igo Military Sales) includes revenue from contsdor which Kratos is the
prime contractor as well as those for which the @any is a subcontractor and the ultimate customgird U.S. Government. The KGS and
segments have substantial revenue from the U.Sei@ment. Sales to the U.S. Government amountepdmaimately $627.8 million $606.7
million , and $514.6 million or 65% , 64% , and 59%f total revenue for the years ended DecembgP@I2 , December 29, 2013, and
December 28, 2014 , respectively.

Note 14. Segment Information

The Company historically operated in two reportad@gments: Kratos Government Solutions (“*KGS”) Babllic Safety & Security
(“PSS”). In the fourth quarter of 2014, the Compamnpanded the number of reportable segments te disreve separated the KGS segment
two reportable segments: KGS and Unmanned Systéhss)( As a result, the KGS reportable segmentosiprised of an aggregation of
Kratos’ Government Solutions operating segmentduding our electronic products, satellite commatins, modular systems and rocket
support operating segments.

The new Unmanned Systems reportable segment cop$istir unmanned aerial, ground, seaborne and emaincontrol and
communications system business. The KGS and USeggrprovide products, solutions and services pifyif@r mission critical national
security priorities. KGS and US customers primainiglude national security related agencies, th® Dotelligence agencies and classified
agencies, and to a lesser degree, internationa&rgment agencies and domestic and internationahenial customers. The PSS segment
provides independent integrated solutions for adgdrhomeland security, public safety, critical astructure, and security and surveillance
systems for government and commercial applicatiB&S customers are in the critical infrastructposyer generation, power transport, nuc
energy, financial, IT, healthcare, education, tpamtation and petro-chemical industries, as wetiersain government and military customers.
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The Company organizes its reportable segments lmastte nature of the products, solutions and sesvbffered. Transactions
between segments are generally negotiated and mecbfor under terms and conditions similar to otf@vernment and commercial contracts.
This presentation is consistent with the Compamp&rating structure. In the following table, pri@ar financial information has been recast tc
conform to the current reportable segments, arad éqerating income of the reportable business seggris reconciled to the corresponding
consolidated amount. The reconciling item “corpemttivities” includes costs for certain stock-lthsempensation programs (including stock
based compensation costs for stock options, emelstgek purchase plan and restricted stock utiits)effects of items not considered part of
management's evaluation of segment operating peaioce, merger and acquisition expenses, corparate wot allocated to the segments,
other miscellaneous corporate activities.
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Revenues, operating income (loss) and assets séstlmelow provided by the Company's reportable saggrfor the years ended
December 30, 2012 , December 29, 2013, and Deae?8b@014 , are as follows (in millions):

2012 2013 2014
Revenues:
Unmanned Systems
Service revenues $ — 3 — 9 —
Product sales 92.c 121.€ 81.
Total Unmanned Systems 92.c 121.¢ 81.t
Kratos Government Solutions
Service revenues 264.( 233.¢ 207.¢
Product sales 426.¢ 385.¢ 382.7
Total Kratos Government Solutions 690.¢ 619.c 590.1
Public Safety & Security
Service revenues 18€ 209.% 183.¢
Product sales — — 13.C
Total Public Safety & Security 18¢€ 209.7 196.4
Total revenues $ 969.. $ 950.¢ $ 868.(
Depreciation and amortization:
Unmanned Systems $ 9C ¢ 202 % 7.2
Kratos Government Solutions 45.F 29.€ 29.¢
Public Safety & Security 3.5 3.t 2.C
Total depreciation and amortization $ 58.C $ 534 $ 39.1
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations:
Unmanned Systems $ 35 % (16.9 $ (9.6)
Kratos Government Solutions (45.0 43.2 38.t
Public Safety & Security (2.5 8.2 (4.9
Corporate activities (5.7 (2.9 (4.6)
Total operating income (loss) from continuing opierss $ (49.7) $ 31¢ $ 19.¢

Revenues from foreign customers were approxim&eh6.2 million or 12% , $100.9 million or 11% anti18.5 million or 13% of
total revenue for the years ended December 30, 2DE2ember 29, 2013 , and December 28, 2014 ecésply.

In 2012, the Company recorded an impairment of gdlbdnd intangible assets of $83.7 millioelated to the KGS reportable segrm
and an impairment of intangible assets of $12.%anirelated to the PSS reportable segment. See Kot

In 2012 Corporate activities had a benefit frompooate merger and acquisition expenses of appraglynd2.7 million due to a
reduction in contingent consideration, settlemdra dispute on fees, and a change in estimatedehamity obligations related to former
directors and officers of Integral. In 2013 the @wrate activities had a benefit from merger relatexhs of $2.0 million due to the reduction in
a $3.1 millionliability as a result of the final settlement oétindemnity obligations related to former directarsl officers of Integral on July
2013, partially offset by other merger expenseslagadl fees related to prior acquisitions.

Included in the 2013 and 2014 operating loss fertUnmanned Systems Segment is increased coststofrfiion and $3.1 million ,

respectively, related to certain retrofits necestaaddress product design changes as well akwdueontract conversion adjustment on ce
of our aerial platforms.
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Reportable segment assets are as follows (in md)io

December 29, December 28,
2013 2014
Assets:

Kratos Government Solutions $ 847t $ 802.¢
Unmanned Systems 178.1 173.2
Public Safety & Security 122.€ 100.2
Corporate activities 68.4 62.€
Total assets $ 1,216.¢ $ 1,138.¢

Assets of foreign subsidiaries in the KGS segmaarev95.9 million and $98.2 million as of Decemd@y 2013 and December 28,
2014 , respectively.

Note 15. Commitments and Contingencies

In addition to commitments and obligations in thdimary course of business, the Company is sulbgeearious claims, pending and
potential legal actions for damages, investigatiefating to governmental laws and regulations @thér matters arising out of the normal
conduct of the Company's business. The Compangssseontingencies to determine the degree of pilitp@and range of possible loss for
potential accrual in its Consolidated Financialt&teents. An estimated loss contingency is accnuglde Company’s Consolidated Financial
Statements if it is probable that a liability ha&eb incurred and the amount of the loss can bemahty estimated. Because litigation is
inherently unpredictable and unfavorable resolioould occur, assessing litigation contingenadsdhly subjective and requires judgments
about future events. When evaluating contingengiesCompany may be unable to provide a meanirggfiinate due to a number of factors,
including but not limited to the procedural statdishe matter in question, the presence of comptexovel legal theories, and the ongoing
discovery and development of information importanthe matters. In addition, damage amounts claimditigation against it may be
unsupported, exaggerated or unrelated to possilbi®imes, and as such are not meaningful indicafdts potential liability. The Company
regularly reviews contingencies to determine theqadcy of its accruals and related disclosures.afeunt of ultimate loss may differ from
these estimates. It is possible that cash flowssults of operations could be materially affedtedny particular period by the unfavorable
resolution of one or more of these contingencieletlver any losses finally determined in any claioiion, investigation or proceeding could
reasonably have a material effect on the Compédmgmess, financial condition, results of operationcash flows will depend on a number of
variables, including: the timing and amount of sladses; the structure and type of any remediesmibnetary significance any such losses,
damages or remedies may have on the Consolidatadétal Statements; and the unique facts and cstamoes of the particular matter that
may give rise to additional factors.

(a) Legal and Regulatory Matters.

U.S. Government Cost Claims The Company's contracts with the Department débse are subject to audit by the Defense
Contract Audit Agency (“DCAA”). As a result of theswudits, from time to time the Company is advisedaims concerning potential
disallowed, overstated or disputed costs. For exandprring the course of its current audits of @@mpany's contracts, the DCAA is closely
examining and questioning certain of the estabtisired disclosed practices that it had previoustlitad and accepted. In addition, based on &
DCAA audit, the U.S. Department of Justice (“DOd&nducted an investigation concerning whether drireoCompany's subsidiaries viola
the federal False Claims Act by overstating it©ladnd material costs in a contract with the Depart of Defense prior to the Company's
acquisition of the subsidiary. The matter was ideat during the acquisition process and was takémconsideration in the purchase price
allocation of this subsidiary. In December 2014, @ompany reached a negotiated settlement witD@&concerning the disputed contract
costs. The settlement was finalized by a writtereagent that became effective on January 26, 26d paid on February 2015. The differel
between the settlement and the Company's reserw@mwmaterial to the Company's consolidated findratetements.

Other Litigation Matters . The Company is subject to normal and routine litagaarising from the ordinary course and conddct o
business, and, at times, as a result of acquisitionl dispositions. Such disputes include, for gt@ntommercial, employment, intellectual
property, environmental and securities matters. adgregate amounts accrued related to
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these matters are not material to the total liaédliof the Company. We intend to defend ourselvesy such matters and do not currently
believe that the outcome of any such matters vaeha material adverse impact on our financial itayg results of operations or cash flows.

(b) Warranty

Certain of the Company’s products, product finisteesl services are covered by a warranty to befffoee defects in material and
workmanship for periods ranging from one to tenrge@ptional extended warranty contracts can aéspuschased with the revenue deferred
and amortized over the extended warranty period. Gbmpany accrues a warranty liability for estirdatests to provide products, parts or
services to repair or replace products in satigfaaif warranty obligations. Warranty revenuestedlao extended warranty contracts are
amortized to income, over the life of the contrasing the straight-line method. Costs under exd@dndarranty contracts are expensed as
incurred.

The Company’s estimate of costs to service its avdyrobligations is based upon historical expeeesmtd expectations of future
conditions. To the extent that the Company expedsrany changes in warranty claim activity or castociated with servicing those claims,
its warranty liability is adjusted accordingly.

The changes in the Company's aggregate producamtgitiabilities, which are included in other curtdiabilities and other long term-
liabilities on the Company's Consolidated Balankeess, were as follows (in millions):

Year Ended
December 29, December 28,
2013 2014
Balance, at beginning of the period $ 52 § 5.4
Costs accrued and revenues deferred 1.2 0.4
Adjustments to preexisting warranties (0.9 (0.9
Settlements made (in cash or kind) and revenuegnized (0.2 (0.2
Balance, at end of period 5.4 5.2
Less: Non-Current portion .2 0.4
Current warranty liability $ 51 $ 4.¢

(c) Selfdnsured Health and Workers' Compensation Plan

The Company has health plans which are self-insaneldalso has liabilities related to its self-irgliworker's compensation plans for
its discontinued wireless business. The liabilitidated to the health plans are a component af éa@crued expenses and the liabilities related
to the workers' compensation plans are a compafentrrent liabilities of discontinued operationsthe Consolidated Balance Sheets.
Management determines the adequacy of these asdrasdd on an evaluation of the Company's histaigeerience and trends related to bott
medical and workers' compensation claims and patgnarformation provided to the Company by the Camyps insurance broker, industry
experience and the average lag period in whicimdare paid. If such information indicates that@oenpany's accruals require adjustment
Company will, correspondingly, revise the assumptiatilized in the Company's methodologies andaedwr provide for additional accruals
deemed appropriate.

As of December 29, 2013, and December 28, 204 ac¢crual for the Company's partial self-insurgmograms approximated $0.2
million and $0.1 million for its health insuranceda$0.2 million and $0.3 million for its workergmpensation insurance, respectively. The
Company also carries stop-loss insurance that gegweoverage limiting the Company's total exposelated to each medical and workers'
compensation claim incurred, as defined in theiapble insurance policies. The medical annual clamts are $50,000 - $85,000 and the
workers' compensation claim limits are $250,0085(%000 depending upon the plan year. In 2012 32@hd 2014 , no claims exceeded the
limits for workers' compensation. In 2012 , 2018 2014 , the Company had no claims which excedugtirhits for medical insurance.

Note 16. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)
The following financial information reflects all moal and recurring adjustments that are, in tha@iopiof management, necessary for
a fair statement of the results of the interim pési Summarized quarterly data for the years ebdegmber 29, 2013 and December 28, 201«

is as follows (in millions, except per share data):
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First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Fiscal year 2013
Revenues $ 2535 $ 2352 $ 226« $ 2357
Gross profit $ 65.&8 $ 604 $ 52 $ 61t
Operating income from continuing operations $ 114 $ 8¢S $ 61 $ 54
Provision (benefit) for income taxes $ 28 $ (01 $ 0z $ (29
Net loss $ (10) $ (96 $ (99 $ (7.9
Net loss per common share:
Basic and diluted $ (0.1) $ (0.19) $ (0.17) $ (0.12

In the third quarter the Company had a benefit4o¥? $nillion primarily related to an adjustment ke tliability for unused office space
which was primarily due to a change in the estich&ecess facility accrual of office space at thenpany's Colombia, Maryland
administrative facilities partially offset by $2nfillion of expenses related to workforce reductiass result of cost reduction initiatives the
Company implemented. Also included in each of the f second , third and fourth quarter is amaittom of purchased intangibles of $9.3
million , $9.0 million , $9.0 million and $8.9 miiin , respectively.

First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
Fiscal year 2014
Revenues $ 200.1 $ 229.0 $ 2171 $ 221Ft
Gross profit $ 52¢ $ 564 $ 53.C $ 562
Operating income from continuing operations $ 33 $ 47 $ 1z $ 107
Provision (benefit) for income taxes $ 22 $ 1€ $ (02 $ 14
Net loss $ (150 $ (499 $ (109 $ (29
Net loss per common share:
Basic and diluted $ (0.2 $ (0.89) $ (0.19 $ (0.09

In the third quarter, a $39.1 million loss on egtilshment of debt was recorded to reflect the asfie of the Company’s $625.0
million 10% Senior Secured Notes Due 2017 with$625.0 million 7% Senior Secured Notes Due 2019.

Note 17. Condensed Consolidating Financial Statemen

The Company has $625.0 million in outstanding NoB== Note 5. The Notes are guaranteed by allo€tdmpany's 100% owned
domestic subsidiaries (the "Subsidiary Guarantast) are collateralized by the assets of all ofGbmpany's 100% owned subsidiaries. The
Notes are fully and unconditionally guaranteed ¢oirst and several basis by each guarantor subrgidiad the Company. There are
contractual restrictions limiting cash transfermnfrguarantor subsidiaries by dividends, loans saades to the Company. The Notes are not
guaranteed by the Company's foreign subsidiares“flon-Guarantor Subsidiaries”).

The following tables present condensed consoliddtimancial statements for the parent companySihiesidiary Guarantors and the
Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries, respectively, for 201212, and 2014 . The consolidating financial infation below follows the same
accounting policies as described in the Consol@i&teancial Statements, except for the use of ¢t method of accounting to reflect
ownership interests in wholly-owned subsidiariebialr are eliminated upon consolidation.
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Assets
Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable, net

Amounts due from affiliated companies

Inventoried costs

Other current assets

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Goodwill
Intangible assets, net
Investment in subsidiaries
Amounts due from affiliated companies
Other assets
Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Accrued compensation

Billings in excess of costs and earnings on urpletad
contracts

Deferred tax liability
Amounts due to affiliated companies
Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities
Long-term debt, net of current portion
Amounts due to affiliated companies
Other long-term liabilities
Total liabilities
Total stockholders' equity

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet

December 29, 2013

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantors on  Guarantors on
Parent a Combined a Combined
Company Basis Basis Eliminations Consolidated
429 % (30 % 16.C $ — 55.7
— 238.¢ 27.2 — 265.¢
410.2 — — (410.9 —
— 59.1 15.5 — 74.€
10.7 19.4 4.1 — 34.2
463.¢ 314.1 62.¢ (410.9 430.:
2.1 71.€ 10.€ — 84.¢
— 574.¢ 21.€ — 596.2
— 68.5 14 — 69.¢
474.% 36.7 — (510.9 —
— 24.C — (24.0 —
12.¢ 23.C (0.7 — 35.2
952.¢ $ 1,113.( $ 95¢ $ (945.0) $ 1,216.¢
28 % 541 $ 5 $ — % 61.¢
6.€ 40.¢ 3.¢ — 51.4
4.C 36.€ 4.C — 44.¢
— 45.4 7.1 — 52.t
— 28.4 — — 28.4
— 390.2 20.C (410.9 —
& 9.t 1.1 — 11.¢€
147 605.¢ 41.1 (410.9 251.(
639.5 — 3.8 — 643.3
— — 24.C (24.0) —
2.8 214 .3 — 26.5
657.( 626.¢ 71.2 (434.2) 920.¢
295.¢ 486.2 24.7 (510.9 295.¢
952.¢ $ 1,113.( $ 95¢ $ (945.0) $ 1,216.¢
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Condensed Consolidating Balance Sheet
December 28, 2014

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantors on  Guarantors on
Parent a Combined a Combined
Company Basis Basis Eliminations Consolidated
Assets
Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 287 % 6.0 $ 120 % — 34.7
Accounts receivable, net — 217.7 30.5 — 248.2
Amounts due from affiliated companies 341.¢ — — (341.9 —
Inventoried costs — 49.¢ 18.1 — 68.C
Other current assets 4.4 16.3 & — 24.C
Total current assets 375.( 277.¢ 63.€ (341.9 374.¢
Amounts due from affiliated companies, long-term — 3.2 — (3.2 —
Property, plant and equipment, net 2.C 70.€ 10.C — 82.€
Goodwill — 572.¢ 24.C — 596.<
Intangible assets, net — 52.2 0.1 — 52.2
Investment in subsidiaries 498.c 48.5 — (546.6€) —
Other assets 27.¢ 4.€ 0.2 — 32.¢
Total assets $ 903.1 $ 1,029.: $ 98.z $ (891.7) $ 1,138.¢
Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 31 % 404 % 4¢ % — 9 48.4
Accrued expenses 6.2 30.2 3.3 — 39.¢
Accrued compensation 5.2 37.7 3.E — 46.4
Billings in excess of costs and earnings on urpietad
contracts — 47.C 5.1 — 52.1
Deferred income tax liability — 30.2 — — 30.2
Amounts due to affiliated companies — 306.€ 35.2 (341.9 —
Other current liabilities 1.C 6.5 1.€ — 9.1
Total current liabilities 15.€ 498.7 53.7 (341.9 226.1
Long-term debt, net of current portion 660.2 — 2.8 — 663.(
Amounts due to affiliated companies — — 3.2 (3.2 —
Other long-term liabilities 3.C 20.z 2.2 — 25.4
Total liabilities 678.¢ 518.¢ 61.¢ (345.)) 914.t
Total stockholders' equity 224.: 510.: 36.2 (546.€ 224.
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 9031 % 1,029.. $ 9.z $ (891.7) $ 1,138
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations andomprehensive Income (Loss)

Year Ended December 30, 2012
(in millions)

Guarantors on a

Non-Guarantors
on a Combined

Parent Company Combined Basis Basis Eliminations Consolidated
Service revenues $ — 3 4485 $ iE & — 450.(
Product sales — 470.( 64.5 (15.9) 519.2
Total revenues — 918.t 66.C (15.9) 969.2
Cost of service revenues — 350.( 0.8 — 350.¢
Cost of product sales — 333.¢ 427 (15.9) 361.2
Total costs — 683.¢ 43.t (15.9) 712.(
Gross profit — 234.% 22.F — 257.%
Selling, general and administrative expenses 7.4 171.2 13.¢€ — 192t
Impairment of goodwill and intangibles — 96.€ — 96.€
Research and development expenses — 16.¢ 0.6 — 17.¢
Operating income (loss) from continuing operation (7.9) (50.0 7.7 — (49.7)
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net (65.9) 0.3 (0.5) — (66.1)
Other income, net 0.3 0.1 0.€ — 1.3
Total other income and expense, net (65.€) 0.4 0.4 — (64.€)
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme
taxes (73.0 (49.€) 8.1 — (114.%
Provision (benefit) for income taxes from contirgin
operations 20.§ (22.¢) 0.4 — (1.6)
Income (loss) from continuing operations (93.9) (26.¢) 7.7 — (112.9
Income (loss) from discontinued operations 0.2 (2.2 0.8 — (1.5
Equity in net income (loss) of subsidiaries (20.5) 8.3 12.2 —
Net income (loss) $ 1149 $ (20.7) $ 8t $ 122 $ (114.9)
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (115.0 $ 20.¢ § 94 § 115§ (115.0
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations andomprehensive Income (Loss)
Year Ended December 29, 2013

Service revenues
Product sales
Total revenues
Cost of service revenues
Cost of product sales
Total costs
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Impairment of goodwill and intangibles
Research and development expenses
Operating income (loss) from continuing operagion
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net
Other income, net
Total other income and expense, net
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes from contirpmperations
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Equity in net income (loss) of subsidiaries
Net income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss)

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantors on  Guarantors on
Parent a Combined a Combined

Company Basis Basis Eliminations Consolidated

$ — % 438.2 % 54 $ — % 443.¢
— 448.¢ 75.2 (16.9) 507.(

— 886.¢ 80.7 (16.9 950.¢

— 331. 3.6 — 335.2

— 338.¢ 53.4 (16.9 375.¢

— 670.2 57.2 (16.9 710.€

— 216.¢ 23.4 — 240.(

5.5 167.2 14.1 — 186.¢

— 20.z .2 — 21.4

(5.5 29.2 8.1 — 31.t
(65.€) 2.3 (0.4 — (63.7)

— (0.3 .3 — —

(65.6) 2.C 0.7 — (63.7)

(71.7) 31z 8.C — (31.9

0.€ (0.7) 0.1 — —

(71.7) 31.¢ 7.9 — (31.9

0.1 (5.4 — — (5.9

34.4 7.€ — (42.9) —

$ (3729 $ 344 $ 79 $ 429 $ (37.2)
$ (372 $ 344 % S 9 (427 $ (37.2)
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Operations andomprehensive Income (Loss)
Year Ended December 28, 2014

Service revenues
Product sales
Total revenues
Cost of service revenues
Cost of product sales
Total costs
Gross profit
Selling, general and administrative expenses
Impairment of goodwill and intangibles
Research and development expenses
Operating income (loss) from continuing operagion
Other income (expense):
Interest expense, net
Loss on extinguishment of debt
Other income, net
Total other income and expense, net
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforeme taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes from contirgimperations
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income (loss) from discontinued operations
Equity in net income (loss) of subsidiaries
Net income (loss)

Comprehensive income (loss)

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantors on  Guarantors on
Parent a Combined a Combined
Company Basis Basis Eliminations Consolidated
$ — % 380.6 $ 10 $ — % 390.¢
— 417.1 69.C (8.9 477 .2
— 797.¢ 79.C (8.9 868.(
— 297.C 7.€ — 304.¢
— 308.¢ 45.2 (8.9 345.2
— 605.¢ 52.¢ (8.9 649.¢
— 192.1 26.1 — 218.2
8.4 152.¢ 14.C — 175.%
— 21.t 1.t — 23.C
(8.4 17.7 10.€ — 19.¢
(54.9 0.2 0.3 — (54.9)
(39.7) — — — (39.)
— (1.9 2.5 — 0.€
(93.9 (1.6 2.2 — (92.¢)
(101.9 16.1 12.¢ — (72.9)
0.€ .3 1.2 — 5.1
(102.9 12.¢ 11.€ — (78.0)
0.2 0.3 — — —
24.1 11.€ — (35.7) —
$ (78.0 $ 241  $ 11€¢ (35.9) $ (78.0)
$ (78.9 $ 23€ $ 112 % (34.¢) $ (78.9)
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 30, 2012

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Investing activities:
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Decrease in restricted cash
Investment in affiliated companies
Capital expenditures
Proceeds from the disposition of discontinued djpera

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activifi@sn continuing
operations

Financing activities:
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock
Debt issuance costs paid
Repayment of debt
Financing from affiliated companies
Other, net

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activifiesn continuing
operations

Net cash flows of continuing operations
Net operating cash flows from discontinued operetio
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and caslaéts

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantors Guarantors
ona ona
Parent Combined Combined

Company Basis Basis Eliminations Consolidated
$ (98.2) $ 144°% % 6.C $ — 52.:
2.3 (151.%) — — (149.9)

— 0.€ — — 0.€

(20.9) — (2.0 12.¢ —
(0.5 (14.2) (1.9 — (16.6)

— 0.3 — — 0.2

9.0 (165.0) (3.9 12.¢ (165.7)

97.C — — — 97.C

(1.2 — — — (1.2

— (0.5 (1.0 — (1.5

— 12.€ — (12.¢) —

(3.9 — — — (3.9

92.4 12.c 2.0 (12.¢) 90.¢

(14.¢) (8.9 1.1 — (21.9

— 1.3 — — iLE

$ (14.8) $ 69 $ 11 % — 3 (20.6)
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 29, 2013

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Investing activities:
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Decrease in restricted cash
Proceeds from the disposition of discontinued dpara
Investment in affiliated companies
Capital expenditures

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activifi@sn continuing
operations

Financing activities:
Cash paid for contingent acquisition consideratio
Repayment of debt
Purchase of ESPP shares
Financings from affiliated companies
Other, net

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activifiesn continuing
operations

Net cash flows of continuing operations
Net operating cash flows from discontinued operetio
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiaénts

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantors  Guarantors
ona ona
Parent Combined Combined

Company Basis Basis Eliminations Consolidated
$ (65.9 $ 87t % 1C $ — $ 22.¢€
— 2.2 — — 2.2
— 0.4 — — 0.4
— 1.3 — — 1.3
— (74.9) — 74.¢ —
(1.9 (12.9) (2.9 — (16.€)
2.9 (83.9) 2.9 74.€ (22.7)
— (2.7 — — (2.3
— — (1.0 — (1.0
1.1 — — — 11
71.1 — 3.7 (74.9) —
72.2 2.3 2.7 (74.¢) (2.0
4.¢ 2.2 0.8 — 7.9
— 1.3 — (1.3
— — 0.1 — 0.1
$ 4.¢ 0c $ 0S $ — $ 6.7
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Condensed Consolidating Statement of Cash Flows
Year Ended December 28, 2014

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities
Investing activities:
Cash paid for acquisitions, net of cash acquired
Investment in affiliated companies
Increase in restricted cash
Capital expenditures

Other, net

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activifi@sn continuing
operations

Financing activities:
Proceeds from the issuance of long-term debt
Extinguishment of long-term debt
Debt issuance costs
Credit agreement borrowings
Repayment of debt
Financings from affiliated companies

Other, net

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activifiesn continuing
operations

Net cash flows of continuing operations
Net operating cash flows from discontinued operetio
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiaénts

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent

(in millions)
Non-
Guarantors Guarantors
ona ona
Parent Combined Combined
Company Basis Basis Eliminations Consolidated
$ (72.2) $ 814 $ a5 $ — 7.7
— (2.6 — — (2.6)
— (67.9 — 67.¢ —
— (0.9 — — (0.9
(0.9 (11.9 (1.5 — (14.2)
(0.8 (82.) (1.5 67.¢ (17.2)
618.t — — — 618.t
(661.5) — — — (661.5)
(10.0 — — — (10.0
41.C — — — 41.C
— — (1.0 — (1.0
67.7 — 0.2 (67.9) —
3.3 — — — 3.3
59.C — 0.9) (67.9 (9.9
(14.0) (1.4 (3.9 — (19.2)
— (1.6 — — (1.6)
— — (0.2 — (0.2
$ (140 $ 30 $ 4.0 $ — 3 (21.0
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Exhibit 18.1

March 13, 2015

Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc.
4820 Eastgate Mall, Suite 200
San Diego, CA 92121

Dear Sirs/Madams:

We have audited the consolidated financial statésnafrKratos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. anbisidiaries (the
“Company”) as of December 28, 2014 and Decembe2@83 and for each of the two years in the peritttd December 28,
2014, included in your Annual Report on Form 10eKhe Securities and Exchange Commission and Isaued our report
thereon dated March 13, 2015, which expresses qualified opinion. Note 2 to such consolidated ficial statements contains a
description of your adoption, during the year enBedember 28, 2014, of your change in the datéhioannual goodwill
impairment test. In our judgment, such change ialemnative accounting principle that is prefeeathder the circumstances.

Yours truly,
/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE

San Diego, California

San Diego, California



List of Subsidiaries

Exhibit 21.1

Ai Metrix, Inc. Delaware
Airorlite Communications, Inc. New Jersey
Avtec Systems, Inc. Virginia
BSC Partners, LLC New York
Charleston Marine Containers, Inc. Delaware
Composite Engineering, Inc. California
Kratos Systems and Solutions, Inc. Virginia
Dallastown Realty I, LLC Delaware
Dallastown Realty I, LLC Delaware
Defense Systems, Incorporated Virginia
DEI Services Corporation Florida
Digital Fusion Solutions, Inc. Florida
Digital Fusion, Inc. Delaware
Diversified Security Solutions, Inc. New York
DTI Associates, Inc. Virginia

EW Simulation Technology Ltd.

United Kingdom

General Microwave Israel (1987) Ltd.

Israel

General Microwave Israel Corporation Delaware
General Microwave Corporation New York
Gichner Europe Limited United Kingdom
Gichner Systems Group, Inc. Delaware
Gichner Systems International, Inc. Delaware
Haverstick Consulting, Inc. Indiana
Haverstick Government Solutions, Inc. Ohio

Henry Bros. Electronics, Inc. California
Henry Bros. Electronics, Inc. Colorado
Henry Bros. Electronics, Inc. Delaware
Henry Bros. Electronics, Inc. New Jersey
Henry Bros. Electronics, LLC Arizona

Herley GMI Eyal Ltd. Israel

Herley Industries, Inc. Delaware
Herley-CT], Inc. Delaware
Herley-RSS, Inc. Delaware

HGS Holdings, Inc. Indiana

Integral Systems Europe Ltd. United Kingdom
Kratos Integral Systems Europe S.A.S. France

JMA Associates, Inc. Delaware

KPSS Government Solutions, Inc.

Delaware




Kratos Defense & Rocket Support Services, Inc.

alvale

Kratos Integral Holdings, LLC Maryland
Kratos Integral Systems International, Inc. Catifa
Kratos Networks, Inc. Delaware
Kratos Public Safety & Security Solutions, Inc. |&veare
Kratos Southeast, Inc. Georgia
Kratos Southwest L.P. Texas
Kratos Technology & Training Solutions, Inc. Califiia
Kratos Texas, Inc. Texas
Kratos Unmanned Systems Solutions, Inc. Delaware
Carlsbad IS, Inc. Maryland
LVDM, Inc. Nevada
Madison Research Corporation Alabama
Micro Systems, Inc. Florida

MSI Acquisition Corp. Delaware
National Safe of California, Inc. California
Polexis, Inc. California
Reality Based IT Services Ltd. Maryland
RealTime Logic, Inc. Colorado
Rocket Support Services, LLC Indiana
SAT Corporation California
SCT Acquisition, LLC Delaware
SCT Real Estate, LLC Delaware
Securelnfo Corporation Delaware
Shadow I, Inc. California
Shadow I, Inc. California
Stapor Research, Inc. Virginia
Summit Research Corporation Alabama
WFI NMC Corp. Delaware




Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference iniegion Statement Nos. 333-74108, 333-71618, 3334, and
333-198266 on Form S-3, Registration Statement Bi3.150165, 333-155604, 333-167840, 333-174745, 33
174760, 333-177493, and 333-198265 on Form S-4Ragyktration Statement Nos. 333-90455, 333-548338;
71702, 333-91852, 333-116903, 333-124957, 333-127883-155317, 333-157826, 333-167839, 333-171253,
173383, 333-177494, 333-179977, 333-182910, 33388 1and 333-198268 on Form S-8 of our report distecth
13, 2015, relating to the financial statements thiedretrospective adjustments to the 2012 finarst&iement
disclosures for a change in the composition of maibe segments discussed in Note 14 of Kratosridef& Security
Solutions, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Companyiy ¢he effectiveness of the Company's internalrobotwer financial
reporting, appearing in this Annual Report on FA&0K of the Company for the year ended Decembe2Q@84.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLF

San Diego, California
March 13, 2015



EXHIBIT 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTINGRM

We have issued our report dated March 12, 2018, iegpect to the consolidated financial statemfenthe year ended Decem
30, 2012 included in the Annual Report of Kratodddee & Security Solutions, Inc. on Form K(fer the year ended Decem
28, 2014. We hereby consent to the incorporatiomelfigrence of said report in the Registration $tetets of Kratos Defense
Security Solutions, Inc. on Forms S-3 (File No. -33®14, File No. 333-71618, File No. 333-74108, &ild No. 333198266), 0
Forms S-4 (File No. 333-150165, File No. 333-15568k No. 333-167840, File No. 333-174745, File. 1883174760, File Nc
333-177493 and File No. 333-198265) and on Forr8s(Sie No. 333-90455, File No. 333-54818, File 188371702, File Nc
333-91852, File No. 333-116903, File No. 333-124951e No. 333-127060, File No. 333-155317, File. 1883157826, File N¢
333-167839, File No. 333-171257, File No. 333-17338ile No. 333-177494, File No. 333-179977, File.1833182910, Fil

No. 33:-191156 and File No. 333-198268).
/s/ Grant Thornton LLP

San Diego, California
March 13, 2015



EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Eric M. DeMarco, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual report on FormKLo6f Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, It

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaioany untrue statement of a material fact ot dénstate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuwwt&h such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statememts other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and ctigivs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4, The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)danare responsible for establishing and maintgimlisclosure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) ardriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 18&{f))
for the registrant and have:

@) Designed such disclosure controls and proesdar caused such disclosure controls and proesdoibe designed under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tbgistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period inigh this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over finaneoggdorting, or caused such internal control oveatditial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggttae reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallypedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registsaditsclosure controls and procedures and presenthi report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proeges] as of the end of the period covered by #gpsnt based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in thgggteant’s internal control over financial repogithat occurred during the registrant’s most

recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s)dainhave disclosed, based on our most recent ei@tuaf internal control over financial reportirtg, the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant’s board of directors (or persons perfiog the equivalent functions):

@ All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registsaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that inxed management or other employees who have aisamtifole in the registrant’s internal

control over financial reporting.

Date: March 13, 2015

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

/sl ERIC M. DEMARCO

Eric M. DeMarco

Chief Executive Officer, President
(Principal Executive Officer)




EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Deanna H. Lund, certify that:

1. | have reviewed this Annual report on FormK @f Kratos Defense & Security Solutions, I

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not coraynuntrue statement of a material fact or omsitate a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstancesuwwti&h such statements were made, not misleaditigrespect to the period covered by this
report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statementsoéimer financial information included in this repdairly present in all material respects the
financial condition, results of operations and ctigivs of the registrant as of, and for, the pesipdesented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as defined in

Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) amdriat control over financial reporting (as definedExchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 184l))
for the registrant and have:

€) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduresused such disclosure controls and proceduties tlesigned under our supervision,
to ensure that material information relating to tbgistrant, including its consolidated subsidigris made known to us by others within
those entities, particularly during the period inigh this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gaorting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance rieggitie reliability of financial reporting and tipeeparation of financial statements for
external purposes in accordance with generallygedeaccounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant'sldgire controls and procedures and presentedsimetbort our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and proeges] as of the end of the period covered by #gpsnt based on such evaluation; and
(d) Disclosed in this report any change in the regigts internal control over financial reporting tlecurred during the registrant’s most

recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth disguarter in the case of an annual report) thathaterially affected, or is reasonably likely
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal tmhover financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) anddve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal control over financial reporting, toet
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee efrégistrant’s board of directors (or persons perfiog the equivalent functions):

€) All significant deficiencies and material weaknessethe design or operation of internal contraéiofinancial reporting which are
reasonably likely to adversely affect the registeaability to record, process, summarize and refioancial information; and
(b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a signifioéain the registrant’s internal

control over financial reporting.

Date: March 13, 2015

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

/s/ DEANNA H. LUND

Deanna H. Lund

Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual RepbKmatos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. (theot@pany”) on Form 10-K for the year ended

December 28, 2014 (the “Report”), I, Eric M. DeMar€hief Executive Officer of the Company, certifgrsuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley A2002, that:

Q) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢
2) The information contained in the Report faptesents, in all material respects, the finanmadition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 13, 2015

KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.

/sl ERIC M. DEMARCO

Eric M. DeMarco

Chief Executive Officer, President
(Principal Executive Officer)




EXHIBIT 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBAN ES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
(18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350)

In connection with the accompanying Annual RepbKmatos Defense & Security Solutions, Inc. (theot@pany”) on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 28, 2014 (the “Reportl) Deanna H. Lund, Chief Financial Officer of ther@pany, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1380adopted pursus
to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 200at:t

Q) The Report fully complies with the requirementsSeftction 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchangeof 1934, as amended; ¢
2) The information contained in the Report faptesents, in all material respects, the finanmadition and results of operations of the
Company.

Date: March 13, 2015
KRATOS DEFENSE & SECURITY SOLUTIONS, INC.
/s/ DEANNA H. LUND

Deanna H. Lund
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial Officer)



